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Financial Highlights

s E
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-—A=+-HLEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$ million HK$ million Change
BEBT BEET 28
Revenue A
OEM Business R BRI 1,784.0 1,855.3 (3.8)
Fashion Retail Business RETEEY 479.6 480.1 (0.1)
Property Investment Business MR E XS 11.2 — N/A T~ iE A
2,274.8 2,335.4 (2.6)
Operating profit 45 i F 49.0 158.1 (69.0)
Profit attributable to the Company’s RATREREA
equity holders JE At 4 A 21.0 149.7 (86.0)
Dividend per share (HK cent) TR B GBI
— Interim and special — P H R R = 1.97
Dividend payout ratio K B & N/A REH 28%
Equity attributable to the Company’s RARKREREA
equity holders eGSR 2,611.3 2,525.9
Equity per share (HK$) ERER(ET) 1.24 1.20
ZLEEERERAT T - N\FFR

05



LRFIRAE
INFURHA TN

-






08

Corporate Information
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Chairman’s Statement
TERE




On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (“Directors”) of China
Ting Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased to present
to you the 2018 annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”).

In 2018, the global economy is filled with challenges and opportunities.
The uncertainties and pressure from the trade war between China and
U.S., Brexit and the increase of cost in our manufacturing areas has
brought uncertainties to the garment and textile industry. The global
economic growth was below expectation and the financial market saw
continued fluctuations, and the international trade risk remained high
level throughout the year.

Despite of the decrease in the sales of OEM/ODM business of the Group
as a result of the trade tension between China and US, the Group
continued to develop our business in European Union and the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"). Besides, the Group has set up three
manufacturing business divisions with close industry-trade integration,
and completed a comprehensive modification and information-based
operation of the flexible and intelligent manufacturing equipment, which
help to provide customers with better services, better quality and
competitive pricing.

For our brand retail business, the Group has allocated more resources on
product design and marketing to promote the products; and expanded
our retail business on different platforms to develop our e-commerce
business in the PRC. In the future, the Group will put more effort in
procurement control, apply “Big-data” technology and introduce
premium international brands to ensure the Group’s brand retail
business will be developed healthily.

In 2018, the Group also changed part of the industrial complex to the
China Ting International Fashion Base (“ZESQEIFREFHEEEM") in
order to develop diversified business models and enhance value. At the
same time, the fashion base also facilitates the development of the
fashion industry in Yu Hang District.

I would also like to take this opportunity to thank all our shareholders
for their confidence in and support for us, and to express my gratitude
to our management team and staff for their diligent and hard work as
always.

TING MAN YI
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019

Chairman’s Statement
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
EREN®m RO

(1

Business Review

In 2018, amid the latest development of China-US trade tension
and trade protectionism worldwide, and the effect of various
coastal political factors, the global economic development has
failed to achieved satisfactory performance since the middle of the
year. Moreover, the exchange rates between Renminbi and US
dollar experienced drastic fluctuations, and international trading
risk remained at high levels throughout the year. In the PRC, the
focus was still laid on investments in real estate and other fixed
assets against the backdrop of the stock market slump in China,
resulting in decreased liquidity and unfavourable appetite for
consumption on the domestic consumption market.

In 2018, the US remained the Group’s major market. Due to the
China-US trade tension, the Group recorded a turnover of
HK$1,784.0 million from OEM/ODM business, representing a
decrease of 3.8% as compared to HK$1,855.3 million in 2017.
Against this unfavourable situation, the Group completed
comprehensive modifications and information-based operation of
the flexible and intelligent manufacturing equipment for women's
fashion apparel items, thereby creating a digitalized supply chain
system. The Group exerted fashion vigorous efforts in refining the
internal management structure by setting up three manufacturing
business divisions with close industry-trade integration, to provide
customers with better services and expand market presence.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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(2)

Management'’s Discussion and Analysis

With regards to the retail business, the Group focused its efforts
on further strengthening its design, research and development
capability, improving its management team and brand operating
capability, and expanding the scope of cooperation with quality
in 2018. Besides,
collaborated with different platforms to develop e-commerce

sales channel providers the Group also

business. The revenue generated from the retail business
amounted to HK$479.6 million in 2018, which was relatively

stable as compared with 2017.

With regards to the weaving business and the printing and dyeing
business, it was relocated in 2018 and the equipment has been
upgraded, so as to meet the increasingly stringent requirements
on production with environmental protection. We also improved
our product processing capability through technical improvement
to provide our customers with products of good quality.

Financial Review

Review of operations

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's revenue
amounted to HK$2,274.8 million, representing a decrease of
2.6% when compared with the total revenue of the Group of
HK$2,335.4 million in 2017. The gross profit for the year ended
31 December 2018 was HK$563.2 million, representing a decrease
of 15.3% as compared with HK$665.3 million in 2017. As a
result, the net profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 was HK$21.0
million and the net asset value per share as at 31 December 2018
was HK$1.24.

OEM and ODM business

During the year of 2018, the revenue derived from our OEM/ODM
business recorded a decrease of 3.8% from HK$1,855.3 million in
2017 to HK$1,784.0 million in 2018. Products made from silk,
cotton and synthetic fabrics continue to be the major products
which contributed HK$1,402.3 million (2017: HK$1,285.9 million),
representing 78.6% (2017: 69.3%) of the total turnover of our
OEM/ODM business for the year ended 31 December 2018.

(2)
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
EREN®m RO

In respect of market concentration, sales to the market in the
United States of America ("US"”) amounted to HK$820.2 million in
2018 (2017: HK$941.0 million), which accounted for 46.0%
(2017: 50.7%) of the OEM/ODM revenue. Sales to European
Union and other markets in 2018 were HK$196.9 million (2017:
HK$181.2 million) and HK$767.0 million (2017: HK$733.1 million),
respectively.

Fashion retail business

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the retail sales of the
Group amounted to HK$479.6 million, representing a similar level
when compared with the revenue of HK$480.1 million in 2017.
Finity, the major brand of the Group, contributed HK$200.4
million to the retail business, representing a decrease of 10.6% as
compared with HK$224.2 million for the year 2017.

In terms of retail revenue analysis by sales channels, sales from
concessionary counters amounted to HK$232.7 million (2017:
HK$295.1 million), accounting for 48.5% of total retail turnover
for the year ended 31 December 2018. Sales from e-commerce,
freestanding stores and franchisees for the year ended 31
December 2018 amounted to HK$119.8 million (2017: HK$67.5
million), HK$35.5 million (2017: HK$27.2 million) and HK$91.7
million (2017: HK$90.3 million), respectively.

Property Investment Business

In 2018, the Group has changed part of the industrial complex to
the China Ting International Fashion Base ("% & B (% fef 14 72 2 B
#6,”) in order to facilitate the regional development, fashion expert
localisation and e-commerce development for the fashion industry.
All these provide significant contribution to the fashion industry in
Yu Hang District, Hangzhou, while allowing the Group to develop
diversified business models and enhance revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the revenue from our
property investment business amounted to HK$11.2 million (2017:
nil).

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
EEER® LD

A Nationwide Retail Network
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
EREN®m RO

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group continues to retain a solid financial position. During
the year, the Group’s working capital needs were principally
supported by the financial resources generated from its ordinary
course of business. As of 31 December 2018, the cash and cash
equivalents were HK$448.5 million, representing a decrease of
4.5% from HK$469.4 million as of 31 December 2017. The Group
had bank borrowings of HK$367.1 million as of 31 December
2018 (2017: HK$247.3 million). The debt to equity ratio (total
borrowings as a percentage of total equity) was 13.9% (2017:
9.7%). The Directors consider that the Group has adequate
financial resources to support its working capital requirement and
future expansion.

The sales of the Group are mainly denominated in US dollars and
Renminbi and the purchase of raw materials are mainly made in
Renminbi, US dollars and Hong Kong dollars. As of 31 December
2018, all cash and cash equivalents, and bank borrowings were
mainly denominated in US dollars, Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars. Hence, the Group has no significant exposure to foreign
exchange risk.

Entrusted loans to Zhongdou Group and Zhongdou
Shopping Centre

The Company announced the updated status of the NBC
Entrusted Loans and the BOCOM Entrusted Loans in its
announcements dated 10 February 2015, 10 December, 3
November, 19 August, 23 June 2014 and 5 February 2013 (the
“Entrusted Loans Announcements”). The total amount of these
two entrusted loans is RMB160.0 million (equivalent to HK$191.4
million). The borrowers of these two entrusted loans have failed to
make repayments, and the borrowers and the related companies,
namely & ##F % %&£ B A R 2 & (Zhongdou Group Holdings
Limited*), W TR & FEMELEFR 2 A (Zhejiang Zhongdou
Property Group Company Limited*), # T H # B EHF R A A
(Zhejiang Zhongdou Department Store Company Limited*), #1/H
R EREE Y R B R A R (Hangzhou Zhongdou Shopping Centre
Company Limited*) have filed voluntary bankruptcy at the People’s
Court of Yuhang District, Hangzhou City. A creditor served a
petition for bankruptcy proceedings against TR Z R # & %A
[R A 7] (Zhejiang Linan Zhongdou Property Company Limited*)
which has pledged a parcel of land to secure due performance of
obligations under the NBC Entrusted Loan, at the People’s Court
of Yuhang District, Hangzhou City.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

FEELRYBEER

AEBEBERFBEBENVEMRL - FR -
AEEFENEAREBBRPEENY
BERIHEEESRTE -HE-_ZT— N
F+-A=1+—H BekBELEEIEH
BA8SEEBERE L BT —tF+ A
=T —H#®469.4B8 EB TR D45% - B E
—ZE-NE+-F=+—8 KAEEME
TEEARIIBEEST(ZT —LF:
2473BEAT)  AEHERLE(BEE
HERBENEIL) BI139% (=T —+
F:97%) EERBAEEHEBERMES
BERIBHELBELESERRANRERE -

REBEMNHEERTZUAETRARKS
B BERMEBIEUAARYE =B
Txf - BE_ZT-NF+-_A=+—
A -FERELBESEEERRRITEE
TEUET ARBIETIE Ft -
AN 62 B 1 A T BR RSN FE L B R A e

[6] 1 55 (B G P EEAE ) AR 0 BB R ZE AT
B

KRR EHA-_ZTE—RAF_A+H =
T-mFE+=ZA+A-+—A=B N\A
+hB - RNRAZ+=ZBE-_Z—=H_A8
FHOAH([ZXERAG]) PEBER
BITEAERERBRITEZTERNET
MR- ZMEZAEFNEERARE
160.08 &L (HEM4B8 BB L) - %
MEZXEFTERAREER  MER
ARMEERR (BIFHIZEREBERAG -
IR MEMEEBEER AR T HER
BEERAR MMPHBEDPLERA
AHE MMM meaRnEARERIEL 8B
WE - —REREARMMNTHNEARZE
PR ES M IRTTHEEBRAR (%
AREHEF— B MU REBFZERBITER
BOTZEAEFRNEDNBREZEZEFZ

=t
B °



Management'’s Discussion and Analysis

In respect of such proceedings, the People’s Court of Yuhang
District, Hangzhou City, approved the appointment of the
administrator and accepted the petition for bankruptcy
proceedings. The first creditors’ meetings were held on 19, 20
March and 2 April 2015.

Pursuant to the order, each of the Bank of Communications
Limited, Zhejiang Branch and Ningbo Bank Corporation lodged a
proof of debt to the administrator in respect of the claims under
the BOCOM Entrusted Loans and NCB Entrusted Loans in the
amount of RMB33.6 million (equivalent to HK$40.2 million) and
RMB141.8 million (equivalent to HK$169.7 million) on 9 February
2015 and 16 February 2015, respectively.

Two rounds of open tender were held by the administrator in
November 2017 and March 2018, respectively, to identify
potential restructuring investors, which were both terminated with
no qualified investor identified. The third round of open tender
commenced in March 2019 and is still in progress up to the date
of this report.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the fair value of the pledged
collaterals held by the Group for entrusted loans is determined
based on the valuation performed by an independent qualified
valuer (the “Valuer”) using market based valuation techniques
with reference to current prices in an active market of similar
properties.

At as 31 December 2018, the BOCOM Entrusted Loans of
approximately HK$16,169,000 (2017: HK$16,990,000) were
impaired. Based on the valuation performed by the Valuer, fair
value of the pledged collaterals for the BOCOM Entrusted Loans
and NCB Entrusted Loans is higher than such entrusted loans’
carrying amounts. The directors are of the opinion that there is no
further impairment for such entrusted loans as at 31 December
2018.
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis
EREN®m RO

(3)

Outlook

The Group has completed the modifications and information-
based operation of the apparel manufacturing equipment, which
has significantly improved the efficiency and flexibility in
manufacturing capability of our factories in response to the
market demand for OEM/ODM business. Meanwhile, the Group
has recognised the necessity for re-locating the production
capacity, and will construct production base in the PRC and
Southeast Asia within the next three to five years.

Going forward, the Group will spend more efforts on the
development of new products and customer services, expand the
customer base that comprises customers from traditional sales
channels to cover those from new retail channels, and proactively
take advantage of various digital means to improve the efficiency
and quality of the customer service.

As for the retail business of the Group, it will increase the
investment to expand the market share of existing brands and
develop new retail business, put in place effective control on
inventories, and apply “big-data” technology to the development
of the Group’s retail business. In the meanwhile, the Group will
introduce premium international brands proactively and put more
efforts on the cultivation of new designer brands to ensure the
all-round development of the Group’s brand retail business.

The weaving business and the printing and dyeing business
underwent comprehensive modifications and relocation in 2018,
and the plant and machinery are resumed for production after
modifications. The Group will promote the development of the
weaving business and printing and dyeing business by focusing on
the market demand, emphasizing on environmental protection and
ecological conservation and enhancing the core strengths of
technological innovation, so as to firmly maintain the Group’s
advantage in the supply chain as a one-stop purchase destination.

Hangzhou has provided the Group with good foundation for the
operations of its industrial park. Despite the economic pressure
from various neighboring industrial parks, the Group’s industrial
park still managed to deliver outstanding performance because of
With the advancement of

its location and infrastructure.

urbanization, the Group’s industrial park will enjoy a more
thus

providing more favorable conditions for the Group to further the

prominent advantage in terms of transport location,

operations of our industrial park in greater depth.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis

Human Resources

As of 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 6,300
full-time employees. Staff costs for 2018 stand at HK$538.0
million, remaining stable when compare with previous year.

The Group recognises the importance of good relationships with
its employees and has adopted an incentive bonus scheme for
them, under which bonuses are determined every year based on
the performance of individual employees and with reference to the
Group's annual profits and performance. Our Directors believe that
a competitive remuneration package, a safe and comfortable
workplace, and career development opportunities are incentives
for employees to excel in their areas of responsibilities.

Pursuant to the applicable laws and regulations, the Group has
participated in relevant defined contribution retirement schemes
administrated by the Chinese government authorities for the
Group's employees in China. For the Group’s employees in Hong
Kong, all the arrangements pursuant to the mandatory provident
fund requirements set forth under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are
duly implemented. There is no mandatory retirement schemes
under the applicable laws and regulations in the US. The Group
has not

implemented retirement schemes for the Group’'s

employees in the US.
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Directors and Senior Management
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Executive Directors

Mr. TING Man Yi, aged 62, is the Chairman of the Group and an
executive Director. He is also a director of Longerview Investments
Limited (”Longerview”) and Firmsuccess Limited (“Firmsuccess”), both
being substantial shareholders of the Company. Mr. TING is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. TING started the
business of the Group in December 1992 and has considerable
experience in the silk fabric and silk garment manufacturing and trading
business. Prior to establishing the initial company of the Group, Mr.
TING worked for Hangzhou Silk Industrial Company (1711 71 4 48 T ¥ 2
A]) from 1981 to 1986. Mr. TING is currently responsible for the overall
strategic planning of the Group, especially overseeing the expansive
manufacturing industrial complex in Hangzhou, as well as the planning
and implementation of major new investments and projects of the
Group. Mr. TING is the elder brother of Mr. TING Hung Yi and Mr. DING
Jianer.

Mr. TING Hung Yi, aged 58 is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
and an executive Director. He is also a member of the nomination
committee and the remuneration committee of the Company, a director
of Longerview, In Holdings Limited (“In Holdings”) (a substantial
shareholder of the Company) and certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr.
TING joined the Group in May 2002 and is principally responsible for the
strategic development of the Group’s OEM, ODM, and retail businesses.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. TING was the general manager of a
trading company in Hong Kong between 1991 and 2002. Mr. TING
graduated from Zhejiang Sci-Tech University G T8 T K£), formerly
known as Zhejiang Institute of Silk Textiles G /T 4% 48 T Epx), in 1987
and has over 30 years of experience in the operations of garment
export. Mr. TING is the younger brother of Mr. TING Man Yi and Mr.
DING lJianer, as well as the brother-in-law of Mr. CHEN Jun.

Mr. DING lJianer, aged 59, is an executive Director of the Group. He is
also a director of Longerview, Willport Investments Limited (“Willport”)
(a substantial shareholder of the Company) and certain subsidiaries of
the Group. Mr. DING joined the Group in October 1996 when he was
first involved in the management and business operations of Shenzhen
Fuhowe Fashion Company Limited. He has considerable experience in the
silk garment manufacturing business, with focus on various specific areas
ranging from the operations of weaving plants, sales and marketing to
printing and dyeing and is responsible for the Group’s fabric research
and development along with innovative techniques. Mr. DING is the
younger brother of Mr. TING Man Yi and the elder brother of Mr. TING
Hung Yi.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter, aged 55, is an executive Director of the
Company and the managing director of China Ting Garment Mfg
(Group) Limited and Concept Creator Fashion Limited. He is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group. Mr. CHEUNG has extensive
experience in the garment and textile industry and joined the Group in
January 2000, and oversees the Group’s sales and marketing teams. Mr.
CHEUNG obtained a Bachelor of Arts (cum laude) Degree from the
University of Washington in 1987, and a Master's Degree in Business
Administration from Simon Fraser University in 1990. Mr. CHEUNG was
admitted as a member of the Golden Key National Honor Society and
Phi Beta Kappa in 1986 and 1988, respectively.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Chi Pang, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in November 2005. He is also a member of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the remuneration committee
of the Company. Mr. CHENG obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in Business
in 1992, a Master’'s Degree in Business Administration in 1997 and a
Master’s Degree in Laws (Chinese and Comparative Law) in 2009. Mr.
CHENG is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, CPA Australia, the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong
and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and
Wales.

Mr. CHENG is a Certified Public Accountant practicing in Hong Kong
with over 30 years of experience in auditing and business advisory as
well as financial management. Mr. CHENG was chief executive and
group financial controller of NWS Holdings Limited (“NWSH"), the shares
of which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). Prior to joining NWSH, he was a senior manager of
an international accounting firm. Mr. CHENG is now senior partner of
Leslie Cheng & Co. as well as an independent non- executive director
and chairman of audit committee of Tianjin Port Development Holdings
Limited and Fortune Sun (China) Holdings Limited all being companies
listed on the Stock Exchange and chief executive officer of L&E
Consultants Limited.

Mr. WONG Chi Keung, aged 64, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in November 2005. He is also the chairman and a
member of the audit committee and the remuneration committee of the
Company. Mr. WONG holds a master’s degree in business administration
from the University of Adelaide in Australia. He is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and CPA Australia, an associate
member of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and
The Chartered Institute of Management Accountants. Mr. WONG is also
the Responsible Officer of CASDAQ International Capital Market (HK)
company Limited and is licensed to carry out certain regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance namely asset management
and advising on securities.
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Mr. WONG has over 39 years of experience in finance, accounting and
management, and was, for over 10 years, an executive director, deputy
general manager, group financial controller and company secretary of
Yuexiu Property Company Limited (formerly known as Guangzhou
Investment Company Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange.
He is also an independent non-executive director and a member of the
audit committee of Asia Orient Holdings Limited, Asia Standard
International Group Limited, Century City International Holdings Limited,
Nickel Resources International Holdings Company Limited (formerly
known as China Nickel Resources Holdings Company Limited), Fortunet
e-Commerce Group Limited (formerly known as Changfeng Axle (China)
Company Limited), Golden Eagle Retail Group Limited, Paliburg Holdings
Limited, Regal Hotels International Holdings Limited, TPV Technology
Limited, Yuan Heng Gas Holdings Limited (formerly known as Ngai Lik
Industrial Holdings Limited), and Zhuguang Holdings Group Company
Limited, which are all listed on the Stock Exchange.

On 23 May 2018, Mr. WONG has ceased to be an independent non-
executive director and a member of each of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee of China Shanshui
Cement Group Limited (stock code: 691) (“China Shanshui Cement”).

Mr. LEUNG Man Kit, aged 65, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in November 2005. He is also the chairman and a
member of the nomination committee, and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Mr. LEUNG obtained a Bachelor’s Degree in
Social Science from the University of Hong Kong in 1977. Mr. LEUNG
has over 25 years of experience in project finance and corporate finance
and has held senior positions with Peregrine Capital (China) Limited,
Crosby Securities (HK) Limited and Swiss Bank Corporation, Hong Kong
Branch. Mr. LEUNG was also a director of Emerging Markets Partnership
(Hong Kong) Limited which was the principal adviser to the AIG
Infrastructure Fund L.P.

Mr. LEUNG is an independent non-executive director and audit
committee member of NetEase, a NASDAQ listed company. Mr. LEUNG
is also an independent non-executive director and chairman of the audit
committee of Orange Sky Golden Harvest Entertainment (Holdings)
Limited (stock code: 1132), Optics Valley Union Holding Company
Limited (stock code: 798) and Luye Pharma Group Ltd (stock code:
02186) which are all companies listed on the Stock Exchange.

On 30 November 2018, Mr. LEUNG has resigned as an executive
director of Unitas Holdings Limited (formerly known as Chanceton
Financial Group Limited, stock code: 8020) (”Unitas Holdings”). Mr.
LEUNG also resigned as an independent non-executive director, a
member of the nomination and remuneration committee, and the
chairman of the financial management and audit committee of China
Huiyuan Juice Group Limited (stock code: 1886) (“China Huiyuan”) with
effect from 25 January 2019.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Corporate Management Team

Export, OEM and ODM Business

Mr. SHEN Ren, Tony, aged 42, is a vice president of the Group and the
president of China Ting Fashion Group (USA) LLC. Mr. SHEN joined the
Group in 2005 and has assumed the management post since late 2008.
Mr. SHEN holds an LLB from Zhejiang University Law School, an LLM
from University of Glasgow, Scotland (International Law) and an LLM
from University of Warwick, UK (Law in Development). Prior to joining
the group, Mr. SHEN worked as assistant manager within the
Department of Government Procurement of China and as consultant in
the international legal firm Horwath & Partners, Shanghai.

Weaving and Apparel Production Management

Mr. YE Ai Min, aged 58, is a vice president of the Group and is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s production management. Mr. YE
joined the Group in August 1993 and has served in various posts since,
including being the general manager of Shenzhen Fuhowe Fashion
Company Limited and Hangzhou China Ting Fashion Company Limited.
Mr. YE graduated from Zhejiang Medical University (#;T 8 &IK£) in
1983 with a bachelor's degree in medicine. Mr. YE has more than
twenty years of experience in apparel production management and
product quality control.

Mr. FU Xiao Bo, aged 56, is a vice president of the Group overseeing
its export business and product development in Hangzhou. Mr. FU joined
the Group in May 1997. Mr. FU has considerable experience in business
expansion notably in fabric and product innovation, fabrication and
production techniques. In 1984, Mr. FU graduated with bachelor’s
degree from Zhejiang Sci-Tech University Ci7/T 3 T K &), formerly
known as Zhejiang Institute of Silk Textiles (# T #: 48 T £F%). He also
received extensive fabric technical training in Germany before he joined
the Group.

Ms. SHEN Xuan, aged 42, joined the Group in 2002 and is a vice
president of the Group and general manager of Zhejiang Xinan Fashion
Company Limited, in charge of finance, sourcing and production of retail
business of the Group. Ms. SHEN graduated from Zhejiang University of
Finance and Economics and has considerable experience in the
management of apparel manufacturing, production management and
product quality control. Ms. SHEN is also the niece of Mr. TING Man Vi,
Mr. TING Hung Yi, and Mr. DING Jianer.

Mr. XIA Wei Feng, aged 40, joined the Group in 2014 and is a vice
president of the Group and the general manager of China Ting Woolen
Textile Company, Limited, in charge of the operating management of
woolen and new materials production. Mr. XIA graduated from Ningbo
University, major in Business Administration. He has over ten vyears
experience in exploitation, management and marketing in the field of
textile apparel.
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Retail and Brand Management

Mr. LIU Gang, aged 57, is a vice president of the Group and the
managing director of Zhejiang China Ting Brand Management Company
Limited and the director for art and design for the Group. Mr. LIU
joined the Group in August 1998 and is responsible for the design,
promotion and management and exploitation of the Group's various in-
house brand names in the China market, including the Group’s own
brands of FINITY, ELANIE and RIVERSTONE. Mr. LIU graduated from
Zhejiang Sci-Tech University O )2 T K2) formerly known as Zhejiang
Institute of Silk Textiles GHi) L4 #4 T2 %) in 1987.

Mr. TING Yu, aged 30, is the general manager of the Group’s retail
brands. Mr. TING joined the Group in 2011, and was initially responsible
for the operation and development of the brand of RIVERSTONE and is
mainly responsible for the operation and development of all the brands
of the Group at present. Mr. TING graduated from The University of
Manchester with a bachelor's degree in 2010, and then from Cass
Business School of City University of London, U.K. with a master’s
degree in 2011. Mr. TING has advanced concepts of innovation and
years of experience in retail management. Mr. TING is the eldest son of
Mr. TING Hung Yi, the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.

Mr. TING Fan, aged 30, is the general manager of the Group’s business
development and a director of a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. TING
joined the Group in 2011 and is mainly responsible for investor relations
and global business development at present. Mr. TING graduated from
The University of Manchester in 2010, and then from Cass Business
School of City University of London, U.K. with a master’'s degree in
2011. Mr. TING has extensive experience in market development and
sales management, and has been in charge of the introduction and
management of some international fashion brands, like CALVIN KLEIN
PERFORMANCE, VINCE CAMUTO and TRENTA. Mr. TING is the second
son of Mr. TING Hung Yi, the Chief Executive Officer of the Group.

Accounting and Finance

Mr. MAO Jian Hua, aged 65, is the Financial Controller and Chief
Accountant of the Group. Mr. MAO joined the Group in December
2003 and is responsible for the overall accounting and budget control
for the Group’'s OEM production in China. Mr. MAO is a holder of the
Certificate of Certified Public Valuer of the PRC (P A R ME M &
EFTHENZEE) as well as a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (41 Bl &% flt & &t A i &). Mr. MAO has over 20 years
of work experience in financial management and accounting in China.

Mr. CHENG Ho Lung, Raymond, aged 41, is the Financial Controller and
also the company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) of the Group. Mr.
CHENG joined the Group in May 2005, and is responsible for the Group's
overall matters related to financial and treasury management, financial
accounting and reporting, budgetary control, taxation and statutory audit.
Mr. CHENG graduated from the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and also holds a Master's Degree in Business Administration
(MBA) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong. He is an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr. CHENG worked as audit manager for an
international accounting firm in Hong Kong.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Directors recognise the importance of corporate governance and are
committed to maintain high-standards of corporate governance in the
management structure and internal control procedures of the Group, in
order to make sure that all business activities of the Group and the
decision-making process are properly regulated to safeguard
shareholders’ interests and as well as the Company's assets. We
recognize the value and importance of achieving high corporate
governance standards to promote corporate transparency and
accountability and to enhance shareholders’ value. This report
summarises how the principles as set forth in the Corporate Governance
Code and Corporate Governance Report have been applied in respect of
the year ended 31 December 2018. The company has complied with the
principles and code provisions set forth in the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code"”) under Appendix 14 to The Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”)
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018.

We will periodically review and improve our corporate governance
practices with reference to the latest corporate governance
developments. The key corporate governance principles and practices of
our Company are summarized below.

The Board of Directors
Board Composition
The Board currently comprises seven directors and the composition is set

forth as follows:
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Chairman and Executive Director

TEHREE ITRERNTES

Mr. TING Hung Yi Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
THEREE TRARFATES

Mr. DING Jianer Executive Director

TREREE BITES

Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter Executive Director

REBRE BITES

Mr. CHENG Chi Pang Independent Non-Executive Director
NS S A& BIUFHITES

Mr. WONG Chi Keung Independent Non-Executive Director
|2 E BIUFHITES

Mr. LEUNG Man Kit Independent Non-Executive Director
RREGRE BIUFHITES
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The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of our Group.
The principal roles of the Board are:

— to formulate the medium and long-term strategies of our Group;

— to lay down the objectives, policies and business plans of our
Group;

— to monitor and evaluate the Group’s operating and financial
performance;

— to review and approve the Group’s annual operating and capital
expenditure budgets, interim and annual results, material contracts
and transactions, declaration of dividend, Directors’ appointment
or re-appointment following the recommendation(s) by the
Nomination Committee as well as other ad hoc matters which
need to be dealt with by the Board;

— to establish effective control measures so as to assess and manage
risks in pursuit of our objectives; and

— to review and ensure the Group has in place adequate accounting
systems and appropriate human resources to fulfill the accounting
and financial reporting functions.

The Board delegates day-to-day operations of the Company to the
management of the Group, who possesses extensive operating
experience and industry knowledge, and also instructs the management
to implement the Board’s decisions and resolutions. In addition, the
Board has also delegated certain specific responsibilities to various Board
committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. The Board currently comprises four
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

Details of the Directors are set forth on pages 26 to 28 of this report.

The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties set out in its terms of reference, including:

— to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

— to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

— to review and monitor the Company's policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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— to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors of the
Company; and

— to review the Company’s compliance with the code provisions as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and disclosure in the
corporate governance report.

The four executive Directors include three brothers, namely Mr. TING
Man Yi, Mr. TING Hung Yi and Mr. DING Jianer, and Mr. CHEUNG Ting
Yin, Peter. Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter has no family relationship with
any of the other executive and independent non-executive Directors.

The Company has entered into service contract with each of the
executive Directors and appointment letter with each of the independent
non-executive Directors setting out their duties, terms and conditions of
service and appointment, respectively.

The articles of association of our Company (“Articles of Association”)
provide that all our Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at
least once every three years and at each annual general meeting, one-
third of our Directors for the time being or, if the number is not a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third, shall retire from office by rotation and offer themselves for re-
election. As such, the Board considers that sufficient measures have been
put in place to ensure our Company’s corporate governance practice in
this aspect provides sufficient protection for the interests of shareholders
to a standard commensurate with that of the code.

The Articles of Association also provides that any Director appointed to
fill @ casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only
until the Company’s next following general meeting and shall then be
eligible for re-election at that meeting.

The Board considers that its diversity is a vital asset to the business. The
Board adopted a board diversity policy for better transparency and
governance. Board appointments are based on merit and candidates are
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board, including but not limited to age, cultural and
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service.
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Board Meetings

The Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee had held 4, 2, 1 and 1 meeting respectively in 2018. The
attendance at the Board, respective Board Committee meetings and
Annual General Meeting held in 2018 are as follows:

Audit
Director Board Committee
E=x Esxsg ERZEE®
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. TING Man Yi 3/4 -
THREE
Mr. TING Hung Yi 3/4 o
THEREE
Mr. DING lJianer 2/4 -
TEREE
Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter 4/4 o
REB KL
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BYFHTES
Mr. CHENG Chi Pang 4/4 2/2
BEMS &
Mr. WONG Chi Keung 4/4 2/2
|mZWEEL
Mr. LEUNG Man Kit 4/4 2/2
RREEE

The Board is responsible for the formulation of the overall business
strategies and objectives, the monitoring and evaluation of the operating
and financial performance, the review of the corporate governance
standard and the supervision of the management of the Group. The
management of the Group is responsible for the implementation of the
business strategies and the day-to-day operations of the Group under
the supervision of the Chief Executive Officer. The Directors have full
access to information on the Group. All senior management of the
Group also provide the Directors from time to time with information on
the business of the Group.

Training and Development

The Company places great importance on directors training and annually
holds a Board of Directors conference to reaffirm Directors’ duties and
responsibilities and to advise the Directors on various subjects including,
Listing Rules compliance, updates to the Listing Rules, rules and
regulations of the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC"),
enforcement actions taken by the SFC and Stock Exchange and how the
rules and regulations impact on the Company’s business and corporate
governance.
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All Directors are provided with a Directors Manual with summaries of the
directors’ duties and responsibilities as a director of a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (including connected and notifiable transactions;
disclosure of interest in securities of the Company and the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by a Director of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules) and also contains the group chart and
the Company’s Articles of Association. All Directors have participated in
continuous professional development to refresh and develop their
knowledge and skills as well as to receive updates on developments in
corporate governance practices. This is to ensure their contribution to
the Board remains informed and relevant.

A record of the Director’'s participation in the continuous professional
development program is kept with the Company Secretary.

Directors’ Training

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills by attending training and by reading
materials in relation to the roles, functions and duties of a listed
company director and the latest developments in the relevant rules and
regulations.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the code provision
A.6.5 of the CG Code for the year ended 31 December 2018 and they
participated in the following types of continuous professional
development:

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. TING Man Yi THREE

Mr. TING Hung Yi TR EE

Mr. DING lianer TEREE

Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter REBELAE
Independent Non-executive Directors BYKHITES
Mr. CHENG Chi Pang B 5 M8 S A

Mr. WONG Chi Keung =2 BEL

Mr. LEUNG Man Kit RREERE

(): Attending internal training sessions.

(In): Attending seminars.

(I): Reading materials in relation to the roles, functions and duties of a listed company director
and the latest developments in the relevant rules and regulations.
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Directors’ and officers’ liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance covering the
liabilities of the Directors that may arise out of the corporate activities.
The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Compliance with Model Code

The Company adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers as set forth in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code"”) and its amendments from time to time as the
code of conduct for Directors in their dealings in the Company’s
securities. Formal written notices are sent to the Directors prior to the
commencement of the periods of 30 days immediately preceding the
publication of our interim results announcement and 60 days
immediately preceding the publication of our annual results
announcement, as a reminder that Directors may not deal in the
securities of the Company during those periods up to and including the
date of publication of results. Having made specific enquiry with the
Directors, all the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the required standards under the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer are separate
and are held by Mr. TING Man Yi and Mr. TING Hung Vi, respectively,
who are siblings. The Chairman is responsible for the overall strategic
planning of the Group, overseeing the manufacturing business of the
Group in Hangzhou and the planning and implementation of major new
investments and projects of the Group. The Chairman will ensure that
the Group maintains good measures and effective corporate governance
practices and procedures. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
the day-to-day management of the business of the Group and the
strategic development of the Group’s OEM and retail business. With the
assistance of other members of the Board and other senior
management, the Chief Executive Officer closely monitors the operating
and financial results of the Group, identifies weakness of the operation
and takes all necessary and appropriate remedial steps.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and Rules 3.10A
of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors, one independent non-executive
Director of which has the appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related finance management expertise and the
independent non-executive Directors represent at least one-third of the
Board. All three independent non-executive Directors have been
appointed for a term of three years, commencing from 18 November
2017. All of them have satisfied the independence criteria, and each of
them has made such confirmation on independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that all
independent non-executive Directors have met the independence
guidelines set forth in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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Board Committees

As an integral part of good corporate governance, the Board has
established the following committees whose authority, functions,
compositions and duties are set out below:

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Board has three members, namely Mr.
TING Hung Yi, Mr. CHENG Chi Pang and Mr. WONG Chi Keung. The
chairman of the Remuneration Committee is Mr. WONG Chi Keung. The
Remuneration Committee is established primarily for the purpose of
ensuring that we can recruit, retain and motivate high quality personnel
who are essential to the success of our Group. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee include reviewing the terms of remuneration
packages of the executive directors and senior management and
determining the award of bonuses. Its terms of reference are available on
request, and are also posted on the website of the Company. The
Remuneration Committee was established on 18 November 2005.

The Company has adopted the model to make recommendations to the
Board on the remuneration packages of executive Directors and senior
management of the Company. The Remuneration Committee is responsible
for formulating and recommending remuneration policy to the Board and
reviewing and making recommendations on compensation-related issues.
The fees for Directors are subject to the approval of the shareholders at the
general meetings in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Remuneration Committee consults with Chairman on its
proposals and recommendations if necessary, and also has access to
independent professional advice if necessary. The Remuneration Committee
is also provided with sufficient resources enabling it to perform its duties.
The Remuneration Committee’s specific terms of reference are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held in 2018 and reviewed
and made recommendations to the Board the Directors’ fees and the
emoluments of the executive Directors and remuneration package of
senior management. All the committee members attended the meeting.

The remuneration package for the executive Directors and senior
management is made up of two parts, namely a fixed component and a
variable incentive. The fixed component comprises mainly salary,
retirement benefit scheme contributions and other allowances which are
determined by reference to the remuneration benchmark in similar
industry or industry with similar market capitalization and prevailing
market conditions. The variable incentive is bonus, which s
performance-based and determined by the Board and the Group based
on the Group’s and individual work performance.
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Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of
the members of the senior management (other than Directors) by band
for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set forth below:

In the band of
M 48 Bl

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000
1,000,001 7T 22,000,000/ 7T

Below HK$1,000,001
1,000,001 T A T

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Board consists of Mr. TING Hung Yi, Mr.
CHENG Chi Pang and Mr. LEUNG Man Kit. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee is Mr. LEUNG Man Kit. The Nomination Committee
is established primarily for the purpose of regularly reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board and making recommendations to the
Board on nominations and appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors. The Nomination Committee selects and recommends
appropriate candidates, based on his or her prior experience and
qualifications, to the Board on the appointment of Directors of the Group.
The Nomination Committee has recommended to the Board the Directors
who should retire and make themselves available for election pursuant to
the Company’s Articles of Association, assessed the independence of all
independent non-executive Directors. Its terms of reference are available on
request and are also posted on the website of the Company. The
Nomination Committee was established on 18 November 2005. One
Nomination Committee meeting, discussing the nomination procedures,
was held in 2018 and all the committee members attended the meeting.

The Nomination Committee’s specific terms of reference are posted on the
websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Board comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, Mr. WONG Chi Keung, Mr. CHENG Chi Pang and Mr.
LEUNG Man Kit. Mr. WONG Chi Keung is the chairman of the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee assists the Board to review the
financial reporting process, evaluate the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems, and corporate governance of
the Group and oversee the auditing processes. The authority, role and
responsibilities of the Audit Committee are set out in written terms of
reference which are available on request and are also posted on the
website of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Audit Committee
was established on 18 November 2005. The Company has been in full
compliance with requirements of Rule 3.21 in the Listing Rules
throughout the year. Two Audit Committee meetings were held, together
with senior management and the external auditor in 2018. All the
committee members attended these meetings.

During 2018, the Audit Committee reviewed the recent updates and
development of accounting and financial reporting standards and
assessed their potential impact on our Group, overseeing the relationship
with the Company’s external auditor (including making recommendation
to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor), considered the external auditor’s proposed audit fees;
discussed with the external auditor their independence and the nature
and scope of the audit; reviewed the interim and annual financial
statements, particularly judgemental areas, before submission to the
Board; reviewed the Group’s adherence to the code provisions in the CG
Code, reviewed our Group's financial control, internal control and risk
management systems and discussed with the external auditor on our
Group's financial reporting function, in particular on the adequacy of
resources of our Group’s accounting and financial reporting function,
qualifications and experience of our staff and their training program,
conducted an annual review of non-exempt continuing connected
transactions of our Group. The Audit Committee recommended the
Board to adopt the interim and annual report for 2018.

The professional fee charged by the Company’s auditor in respect of the
auditing services is disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements. The
remuneration of the auditor of the Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers,
for audit and non-audit services (namely taxation services and interim
review) rendered during 2018 was HK$3.3 million and HK$0.7 million,
respectively. The Audit Committee’s specific terms of reference are
posted on the websites of the Company and Stock Exchange.

Accountability and Audit

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the vyear
ended 31 December 2018 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee
and audited by external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers.
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Director’'s Responsibilities for the Financial

Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group with a view to
ensure that such financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Group, selecting suitable accounting policies,
applying the selected accounting policies consistently, and making
prudent and reasonable judgements and estimates for the preparation of
the financial statements of the Group and of its results and cash flows
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
statutory requirements.

The statement of the auditor of the Company regarding their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set forth in
the independent auditor’s report on pages 62 to 70.

Internal Control

The Board and the management of the Group have overall responsibility
for maintaining a sound and effective internal control system of the
Group so as to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the operations
of the Group in achieving the established corporate objectives,
safeguarding assets of the Group, rendering reliable financial reporting
and complying with the applicable laws and regulations. The Board
assessed the effectiveness of internal control by considering reviews
performed by the Audit Committee, management team and both
internal and external auditors.

The Board is also responsible for making appropriate assertions on the
adequacy of internal controls over financial reporting and the
effectiveness of disclosure controls and procedures. For the year ended
31 December 2018, the Board has, through the Audit Committee of the
Board with the assistance of the management, conducted reviews of the
effectiveness of these internal control systems, including without
limitation to financial control, operations control, compliance control and
risk management functions, on a regular basis. For the year ended 31
December 2018, based on the assessment made by the Audit
Committee, the senior management and the internal audit team, the
Board is satisfied that there is an ongoing process in place for
identifying, evaluating and managing the significant risks faced by our
Group.
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Company Secretary

Mr. CHENG Ho Lung, Raymond, the Company Secretary of our
Company, has confirmed the completion of relevant professional training
of not less than 15 hours.

Shareholder Relations

The Company is committed to ensure that the Group complies with
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and other applicable laws
and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors have an
equal opportunity to receive and obtain information provided by the
Company. The Board recognizes the importance of good communication
with shareholders. Information in relation to the Group is disseminated
to shareholders in a timely manner through a number of formal
channels, which include interim and annual reports, announcements and
circulars.

The general meetings of the Company provide a forum for exchange of
views and direct communication between the shareholders and the
Board. The Chairman of the Board, the Directors and senior
management of the Company and where applicable, the independent
non-executive Directors, are available to answer questions at the
shareholders’ meeting.

Separate resolutions are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each
substantial issue, including the election of individual directors. Poll voting
was adopted for all decisions to be made at all general meetings. Details
of the poll voting procedures are included in all circulars to shareholders
which call for a general meeting and are explained during the
proceedings of the meeting.

The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its shareholders. Enquiries from shareholders are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner. We maintain a website
www.chinating.com.hk to keep our shareholders and the general public
informed on our latest corporate news, interim and annual results
announcements, financial reports and other public announcements. We
always welcome shareholders’ views and input. Shareholders may send
their enquiries in writing to the Board by addressing them to our
Company Secretary. The contact details of our Company Secretary are as
follows:
Address: The Company Secretary

China Ting Group Holdings Limited
27/F, King Palace Plaza

55 King Yip Street Kwun Tong

Hong Kong
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rEERME

Shareholders’ right to convene a
shareholders’ meeting and putting forward

proposals at shareholders’ meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, shareholder(s) of
the Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company the “Requisitionist(s)”)
shall have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary of the Company, to require (the “Requisition”) an
extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") to be called by the Board for
transaction of any business specified in the Requisition.

The EGM shall be held within two months after the deposit of the
Requisition. In the event that the Board fails to convene the EGM within
twenty-one days of the deposit of the Requisition, the Requisitionist(s)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the Requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the Requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Investors Relations

A printed copy of the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company has been published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange. There has been no changes in the Company's
constitutional documents during the year ended 31 December 2018.

Dividend Policy

The Company may declare and pay dividends to the shareholders of the
Company by way of cash or by other means that the Board considers
appropriate. It is the policy of the Board, in recommending dividends, to
allow the shareholders to participate in the Company’s profits, and at
the same time, to ensure that the Company is to retain adequate
reserves for future growth.

Any proposed distribution of final dividends shall be formulated by the
Board and will be subject to the shareholders’ approval. A decision to
declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and the amount of any
dividends, will depend on a number of factors, including the results of
operations, cash flows, financial conditions, operating and capital
expenditure requirements, distributable profits and other applicable laws
and regulations and other factors that the Board may consider important
and appropriate.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Corporate Risk Management and Internal Contro

Report

X E g 12 BB R

Project Review

Significance and important statement

According to the Corporate Risk Management and Internal
Control Regulation Rules and relevant guidance and other
internal control regulation requirements (hereafter referred
as the “Corporate Internal Control Standard System”),
combining with the internal control policy and appraisal
measures of Company, on the basis of regular supervision
and special supervision on internal control, we have
conducted an investigation on the management and
internal control for the period from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2018.

It is the responsibility of the Board of the Company to
establish, complete and implement effectively the internal
control and appraise its effectiveness and truly disclose the
internal control appraisal report in accordance with the
Corporate Internal Control Standard System. The Audit
Committee conducts the supervision in terms of
establishing and implementing internal control by the
Board. The executives of the Group and general managers
of companies are responsible for the organization of daily
operation of the corporate internal control. The Board, and
senior managements assure that there is no false,
misleading statement or significant omission in the report,
and assume several and joint legal liability on the truth,
correctness and completeness of the report.

The corporate internal control is conducted to properly
assure the legal compliance of operation and management,
assets safety, truth and completeness of financial statement
and relevant information, to improve the operation
efficiency and effectiveness and accelerate to realize our
development strategy. Due to the inherent restriction of
internal control, it only provides reasonable assurance for
above purpose. In addition, as any change of circumstance
may cause improper risk appraisal and internal control or
low compliance degree on the control policy and procedure,
thus to predict future effectiveness of the internal control
basing on internal control appraisal may bring risk to some
extent.
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Risk Identification and Risk Analysis

Scope of internal control appraisal

In accordance with enterprise development condition in
2018 and new trend of social policy and regulation,
businesses and items involved in this appraisal comprise
development strategy, human resource, social responsibility,
enterprise culture, capital event, procurement, assets
management, business event, research and development,
construction, guarantee business, outsourcing business,
financial management, budget management, contract
management, internal information transmission, information
system, and environmental factor; and high risk areas with
attention mainly include business management risk, financial
management risk, labor management risk, production
management risk, inventory risk, sale risk and major
decision legal risk.

Risk level identification

The Company leverages on risk matrix method to identify
risk level by categories. Through risk matrix, loss caused by
risk event is categorized to six levels, and the possibility of
risk event is also correspondingly categorized to six levels.
With loss level in line of table and possibility level in row of
table, to assign figures of 6-1 score according to the
degree from high to low, and then categorize risk level
basing on figures calculated by multiplying such
corresponding figures of intersection point. Following risk
matrix table shows: 1-2 score represents low risk, 3-8 score
represents general risk, 9-16 score represents moderate
risk, 18-25 score represents significant risk, 30-36 score
represents especially serious risk.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Significant risk categories and summary 3 EAXEKERHEMHM
According to feedbacks on our internal control KEBEAERERE BT FKE

questionnaires and by ways of interviewing with our
president group, monitoring risk indexes and others, the
following nine risks were identified as significant risks of
the Group during the period from 1 January 2018 to 31

December 2018, for which we need to adopt efficient risk HEBREZEFE-
management and control measures.

Bk URERERERSETER ¥
AL TOERER AEE —F— \F—
A—BE-Z-N\F+-A=+—

FHRSANER FEXRBER

Risk Risk description Assignment
Rk EB B B 48 mE

China-US trade friction |The “America First” idea put forward by the Trump Administration and a series of trade protection |30
hEXEZEBER and trade sanction activities have resulted in repeated trade frictions between China and the United [Especially serious

States, which will exist for a long time in the future. The largest customer of China Ting originated
from the United States, accounting for 46.0% of China Ting's total trade. Therefore, if the
instabilities continue to last in China-US trade activities, the continued stability of China Ting's
business will be materially affected.
HESHEBARINEZEEEIBER-RIESRENEHHRTY 5T EXEHERTE
RE UBESERERFEAFE MESEANTPRFENER HELEFEFENL6.0%
AP EB SN I RBETERRBETENREVEESEBORETR -

risk

BBl E KR B

Weak operating
capability in new retail

HEEEERIRS

The size of China’s new retail market represented by e-commerce was expected to exceed RMB37
trillion in 2018, of which apparel e-commerce was expected to exceed RMB1 trillion. Statistics show
that more than 40% of China’s top 100 apparel e-commerce companies are those newly established
in the past three years, and e-commerce is the most promising part of the China’s apparel stock
market. Since the launch of the e-commerce business segment in 2012, China Ting has not
experienced explosive growth in scale and is losing its competitive advantage in the new retail
market.

FRAEFRABARRNITEN S T - \FRARBARBIZER/ T AP REEH A BB
ARBIBELT S BERPEREEE10052 D BiBA0%REAIFHRIHNE  EFEHBEILFE
REFETHSTREXRSRERRNTS MERE T _FRPEFABEBRBAR - RE
BREIARENER EEREHNTETBHOREES -

30
Especially serious
risk

BRI E KA B

Weak operating China Ting will construct a great number of properties in 2019 for the creation of a fashion industry |20
capability of industrial | complex. The construction of a great number of buildings has brought new challenges to China Ting | Significant risk
park in terms of the investment attraction capability, property support capability and complex operating EW N
EEWEELENRS capability of the industrial park, which is a brand new business field for China Ting. If China Ting is

not well prepared with comprehensive capabilities, it will face the risks of excessive capital investment

and long payback period.

EOBR - T-NAFREAZ-AUVEAREERHNEEFSRE ASEFNEEHELNEER

BRED MEIHENNGARELENIRETEFNZER RER2TNEBEL - TSN 2

FRIRE N EH BEESEARESRABK BRI BROAMRK -
Continued reduction in | With the surging increase in labor cost in Jiangsu, Zhejiang and Shanghai, and the back-flow of 18
the number of front-line [young and middle-aged laborers caused by the great efforts exerted by the traditional labor output |Significant risk
technicians provinces in developing local economy in recent years, the inflow of front-line employees experienced | & X & &
—REME TRHERD a continuous decline in Jiangsu, Zhejiang and Shanghai. As such, the problem of labor shortage has

now seriously affected the continuation of China Ting’s labor-intensive business in Jiangsu and

Zhejiang.

IHBHEBINAER LA HUERARERLEBREEEOFRBERNBRABERE BREAE

FEHH F/RINEHMR - REINTAERETE AIRHARTELARENVEINTES

EESHTERNELE T IDROSELER -
Significant fluctuations of | Since February 2017, the RMB exchange rate has experienced a continuous appreciation for 14 18
RMB exchange rate months, with an increase of 11.2%, an unprecedented rate of appreciation rarely seen before. Significant risk
ARBERXREERD However, in the second half, the RMB exchange rate turned sharply downward and rapidly BREB

depreciated by over 10%, causing simultaneously a panic in the market. The significant fluctuations of
RMB exchange rate in recent years have brought difficulties to China Ting in terms of foreign
exchange management because of its focus on the trade activities with U.S. players.
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Risk Management and Improvement
Report

Risk management summary

The Group’s business and market are both at risk. Facing
constant change of market, we need to continuously
identify and control relevant risks, so as to decrease,
transfer, prevent or master risks. Therefore, we need to
adopt scientific measures to actively carry out
comprehensive and in-depth analysis, and implement an
efficient structure of corporate risk management. In respect
of strategy, the Group focuses on identifying and managing
significant risks that may affect the Group, business and
functions, so as to realize the Group’s strategy and business
target. In seeking growth opportunities, the Group will aim
at optimizing risk and return decision mechanism and
establishing strong and independent approval procedures. In
respect of operation, the Group aims at being able to
identify, analyze and appraise management harm and risk to
provide safe, healthy, effective and environmental friendly
working condition for employees; to ensure public safety
and health and at the same time minimize the impact on
the environment.

Significant risk indexes supervision and control
The Company has set up supervision indexes for each risk
identified and conducts closed supervision for the indexes.
A risk will highly likely occur when corresponding indexes
go beyond warning scope. In order to prevent risk or try to
decrease the probability of risk as much as possible, the
Company has pre-formulated relevant risk control measures
against each risk identified, so as to minimize the
probability of the risk occurred.

In terms of nine risks identified in this internal control
survey of the Group, we suggest following risk supervision
indexes and actively cope with such risks, expecting to
realize the basic objective of controlling risks, avoiding risks
or minimizing damage brought by such risks.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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tERREREERNIES RE

Risk Risk supervision index Risk control measures

ABREB RBREZER B E G

China-US trade friction International economic development Paying close attention to the releases of
hEESER B % 45 75 B A international and domestic governments, and timely

Economic development of Trump Administration
B E BUR S E By e

Economic development of China’s government
R B B AR 07 B A

adjusting the Company’s operation strategy
FORIRRBEABAEG  REFEQAEES
B

Vigorously developing global and domestic
customers to reduce the dependence on the US
market

RNBRZ2BRERATP RO EHER —Hi5
#4K FE E

Establishing new processing bases in Vietnam and
other places to get prepared in case of the
escalation of China-US trade friction
EMESHETFOMIEN UAHILPERSE
B R

Weak operating
capability in new retail

HEEEERIRS

International and domestic new retail reports
BHREAMTERS

The Group’s report on new retail performance
SEHTEXERS

Competency assessment of the Group’s new retail team

SEHNTEBBKE N TG

Strengthening the construction of the Group’s new
retail team

MAEBEHTEBMBERRINNE

Putting more efforts on the exploration of Group’s
new retail channels
MAEEMTERBFAANNE

Deeply exploring big data and using big data to
improve the working capabilities in product design,
product promotion, product pricing and inventory
clearing, etc.

FREZEABERES  FMARBURRSERR
ERERE EREE EFBFEEHIEMIFEEN
Improving brand operation ability in the era of
informatization

RAGEEBROREEERLD

Weak operating
capability of industrial
park
EENXELENRS

Report on the industrial plant lease market
ITEBFEHETSRE

Making full use of the resources inside and outside
the Group, enhancing market exploration, and

Report of the Group on the internal control over leased properties | attracting high-quality customers

SEREMENERS

EDFBEBRNINER  MATSRANE  #B5l
BEEP AR

Improving internal property service and property
management capabilities, improving customer
satisfaction, and making full use of word-of-mouth
marketing
TENBMERBANYEEEZR N REAREP
HmEE - oA 0L

Striving for government support to provide better
preferential policies and financial subsidies for the
investment attraction in the industrial park
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CEREREEEANIZEN RS

Risk Risk supervision index

mBER R ERER

Risk control measures

B B R

Continued reduction in | Statistics on the number of staff

the number of front-line | & T A 8415t 8k

technicians Statistics on the age structure of staff
—BRBEME THFRL B I FRAEBRBUE

Statistics on the technical capabilities of staff
B T il 58 st Bug

Analysis on staff turnover

BT RABRDW

Establishing excellent internal incentive mechanism
and promotion mechanism to retain outstanding
talents of the Company

BEBORRAERSE - B BERARE
FEAA

Establishing a directed talent delivery mechanism
with vocational and technical schools

BB RN BRET AL EREXES
Establishing a directed talent delivery mechanism
with poor areas in central and western areas

B3 A 7 50 B R 3 [ 3 2 A A E (7] 6 K A

Fully demonstrating the feasibility of industrial
transfer to relocate the production base to more
suitable areas

ROWMBEXEBOATE  BEEEMKRESE
A i =

Significant fluctuations of | Expectations of forward exchange rate
RMB exchange rate & &= M 1B 8

ARBERRBERD Real-time exchange rate quotations
EXREREE

Monitoring of international financial events

BEEREREMESE

Stopping entering into new foreign exchange
contracts with banks
LiERIETHEFNINEESR

Regularly assessing the RMB exchange rates and
taking appropriate measures based on the degree of
risk

IR AR IE KA R R E B A2 SRR AR
SN

Vigorously developing domestic business to reduce
the impact of foreign exchange fluctuations on the
Company'’s results

ANBERBNER - LURDIMNEREH QA EEY
&

Continuous improvement measures

Internal Control and Risk Management Committee and the
Board will finalize and issue the risk management manual,
and further enhance measures to cope with risks. Internal
Control and Risk Management Committee promotes the risk
management in other business process, and gradually
manage such risks in order from high to low. Person in
charge of relevant risk constantly supervises the
effectiveness of measures on risk warning indexes and risks
identified, so as to control risks in a reasonable and timely
way. To establish regular risk management report
mechanism, and regularly report risk management to the
Board and Audit Committee. The Board of the Group is
fully liable for maintaining completed and effective internal
supervision and risk management procedure, and will also
include the risk management in strategy development,
business plan, capital allocation, investment decision on
internal supervision and daily operation.

Conclusion

Based on the results of the internal control review for the
year ended 31 December 2018 and the assessment of the
Audit Committee thereon, no significant deficiency in risk
management and internal controls systems are noted. The
Board therefore is satisfied that appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems have been
maintained for the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the
audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31 December
2018.

Principal Business Activities

The principal business activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal business activities of the subsidiaries of the
Company are set forth in note 9 to the financial statements.

The Group's principal business activities during the financial year ended
31 December 2018 were garment manufacturing for export, retailing
branded fashion apparel and property investment in Mainland China.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the financial year ended 31
December 2018 by business and geographical segments is set out in
note 5 to the financial statements.

Business Review

Details of the activities during the year as required by Schedule 5 to the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including fair review of the Group’s
business, a description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future development in the Group's
business, are set out in the sections “Chairman’s Statement” on pages
10-13, “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 14-23 and
Corporate Risk Management and Internal Control Report on pages 43—
48 of this Annual Report.

Environmental policies of the Group is to maintaining the highest
environmental standards to ensure sustainable development of its business,
with compliance of all relevant laws and regulations having significant
impact on the Group in relation to its business including health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment.

Subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as of 31 December
2018 are set forth in note 9 to the financial statements.

Results and Appropriations

The Group’s consolidated results for the financial year ended 31
December 2018 are set forth in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on pages 73 and 74 of this annual report.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018.
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Report of the Directors
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Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 198 and 199 of this
report.

Borrowings
Details of the borrowings of the Group are set forth in Note 23 to the
financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

No new shares or share options were issued during the year. Details of
shares issued by the Company are set forth in note 19 to the financial
statements.

Principal Properties

Details of the principal properties held for investment purpose are set
out on note 7 to the financial statements. Further details of the Group’s
investment properties are set out on page 200 of this annual report.

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2018, the Company's reserves available for
distributions amounted to HK$1,532.3 million comprising share premium,
contributed surplus and retained earnings.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the financial year ended 31 December 2018, sales made to the
Group's top five customers and the largest customer accounted for
approximately 33.9% and 13.9% of the total sales. The Group
purchased less than 30.0% of its goods and services from its five largest
suppliers.

At no time during the year did the Directors, their close associates or
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) have any beneficial interest in
the Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

Relationship with Customers, Suppliers and

Employees

The Group values relationships with, and have been maintaining good
its customers, raw material and garment
manufacturing suppliers and the employees of the Group. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, there were no material dispute between
the Group and its customers, suppliers and employees.

relationships with
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Environmental Policy and Performance

The Company has always been closely communicating with its
stakeholders, actively responding to their needs, and taking those into
consideration during corporate strategy formulation and decision making
process. The Company sees sustainable development as the key for a
corporation to succeed and therefore, it aims to seek a win-win situation
for the Group, society and environment by balancing between the
creation of economic value and the impact on the environment.

The Group strictly complies with various national environmental
protection laws and regulations. It has implemented a series of measures
to alleviate environmental impacts of weaving, dyeing and garment
manufacturing. The Group has established rules for pollutant control and
waste disposal, including airborne dust and sewage during the process of
dyeing and manufacturing; electricity consumption has been reduced by
improving the Group’s facilities and technologies, thereby controlling
greenhouse gas emission; the Group supports green operations and
encourages its employees to adopt environmentally friendly working
habit. For further information about the Company’s environmental
performance during the year, please refer to the Company’s separate
Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be issued by the
Company. The report will be available on the Stock Exchange's website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s website after its publication.

Compliance with laws and Regulations

The Group and its activities are subject to requirements under various
laws. These include, among others, the Work Safety Law of the PRC*
("thEEANRKEME L 2HEL"), Labour Law of the PRC* (“FriiE A R4t
ME & E)3%"), Environmental Protection Law of the PRC* ("2 A R+
MBEIRFEREL"), Labour Contract Law of the PRC* (" FEE A R HEFEH
)4 [JE"), Regulations of the PRC on Prohibiting the Use of Child
Labour* (“ZE |H{#E A E LA E "), Fire Protection Law of the PRC* ("
EFAREMEER L"), Law of the PRC on Wholly Foreign-Owned
Enterprises* (A #E AR EMBIINE B ZE") and Law of the PRC on
Enterprise Income Tax* ("HFZEARZLMBECEMBRIE") and the
applicable regulations, guidelines and policies issued or promulgated
under or in connection with these statutes. In addition, the Listing Rules
also apply to the Company. The Company seeks to ensure compliance
with these requirements through various measures such as internal
controls, trainings and oversight of various business units at different
levels of the Group. The Group highly values the importance of ensuring
compliance with applicable legal and regulatory requirements.

During the year, as far as the Company is aware, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with applicable laws, rules and regulations
by the Group that have significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.
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Directors
The Directors of the Company during the financial year ended 31
December 2018 and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. TING Man Yi (Chairman)

Mr. TING Hung Yi (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. DING lJianer

Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. CHENG Chi Pang

Mr. WONG Chi Keung

Mr. LEUNG Man Kit

In accordance with article 87 of the Company’s Articles of Association,
Mr. TING Man Yi, Mr. DING lJianer and Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter will
retire and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the

forthcoming annual general meeting (the “Annual General Meeting”).

Change in Information of Directors

The change in the information of the Directors of the Company, which
is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing
Rules is set out below:

Name of Director Details of changes

Executive Directors:

Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter Entitled to an allocated monthly salary, based on
services rendered to the Group, in an amount of
HK$118,000 commencing from January 2019.

Independent Non-Executive Director:
Mr. WONG Chi Keung Resigned as an independent non-executive director
and a member of each of the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination
committee of China Shanshui Cement with effect
from 23 May 2018

Mr. LEUNG Man Kit

Resigned as an executive director of Unitas
Holdings with effect from 30 November 2018.

Resigned as an independent non-executive director,
a member of the nomination and remuneration
committee, and the chairman of the financial
management and audit committee of China
Huiyuan with effect from 25 January 2019
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Save as disclosed above, there is no other information required to be
disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules. The updated
biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set out in the
preceding section headed “Directors and Senior Management”.

Confirmation of Independence of

Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company received from each of Mr. CHENG Chi Pang, Mr. WONG
Chi Keung and Mr. LEUNG Man Kit a confirmation of their
independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers all of them to be independent.

Directors’ and Senior Management'’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of the
Group are set forth on pages 24 to 30 of this report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

The annual salary and bonus of each of Mr. TING Man Yi, Mr. TING
Hung Yi, Mr. DING lJianer and Mr. CHEUNG Ting Yin, Peter for the
financial year ended 31 December 2018 was HK$3.0 million, HK$3.0
million, HK$2.1 million, and HK$1.5 million, respectively. The annual
salary and bonus of each executive Director shall be recommended by
the Remuneration Committee and decided by the Board and subject to
the annual review by the Remuneration Committee of the Company,
provided that any increment shall not be more than 15% of the annual
salary received by each executive Director for the immediate preceding
year.

Each of the executive Directors is also entitled to a management bonus,
the amount of which is determined with reference to the audited
consolidated net profits of the Group after taxation and minority
interests but before extraordinary items (the “Net Profits”) as the Board
may, in its absolute discretion, approve, provided that the aggregate
amount of the management bonus payable to all executive Directors in
respect of any financial year shall not exceed 4% of the Net Profits for
the relevant financial year.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a letter of
appointment dated 18 November 2017 with the Company under which
each of them has agreed to act as an independent non-executive
Director for a period of three years, commencing from 18 November
2017, unless terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions
specified therein. The initial annual fee payable to Mr. WONG Chi
Keung, Mr. CHENG Chi Pang and Mr. LEUNG Man Kit is HK$360,000,
HK$240,000 and HK$240,000, respectively.
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Save as mentioned above, none of the independent non-executive
Directors is expected to receive any other remuneration for holding their
office as an independent non-executive Director. Save as disclosed
above, there is no service contract, which is not determinable by the
Company or its subsidiaries within one vyear without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation), entered into with any
of the executive Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements and contracts that are
significant in relation to the Company’s

business

Except for the continuing connected transactions disclosed on pages 59
to 61 of this report, no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company's business to which the Company
was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year (2017: Nil).

Emolument Policy of the Group
The Company’s policies concerning remuneration of the Directors are as
follows:

(i) the amount of remuneration is recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and decided by the Board on the basis of the relevant
executive Director’s experience, responsibility, workload and the
time devoted to the Group;

(ii) non-cash benefits may be provided to the executive Directors under
their remuneration package; and

(iii) ~ the Directors may be granted, at the discretion of the Board with
the endorsement of the Remuneration Committee of the Board,
options pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the
Company, as part of their remuneration package.

The emolument policy of the Group is aimed at attracting, retaining and
motivating talented individuals. The principle is to have performance
based remuneration which reflects market standards. The employee's
remuneration packages are generally determined based on their job
nature and position with reference to market standards. Employees also
receive certain welfare benefits. The Group’s emolument policy will be
adjusted depending on a number of factors, including changes to the
market practice and stages of the Group’s business development, so as
to achieve the Group's operational targets.
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Interests and/or Short Positions of Directors
and Chief Executive in the Shares,
Underlying Shares or Debentures of the

Company and its Associated Corporations

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO™)) which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they are taken or deemed to have taken
under such provisions), or were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register required to be maintained, or were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

(@) Interests in the Shares of the Company
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(@) RELDIAROHER

Approximate percentage of

Name of Directors Capacity Number of shares interest in the Company*
EBHE g4 ;i gvik =] HEATREZBMAOET D L
(Note 1)
(B &E1)
Mr. TING Man Yi Interest of controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
THRRE RESEAE S (Note 2)
(M &E2)
Mr. TING Hung Yi Interest of controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
THER KA REGEAE S (Note 3)
(M 5E3)
Mr. DING lJianer Interest of controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
TEREE REHAE S (Note 4)
(M 5x4)
Mr. CHENG Chi Pang Directly beneficially owned 200,000 (L) 0.01%
5 NS %k & BERERER
Mr. WONG Chi Keung Directly beneficially owned 1,000,000 (L) 0.05%
BT AE BERERER
# The approximate percentage of interest in the Company is based on the issued # ERARERBAOB DL NREARBNR T —

share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2018.
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Notes:

P==3
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The letter “L” stands for the Director’s long position in the shares.

Longerview Investments Limited (“Longerview”) is owned as to 41.5% by
Firmsuccess Limited (“Firmsuccess”) which is wholly-owned by Mr. TING Man Yi.
Longerview is a controlled corporation (within the meaning of the SFO) of Mr.
TING Man Yi. As such, under the SFO, Mr. TING Man Yi is deemed to be
interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview.

Longerview is owned as to 40.5% by In Holdings Limited (“In Holdings”) which
is wholly-owned by Mr. TING Hung Yi. Longerview is a controlled corporation
(within the meaning of the SFO) of Mr. TING Hung Yi. As such, under the SFO,
Mr. TING Hung Yi is deemed to be interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held
by Longerview.

Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated 18 November 2005 and entered
into between Mr. TING Man Yi, Firmsuccess, Mr. TING Hung Yi, In Holdings,
Mr. DING Jianer, Willport Investments Limited (“Willport”) and Longerview
(collectively the “Controlling Shareholders”), each of the Controlling
Shareholders (other than Longerview) has agreed to enter into pre-emptive
arrangements in respect of their shareholding in Longerview. For the purpose of
Part XV of the SFO, each of Mr. TING Man Yi, Mr. TING Hung Yi and Mr.
DING Jianer is therefore deemed to have effective voting power in respect of
the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview. As such, under the SFO, Mr.
DING Jianer is also deemed to be interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held
by Longerview.
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(b)

Interests in the Shares of Associated Corporations
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(b) RABEEERD MBS

Name of Approximate percentage
associated of interest in the
Name of Directors corporation Nature of interest Number of shares associated corporation
h R L E R
EEpE B EEEE ERtMtE R4 & E BMABDL
Mr. TING Man Yi Firmsuccess Personal interest 1 100%
THREE 18 A 25
Longerview Corporate interest 415 (Note 1) 41.5%
EEEE (BH&E1)
Mr. TING Hung Yi In Holdings Personal interest 1 100%
THER KA 18 A 25
Longerview Corporate interest 405 (Note 2) 40.5%
EE R (Bt 5x2)
Mr. DING Jianer Willport Personal interest 1 100%
TEREAE PN 3
Longerview Corporate interest 180 (Note 3) 18.0%
EEEE (Bt 5E3)
Notes: B 5t
1 The 415 shares in Longerview are held by Firmsuccess, which is wholly-owned 1 Firmsuccess#¥ 4 Longerview #9415/ fix {3 - T &
by Mr. TING Man Yi. 58 5% 4 Bll & & ¥ A Firmsuccess °
2 The 405 shares in Longerview are held by In Holdings, which is wholly-owned 2 In Holdings#% A Longerview #4058 i {5 + T 4 /R
by Mr. TING Hung Yi. S HE Rl 2 & ¥ BIn Holdings ©
3 The 180 shares in Longerview are held by Willport, which is wholly-owned by 3 Willport#5 % Longerview #] 1808 i £+ T 12 52 56

Mr. DING Jianer.

A4 R 2 & B B Willport ©
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Substantial Shareholders’ Interests and/or
Short Positions in the Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2018, the persons,
other than Directors and chief executive of the Company, having
interests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares or
debentures of the Company, which were required to be entered into the
register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO, were
as follows:

Name of substantial

FERRRADARG KBERK
DHEENEZER KR

BEEMAM R-Z-N\F+-_A=+—H0 R
ARRAR P HEAROREEE D EAERIX
B MREESRBEGRIFEIBMRAZTLRA

FHENELCMANAL(UIFEEHAR
BITBRAB)IWT :

Approximate percentage of

shareholders Capacity Number of shares interest in the Company

TERRER 565 RO #E EERABAEERNES
(Note 1)
(B 5E1)

Longerview Beneficial owner 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
Em#A A (Note 2)
(Ff&E2)

Firmsuccess Interest of controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
ZEHEEER (Note 2)
(Fft&E2)

In Holdings Interest of controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
ZEHEEER (Note 3)
(P 5E3)

Willport Interest of controlled corporation 1,490,000,000 (L) 70.96%
ZEHEEER (Note 4)
(Fft 5x4)

Notes:
1 The letter “L" stands for the substantial shareholders’ long position in the shares.
2 Longerview is owned as to 41.5% by Firmsuccess. As such, Longerview is a controlled

corporation (within the meaning of the SFO) of Firmsuccess. Firmsuccess is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview.

3 Longerview is owned as to 40.5% by In Holdings. As such, Longerview is a controlled
corporation (within the meaning of the SFO) of In Holdings. In Holdings is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview.

4 Pursuant to a shareholders’ agreement dated 18 November 2005 and entered into
between the Controlling Shareholders, each of the Controlling Shareholders (other than
Longerview) has agreed to enter into pre-emptive arrangements in respect of their
shareholding in Longerview. For the purpose of Part XV of the SFO, each of
Firmsuccess, In Holdings and Willport is therefore deemed to have effective voting
power in respect of the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview. As such, Willport is
also deemed to be interested in the 1,490,000,000 shares held by Longerview.
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Directors’ and Controlling Shareholders’

Interest in Competing Business

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors and their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the controlling shareholders
of the Company (as defined in the Listing Rules) had any interest in a
business, which competes or may compete with the business of the
Group.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the year ended 31 December 2018, appropriate insurance
covering for the Directors’ and senior management'’s liabilities arising out
of activities of the Group has been arranged by the Company. As of the
date of this annual report, such insurance covering remained effective.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or any of its
subsidiaries of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31
December 2018.

Model Code for Directors’ Securities

Transaction

Details of compliance by the Directors with the Model Code are set forth
in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 31 to 42 of this Annual
Report.

Continuing Connected Transaction

Particulars of Transaction

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered into a
non-exempt continuing connected transaction (as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 20 December 2016). A supply
contract dated 20 December 2016 was entered into between Hangzhou
Huasheng Accessories Company Limited (“Huasheng Accessories”) and
various members of the Group for a period from 1 January 2017 to 31
December 2019, whereby Huasheng Accessories has undertaken to
supply to members of the Group the required plastic bags and hangers
at such prices which are not higher than the prices offered to
independent third parties after taking into consideration the prevailing
market rates for providing similar products from time to time. For the
year ended 31 December 2018, the aggregate purchase of plastic bags
and hangers by the Group from Huasheng Accessories amounted to
HK$7.1 million (2017: HK$6.7 million) which was below the annual cap
of HK$25.5 million.
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A factory lease agreement dated 1 June 2017 (as supplemented by a
supplemental agreement dated 29 March 2018) (the “Factory Lease
Agreement”) and a machinery lease agreement dated 1 June 2017 (the
“Machinery Lease Agreement”) were entered into between Dingyuan
(Hangzhou) Textile Technology Limited (“Dingyuan”) and China Ting
Woollen Textile Company Limited (“Huabeina”), a member of the Group.
Under the Factory Lease Agreement, Huabeina agreed to lease to
Dingyuan a portion of a factory building for a period from 1 June 2017
to 31 December 2019. The annual rental for the leased factory will be
determined by the actual gross area provided by Huabeina to Dingyuan
with rental payment is fixed at RMB120 per square meter. Under the
Machinery Lease Agreement, Huabeina agreed to lease the textile waste
processing machinery to Dingyuan and the actual rental for the leased
machinery is fixed at RMB5.5 million (approximately HK$6.3 million) for
a period from 1 June 2017 to 31 December 2019. Such leases were
terminated in August 2018. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
aggregate amount receivable by Huabeina from Dingyuan under the
leases was HK$4.7 million (2017: HK$4.9 million).

Information on Connected Person

Huasheng Accessories

Huasheng Accessories is a company established in the PRC with limited
liability. Huasheng Accessories is owned as to 25% by Hong Kong
Fuhowe and as to 75% by Mr. MO lJiangtao, who is the brother-in-law
of Ms. ZHOU Shi Min. Ms. ZHOU is the spouse of Mr. DING lJianer, an
executive Director, and thus, a connected person as defined under Rule
14A.11(4) of the Listing Rules. Therefore, Huasheng Accessories is an
associate of a connected person of the Company pursuant to Rule 1.01
of the Listing Rules.

Dingyuan

Dingyuan is a company established in the PRC with limited liability.
Dingyuan is owned as to 2.5% by EBZREXERAF and as to
97.5% by #7125 AR 8 G R 2 8] which is owned by Ms. SHEN Xuan.
Ms. SHEN is the niece of Mr. TING Man Yi, the Chairman and an
executive Director and thus, a deemed connected person as defined
under Rule 14A.21(1)(b) of the Listing Rules.

Confirmations

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the above non-
exempt continuing connected transactions of the Group and have
confirmed that these transactions have been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(ii) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from independent third parties;

(iii)  in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the

shareholders of the Company as a whole; and

(iv)  have not exceeded the respective cap amounts set out in the
relevant agreements referred to above.
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The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’'s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
issued his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by the Group
on pages 59-61 of the Annual Report in accordance with paragraph
14A. 56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Related Parties Transaction

Details of the related party transactions undertaken by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in Note 34 to the
financial statements.

The purchases of accessories from Huasheng Accessories, being the
significant related party transactions of the Group, constitute continuing
connected transactions of the Group. The disclosure requirements in
respect of these continuing connected transactions have been complied
with in accordance with the Listing Rules. Save for the aforementioned,
other related party transactions as set out in Note 34 to the financial
statements did not constitute connected transactions/continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, at
least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by the
public.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee, comprising three
independent non-executive Directors, and has adopted terms of
reference which are in compliance with the Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review financial information of the
Group, make recommendation on the external auditor and supervise the
financial reporting process and internal control system of the Group and
to provide comments and advice to the Board. The Audit Committee has
reviewed the audited financial statements of the Company and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year
ended 31 December 2018.

Auditor

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On Behalf of the Board
TING Man Yi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
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To the Shareholders of China Ting Group Holdings Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Qualified Opinion

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Ting Group Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on
pages 71 to 197, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include

a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our qualified opinion

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matter described in
the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the consolidated
financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

As discussed in note 16 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group held financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$289 million (“FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran”) as at 31 December 2018
with respect to Zhejiang Haoran Property Company Limited (“Zhejiang
Haoran”), representing the Group’s equity interests in, shareholder’s
loans and advances granted to Zhejiang Haoran. The Group is continuing
to seek for recovery of a portion of the shareholder’s loan and advance
to Zhejiang Haoran and to enforce its right as a shareholder of Zhejiang
Haoran to access the books and records of Zhejiang Haoran through
legal proceedings.

In assessing the fair value of FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran as at 31
December 2018, management adopted the adjusted net asset value
("Adjusted NAV") approach to estimate the fair value of FVPL in
Zhejiang Haoran, which was described in notes 4(a) and 16(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements. However, the Group was unable to
obtain any financial information of Zhejiang Haoran as at and for the
year ended 31 December 2018 due to the court judgement and further
appeals. As such, the fair value of FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran as at 31
December 2018 was estimated by management using the Adjusted NAV
approach based on Zhejiang Haoran’s financial information as at 31
December 2016, which was its latest financial information available to
the Group. A number of assumptions were adopted using Zhejiang
Haoran’s financial information as at 31 December 2016 to arrive at the
estimated fair value as at 31 December 2018, the details of which were
described in note 16(ii) to the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, having obtained advice from the Group’s legal counsel and
after considering the merits and basis of the legal proceedings between
Zhejiang Haoran and the Group, despite of the appeals as referred in
note 16(ii) to the consolidated financial statements lodged by the Group
being dismissed by the relevant court, the directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the Group will be successful in the forthcoming legal
proceedings. Thus, the directors of the Company considered that it is
appropriate the assumptions and basis applied in the fair value
assessment of the FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran that such financial assets will
be realised in the coming twelve months from 31 December 2018.
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As at the date of this report, the outcomes of legal proceedings
between Zhejiang Haoran and the Group are uncertain. We were unable
to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidences we considered necessary
to assess management’s valuation and classification of the FVPL in
Zhejiang Haoran as at 31 December 2018, including a written opinion
from the Group’s legal counsel in relation to the likelihood of success of
the legal proceedings and the probabilities of any other outcomes, the
latest financial information of Zhejiang Haoran, a valuation from an
independent valuer on the relevant property owned by Zhejiang Haoran,
and direct access to the management of Zhejiang Haoran to assess the
appropriateness of the financial information, the assumptions and the
basis adopted by management in their assessment of the fair value of
FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran. Given the scope limitation, there were no other
satisfactory audit procedures that we could perform to determine
whether any adjustments to the carrying value of the FVPL in Zhejiang
Haoran as at 31 December 2018 were necessary, and whether the
classification of FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran as current assets was
appropriate.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the Basis for
Qualified Opinion section, key audit matters identified in our audit are
summarised as follows:

° Impairment assessment of entrusted loans

° Impairment of trade receivables

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Key Audit Matters

BEEITEE

Impairment assessment of entrusted loans
LB AR E T

Refer to notes 2.13(d), 4(b) and 15 to the consolidated
financial statements

2GR E M B wmE 2 M 552.13(d) ~ 4(b) K15

The Group entered into two secured entrusted loans, Entrusted
Loan A and B, with principals of RMB30 million and RMB130
million, respectively, through its lending agents, Bank of
Communications Limited, Zhejiang Branch (“BOCOM”) and
Ningbo Bank Corporation (“NBC"). As at 31 December 2018,
the carrying value of the Entrusted Loans A and B, net of
provision for impairment, are HK$18 million and HK$148
million, respectively. The borrowers of the Entrusted Loans A
and B (“Borrowers A and B”) have both failed to settle the
interests and principals in accordance with the agreed payment
schedules since 2014 and subsequently filed voluntary
bankruptcy. BOCOM and NBC, as the lending agents acting on
behalf of the Group, then entered into civil claim mediation
agreements with the Borrowers A and B under the People’s
Court of Yuhang District (“Court”), Hangzhou, during the year
ended 31 December 2014. According to the mediation
agreements, BOCOM and NBC have the legal rights to claim
and priority on the claim over the pledged collaterals. The
bankruptcy proceedings have been ongoing since early 2015.

EXEFERAERRECGBRITRMARRRNIE DR
BIRTTHLI DT RERRITRO AR A A ([ERRIT) AT
TTMOBEREZTEET  ZXERAKB AR AAR
HIEB TR ARKIB0BEET RZE-—N\F+ZA=+—
H ZRXEFRAKBHERHERREEED I RIBAEEBTR
148E BB - TEERARBRIERA ([ERAAKB ) KA
BEEZZT-—NFNLEBENKFRARBEMNERES - WH
RIEHBRKE KK EXETENERREZBRITRG
BRABMIEDTTRERRITROERARF - BEEREERA
ARBREBEMM M tAME AR ER (DERDRE8E —T—MmMF
TZAST - HBLEFEITLTREABE - REARE - @
WITHMIDTHRERRTAERBREEMNER @ L HZ R
REBAE - WERFE - hFEFRHRMBILDEETH -

Independent Auditor’s Report
B L% BN RS

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
EPNESFTNAEERRETSH

We obtained and reviewed the entrusted loan
agreements for both Entrusted Loans A and B, which
stated the lender’s right in case of default.
BMEEFIEZEETERARBNZREERHZ - H
B SRR RAZREF -

We obtained and inspected the certificate of other’s
right of the pledged assets which showed that the
properties and land were pledged to BOCOM and NBC
respectively. We also reviewed the civil claim mediation
agreements issued by the Court which stated that the
entrusted banks of the Group have the legal rights to
claim and priority on the claim for the pledged
collaterals. We noted it is consistent with management
representation that no other creditor has any priority
right over such pledged assets based on the audit
evidence obtained.
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Key Audit Matters

BERETER

Management assessed the recoverability of Entrusted Loans A
and B by engaging an independent valuer to perform valuation
of the pledged collaterals, including certain properties pledged
for Entrusted Loan A and a parcel of land located in Hangzhou
pledged for Entrusted Loan B, using direct comparison
approach. Key underlying parameters used in the valuation are
the recent selling prices of comparable market transactions.
EREEBTREBIAEMBEEMNERR (RFEFTE
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) 5 F B % L BOE E 7 b B 2R AT 14 & 55 & SRAKBEY Al [ Ue
Mo BEREEANBEREBL2H/ATELBRMSER I KA
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We focus on this area due to the magnitude of the entrusted
loans balances and the significant judgements made by
management in estimating the fair value of the pledged
collaterals.
BMEITZBOREREXERBRENREREERE TR
EIR AR A T EED R E A A -
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
EMANEBEANEERRENEH

We performed land search for the pledged collaterals
to confirm the ownership and existence as at 31
December 2018.
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We obtained from management the legal opinion
issued by an external PRC lawyer as the audit evidence
to support the Group's legal right and priority over the
claim of the collaterals pledged for Entrusted Loans A
and B through its lending agents. We have also
evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the lawyer.
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In addition, we held discussions with the lawyer as
well as the trustee of the bankruptcy to understand
the legality of the Group’s priority right and the latest
development of the bankruptcy proceedings to
understand if there is any foreseen difficulties in
exercising the Group’s right.
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We assessed the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent valuer. We involved our
internal valuation specialists in our discussion with
management and independent valuer to understand
the rationale of the valuation method and the
parameters used to assess the fair value of the
collaterals, based on which we assessed the
appropriateness of such methodology and parameters.
We also compared the recent selling prices of
comparable market transactions with the market data,
including the latest selling prices of comparable land
and properties’ sale transactions and the local property
price index.

B ETELAEMNERE 8 h RETEME - &M
FBAREEER2E T EEIRE RE (G ERZ
NEBREFERBEREZZEARRER2E - UETGE
ERmOATE ER BPFETZERERZ
Brea@lt BMTERTSEBELERAIELERTS
RGZEEER PRERAEKRIMRYEHRERS
PEHEBREMYEBIRIER -

We consider the impairment assessment of the
entrusted loans was supportable by the available
evidence.

BHMBREXERZBEFEX SRR X -



Key Audit Matters

BEEITEE

Impairment of trade receivables

JEY B 5 AR 56 18

Refer to notes 3.1(d), 4(b) and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements

FEL2HRE VBRI E ) ~ 4b)&X15

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had gross trade
receivables of HK$529 million and provision for impairment of
trade receivables of HK$66 million.
RZEBE-NF+ZA=+—H EKEZEFRKREBESERIE
FMOOE BB T RERE ZERFBERBOREBTT °

Provision is made for lifetime expected credit losses on trade
receivables.

BREDREEESEFNFEREREEBEE-

Management applied judgement in assessing the expected
credit losses. Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection of
receivables are assessed individually for provision for impairment
allowance. Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on shared credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood of
recovery, taking into account the nature of the customer, its
geographical location and its ageing category, and applying
expected credit loss rates to the respective gross carrying
amounts of the receivables.
ERBEGIEPEEEEREL HE o HE &R B K #
SmEEREARRERRENE S A R KRIEE G
HERAERE B HHEEFERMBEI D ES AREERR
RF B FE R FT Al e 0 AT AR I RO FIBR FE GR IR AR B - ZEEEF M
B H IR B K AR EC A B DA K S RE USSR TE ) A8 FE AR T 4R RE PR
RIEHEEBEXRmAFE -

The expected credit loss rates are determined based on
historical credit losses experienced from the past 12 months
and are adjusted to reflect current and forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivables.
BHEEFREXNDERBET _—_AARELENBEEERE
METE  WAFABARBREFEAELER e P&
HEWBWRIBR NN ZBEERE -

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the trade
receivables and the estimation and judgement involved in
determining the expected credit losses allowance of the trade
receivables.

HMARKE SRR ERANREEERKE ZRAMNE
HEEBRERBRZSE2MAt RABME T @ -

Independent Auditor’s Report
B L% BN RS

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
BEMNESFNAEERRETSHE

We understood and validated the credit control
procedures performed by management, including its
procedures on periodic review of aged receivables and
assessment on expected credit losses allowance of
receivables.
BHMNTHRERBRBEEENTHNEERHREY 8FH
B8 7R TE HR AR 5 A BF R B R Y B LUK TR DA I BT 1 PR R
REEREEEEEENRER -

We tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing
profile of trade receivables by checking to the
underlying sales invoices.
HMBEZEEEHEE R MEAFARKE 5 KRIRIE
JLE) SEHE L

We tested on a sample basis, the subsequent
settlement of trade receivables against bank receipts.
HMERBTHBEHSANRAERE SEFINEBEE

B e

We obtained management’s assessment on the
expected credit losses allowance of receivables. We
corroborated and validated management’s assessment
based on the historical settlement pattern from the
past 12 months, correspondence with the customers,
evidence from external sources including the relevant
public search results relating to the financial
circumstances of the relevant customers and market
research regarding the relevant forward-looking
information such as macroeconomic factors used in
management’s assessment.

BMERSEREHERUKERBEEERE RGN
e HRMERBET_EANBAELAEEN HEF
WEA - BRINTRRERNIZRE(BIEEEETF
MBEAERANARARER) REEIEE(ETA
LEKBERAZSHEBAIEEENFEN T SHTER
I 5% 7E B IR JE P MERT A4 o

We consider the estimation and judgement made by
management in respect of the expected credit losses
allowance and the collectability of receivables were
supportable by the available evidence.

HMRA BEEEREUKENEREEBRERE R
AY W 13 1 BT B M B K I I BE 4 DA AT 45 58 4R 1E ST HE o
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Independent Auditor’s Report
8 3% B ]S

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section
above, we were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate evidence about
the fair value and the classification as current assets of the FVPL in
Zhejiang Haoran. Accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not
the other information is materially misstated with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those
Charged with Governance for the

Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of

the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

3 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

3 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

3 Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Independent Auditor’s Report
B L% BN RS
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Independent Auditor’s Report
8 3% B ]S

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chung Kit Yi, Kitty.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
mEEEBREX

As at 31 December 2018

R=ZF—N\F+=A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET F&T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WERFZE 6 469,646 568,050
Investment properties wEME 7 363,711 88,721
Land use rights 4 {5 A A 8 76,384 70,334
Interests in associates R &R R 2 10 1,846 1,806
Interests in joint ventures REERR 2 ER 11 14,690 3,307
Intangible assets mEEE 12 10,623 22,301
Promissory note A ER 15 — 34,978
Prepayments TE A 3B 15 15,526 —
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTSEREE 21 78,463 80,862
1,030,889 870,359
Current assets REBEE
Inventories A= 13 995,661 944,406
Trade and other receivables FE W B 5 BR 3 K H M FE U
IR 15 746,107 727,645
Tax recoverable A Y =1 B 18 9,939 15,403
Available-for-sale financial assets AtHES/mEE — 286,002
Financial assets at fair value through EBERAFEIRERRKT
profit or loss (“FVPL") BEZEHMEE 16 304,269 19,967
Promissory note ZETE 15 38,124 1,936
Entrusted loans ZEER 15 166,022 174,443
Pledged bank deposits BEEFIRITER 17 50,957 28,939
Fixed deposits TE B 17 3K 17 20,553 —
Cash and bank balances RE RIBITE 17 448,547 469,447
2,780,179 2,668,188
Assets held for sale BIELEERE 18 8,674 —
2,788,853 2,668,188
Total assets EEHRE 3,819,742 3,538,547
The notes on pages 78 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ F#78%1978 Z Ml i B Z 48 & W 1% M= A9 48 i
financial statements. o
ZELEEERERAT T N\FFER
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

As at 31 December 2018 KR=Z—/\F+=-A=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5% FERT FAT
EQUITY fEm
Equity attributable to equity holders ZAXQFKREZFE A
of the Company B
Share capital % < 19 209,982 209,982
Reserves G 20 2,401,303 2,315,954
2,611,285 2,525,936
Non-controlling interests RIS 28,724 23,325
Totalequity L R 2,640,009 IR 2,549,261
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Deferred income tax liabilities BELEMEHREE 21 83,136 21,752
Current liabilities mEE &
Trade and other payables ERTE 5 BER K
H {th fE < 20IE 22 694,161 707,889
Contract liabilities ERNAaE 5 29,534 —
Bank borrowings R1T K 23 367,057 247,271
Current income tax liabilities BNERFR IS T B & 5,845 12,374
1,096,597 967,534
Total liabilities BEAE 1,179,733 989,286
Total equity and liabilities EERkEEBEERE 3,819,742 3,538,547

The financial statements on pages 71 to 197 were approved by the
Board of Directors on 22 March 2019 and were signed on its behalf.

TING Man Yi
TEREE
Director

EF

The notes on pages 78 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
| A K

—NFEF+ZA=+—HLFE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE=Z

=R ANP AN

e R

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Ff 7 FTER FAET
Revenue WA 5 2,274,818 2,335,429
Cost of sales B A 28 (1,711,636) (1,670,143)
Gross profit EX 563,182 665,286
Other income H g A 24 21,476 28,718
Other gains, net H b Yz 0F 58 25 52,115 12,849
Net impairment loss provided for financial %t & & & 2 5t 12 BB (E
assets BREEFE 15 (19,025) —
Selling, marketing and distribution costs 5% - % 4 & 9 $5 Ak A& 28 (258,431) (277,417)
Administrative expenses THAX 28 (310,324) (312,478)
Reversal of impairment on loans to an ~ ER T —M#E QAR 2
associate VKR el 10(b) — 41,135
Operating profit BERR 48,993 158,093
Finance income A& KA 26 7,342 11,346
Finance costs BMEKA 26 (10,603) (8,668)
Share of profits/(losses) of associates DA R B R,
(E18) 10(a) 146 (632)
Share of losses of joint ventures AEEE A REE 11 (4,603) (2,791)
Profit before income tax R P 18 Bt A % R 41,275 157,348
Income tax expense FEHAX 27 (14,067) (16,901)
Profit for the year FREF 27,208 140,447
Other comprehensive income Eﬂi’.%ﬁ”&ﬁ
ltems that may be reclassified to ENOEERERD
profit or loss IE H
Currency translation differences BEEmEZE (144,098) 172,314
Fair value gains on transfers of owner- ERMEBERIEEME
occupied properties to investment ZAFERE MK
properties, net of tax IR 207,638 16,952
Release of exchange reserve to profit ReEdd—FHBE R R®
or loss upon deregistration of an ERERFEZER
associate — (20,278)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax H & E U A - FIERFL 1B 63,540 168,988
Total comprehensive income ZEBRAEAE 90,748 309,435
The notes on pages 78 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated — 278F 1978 2 M it &2 T 4x & B 7% & 09 4H 5K
financial statements. o -
EQEEERERAT T - N\FFR
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
a2 EBAXR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 #HE-ZT—/\F+_A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Note HK$°000 HK$’'000
Ff 5 FER FAET
Profit/(loss) attributable to: LT ALESZ®F,
(E51#8) :
Equity holders of the Company ARARIREREA 21,045 149,689
Non-controlling interests FE 42 ) 14 25 6,163 (9,242)
27,208 140,447
Total comprehensive income/(loss) DATATEGZZE
attributable to: WA (F18) 858
Equity holders of the Company RATREREEA 85,349 316,371
Non-controlling interests FE 122 Il 14 4 2 5,399 (6,936)
90,748 309,435
Earnings per share for profit FRAEATREZEA
attributable to equity holders of the E{5ENzEREF
Company during the year (expressed (LA 8% IR 438 1L 2 3)
in HK cents per share)
— basic — BEXK 30 1.00 7.13
— diluted — #8 30 1.00 7.13

The notes on pages 78 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

CMeEEREREIHREK

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE-ZT—/\F+_A=+—HItFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

FARREREAES
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves earnings Total interests equity
R
BE  ROEE  HtRE  RERF @zt EE  REREE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik TiEx TiER TER TER TER TER TER
At 1 January 2018 RZB-N§
-A-H 209,982 978,251 485,541 852,162 2,525,936 23,325 2,549,261
Comprehensive income 2EKA
Profit for the year FREH - - - 21,045 21,045 6,163 27,208
Other comprehensive income ~ H2EMA
Currency translation differences ~ EHHBEEH 20 - —  (143334) - (143334) (764)  (144,098)
Revaluation surplus upon transfers BB £EAREN
of owner-occupied properties o %7 EfE B
investment properties, net of tax 1B 78 - - 207,638 - 207,638 - 207,638
Total comprehensive income ~ 2EWABHE - - 64,304 21,045 85,349 5,399 90,748
Transaction with owners BREAZRS
Profit appropriation w5 - - 5,300 (5.300) - - -
Total transaction with equity EAAFREZEA
holders of the Company PELE L] - — 5,300 (5.300) - - -
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE
+=A=+-H 209,982 978,251 555,145 867,907 2,611,285 28,724 2,640,009

The notes on pages 78 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
FEEREHWmE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-ZT—/\F+_-_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ARRRESA AR

Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves eamings Total interests equity
JEFR 1
RA  REE  EREE  RERAN &3t Ex  BaAR

Note  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
[ TEL TEL TAL TEL TEL TAL TEL

At 1 January 2017 R=B-t&

-B-H 209,982 978,251 316,397 764,149 2,268,779 30261 2,299,040
Comprehensive income EEBA
Profit for the year EREH = = = 149,689 149,689 (9,242) 140,447

Other comprehensive income ~ HA12EHRA
Currency translation differences ~ EHBEEE 20 = = 170,008 = 170,008 2,306 172,314
Revaluation surplus upon transfer of & TERNEEA

certain portion of an owner- RENME R B

occupied property to investment  Z 8+ MBF A

property, net of tax - — 16,952 - 16,952 = 16,952
Release of exchange reserve to R #H—HE 2 A7

profit or loss upon BENEXREE

deregistration of an associate B = = (20,278) = (20,278) = (20,278)
Total comprehensive income ~ 2EWALH = = 166,682 149,689 316,371 (6,936) 309,435

Transactions with owners HEFAZRS

Profit appropriation B D E = — 2,462 (2,462) — — —
2016 final dividend paid “T-RERERE
YA — — — (17,848) (17,848) — (17,848)
2017 interim and special dividends —Z—+E &%)
paid &S] = = = (41,366) (41,366) = (41,366)

Total transactions with equity EARFREFEA

holders of the Company PELE L] = = 2,462 (61,676) (59,214) = (59,214)
At 31 December 2017 R=B-t&
+ZA=1t-H 209,982 978,251 485,541 852,162 2,525,936 23,325 2,549,261

The notes on pages 78 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ F78F1978 2 Wi AZ 4R A MR K A4
financial statements. it
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flovvs

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZE=Z

/\\/ \

aRETMNE

—NFEF+ZA=+—HLFE

2018 2017
—E-NF —E—+tF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
F = FTET F& T
Cash flows from operating activities “EZFBHREHTE
Net cash generated from operations LEFFIR € FR 32(a) 4,693 24,842
Interest paid B AT ALE (10,603) (8,668)
Income tax paid ELIEET (31,075) (50,149)
Net cash used in operating activities EENFTAESFEE (36,985) (33,975)
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHREHE
Purchases of property, plant and BEWME BERZE
equipment 6 (70,817) (53,499)
Prepayments for purchases of property, MBEEWE @ WELREN
plant and equipment T RIE (15,526) —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant H &% - BE M & E
and equipment Fr 15 78 32(b) 7,334 8,180
Compensation from requisition and M BWEREENR T
demolition of property, plant and HE A RIFBR
equipment and land use rights B 32(c) 40,349 =
Repayment of loans from an associate —Fﬁ Bt N EEEE R 10(b) — 250,489
Compensation received from available-for- ] f it & & @b & &= AT 15
sale financial assets %ﬁ (= 16(ii) — 10,052
Investment in an associate REEE QR E 10 — (658)
Investment in a joint venture REERRMKE 11 (17,781) —
(Increase)/decrease in fixed deposits with RHIFR BB =18 7 2 F H
initial term of over three months FROGEM) R (20,553) 4,800
Increase in pledged deposits B2 17 17 70 0 (22,018) (6,546)
Interest received 2 U F &8 6,132 5,704
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEEE(FTA) FEE
investing activities ©F5 (92,880) 218,522
Cash flows from financing activities ®MEZFBHRESHTE
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRATIE R ATIS K18 267,829 119,399
Repayment of bank borrowings EEBRITER (145,258) (158,753)
Dividends paid to equity holders of the B ARG ERZE A
Company % B — (59,214)
Net cash generated from/(used in) MEEBAME (FTA)
financing activities ReFHE 32(d) 122,571 (98,568)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ﬁ%&iﬁ.:@z%ﬁlﬁ B
cash equivalents WD) SEmEE (7.294) 85,979
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January EA )5] HzHReEkBe
Z£E1RE 469,447 367,954
Exchange difference X E=R (13,606) 15,514
Cash and cash equivalents at RT+ZA=+—RHzHR&
31 December NHeEHEIER 17 448,547 469,447
The notes on pages 78 to 197 are an integral part of these consolidated — 278Z197H 2 M it A2 4R & B 7% Mk 09 4H 5K
financial statements. B e

EREEZRERQTA
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN

NN

General information

China Ting Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 31 May 2005 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law
(Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961, as combined and revised) of the
Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s registered office is
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman

KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
engaged in manufacturing and sale of garments and property
investment.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
since 15 December 2005 (the “Listing”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting

policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong). They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of FVPL and investment properties, which
are carried at fair value and assets held for sale which are
carried at fair value less cost to sell.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the
Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(a)

New and amended standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group

The following new and amended standards and
interpretations have been adopted by the Group for
the first time for the financial year beginning on or

after 1 January 2018:

Amendment to HKFRS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 15

Amendment to HKAS 28

Amendments to HKAS 40

HK (IFRIC) 22

Amendments to HKFRSs

First time adoption of
HKFRS

Classification and
measurement of share-
based payment
transactions

Insurance contracts —
Applying HKFRS 9
financial instruments
with HKFRS 4 insurance
contracts

Financial instruments

Revenue from contracts
with customers

Investments in associates
and joint ventures

Transfers of investment
property

Foreign currency
transactions and advance
consideration

Annual improvements to
HKFRSs standards
2014-2016 cycle

EREEZRERQTA

ARA S R M

S ERERME (&)

fn B A ()

(a) FEERNZFHETRAERE

ATERIR 2

AT 35T RAEER] 2 228 R 72
BEAAEER=-Z—\F—
A— Bz RN TREE
B

EEMBRE BREKESL
R F 15 H B ER
CHEN)

BRMBRE URHEIHRS
R F25% ZOBRNEE
CHENY)

BERIEHRE REBREH — @&
%R B 455 BERTBRE
({B3TA) # Bl 554587 R

BREXNERE
BH RS
%= Rl 5957
SRITEA

ERPEHRE ¢BMIA
A= Bl 5957

BERTBHRE TEAHKA
ﬁﬁ‘J%ﬁs%ﬁ

BREEHER REEMEE
;ﬁzssﬁ UNGIOF 3
(18 ETZK)

ERGER HRERREVE
%4055
({B3TA)

B (BBRTB IMNER S
mEREZ  BA/BEK
S&)%F202% HE

BB EBRBREE
WA Al=F-—m%E
CHENY, E-T—RF

BHZ
FEUE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

2 Summary of significant accounting

2 EAREFTHERBEGE)

policies (Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 mEEZE(FE)
(a) New and amended standards and (a) FEBFFRHZFETREE
interpretations adopted by the Group FTERIR 25 (E)
(Continued)
The Group had to change its accounting policies and R ER 4 25 78 B 7 3 5 2 BI| 289
make certain retrospective adjustments following the S R B B R 2RI 155%
adoption of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 (see Note 2.2). % AEENESTESTBR
Most of the other new and amended standards and REHE FRPARE (M
interpretations listed above did not have any impact 22)° EXFIAZ KZEHE A
on the amounts recognised in prior periods and are ] RIS TR R 2RI
not expected to significantly affect the current or AT BB R S FHEEE
future periods. 2 HTEET o ¥ AH
ARHABEEEATE -
(b) New and amended standards and (b) 5K ERA 2 FET R AZNE 5T
interpretations not yet adopted EEIR#ZE
Effective for RUTESS
annual periods ZEBERZ
beginning on or after FEHMENR
HK (IFRIC) 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019 AR (ERMERERE AEHTEEN Z2-145-A-A
Z58)53% SHEMAE
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment features with negative 1 January 2019 ERMBRERANF, REENBMER —2-1%5-A-A
compensation (B3I A) ARE
HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019 BRNBREEE165 BE “E-N¥-A-A
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan amendment, curtailment or 1 January 2019 BEeEANEI9%  HEER BB —E-NE-R-A
settlement (B3T%) A8
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term interests in associates and joint 1 January 2019 EREENENE REEAARS —2-NE-A-H
ventures (B3TA) ERANKRE
B
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual improvements to HKFRSs 1 January 2019 ERHBREE] EENEHREE —T-nE-A-H
standards 2015-2017 cycle (B3TA) H-Z-n%
EIZF
BRI ERE
Wit
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business combinations 1 January 2020 ERUBREEUEIR EHAH —“Z-F#-f-H
(B3TA)
Conceptual framework for Revised conceptual framework for 1 January 2020 “E-\EREBRLES HEBREHAE —Z-35-F-8
financial reporting 2018 financial reporting S BB
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 January 2021 EERBREENETHE RBRAH —E-—-%£-F-H
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets between an To be determined EEYRREEEI0R REARERS BE
and HKAS 28 investor, associate o joint venture REBCHENEL DAAHAEA
EACHEN) b
EANEE

China Ting Group

Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards and
interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

None of the above new standards and amendments
is expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group,
except the following set out below:

HKFRS 16 Leases

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in
almost all leases being recognised on the
consolidated balance sheet, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed.
Under the new standard, an asset (the right to use
the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals
are recognised. The only exceptions are short-term
and low-value leases.

Impact

The Group has reviewed all of the Group’s leasing
arrangements over the last year in light of the new
lease accounting rules in HKFRS 16. The standard will
affect primarily the accounting for the Group’s
operating leases.

As at the reporting date, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$22,792,000. Of commitments,
approximately HK$10,160,000 relate to short-term
leases or low value both be
recognised on a straight-line basis as expense in the
consolidated profit or loss.

these

leases which will

2

ARA S R M

EXETTHERBE (&)

2.1

fn B A ()

(b)

EREEZRERQTA

] R BR A 2 H T R AE 16 2T
BRI K2 (F)

SRR AT R AR S RTHE RI TR
BHAREERAMBRREL
ERAFE - EUTIHER
9‘\ :

BB & ERF 165
HE

5 B 1) B

BB BHMEENF1RER
—E-REREM - HiEE
BHETHEHEESRAEER
HEMS D B WM - RIZZ%
MR BE(ZHEEBRBD
EREEXNESHERE
BRFER o E—PIoNE REH
MEBEHEE -

IS

eI R R e
MFEES LR AEED
EHAKENBE—FHOME
HELRY - ZERABERHA
SENKEHESTREESL

=875
o

RAHZEAH  AEEH
ETAIHEEEHEERIE
22,792,000 70 Rz E&E
? - 4910,160,00058 7T E242 £
HENREEHEER]H =&
B RAERENGEBRERT
ERAFAL -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

2 Summar¥cof significant accounting

policies

ontinued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b)

New and amended standards and
interpretations not yet adopted
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Impact (Continued)

For the remaining lease commitments, the Group
expects to recognise right-of-use assets of
approximately HK$11,941,000 and lease liabilities of
approximately HK$11,711,000 (after adjustments for
prepayments and accrued lease payments recognised
as at 31 December 2018) on 1 January 2019. Overall
net assets will be approximately HK$230,000 higher,
and net current assets will be HK$4,184,000 lower
due to the presentation of a portion of the liability as
a current liability.

The Group does not foresee any material impact on
the net profit of the Group as a result of adoption
of HKFRS 16.

The Group's activities as a lessor are not material and
hence the Group does not expect any significant
impact on the financial statements. However, some
additional disclosures will be required from next year.

Date of adoption by the Group

The Group will apply the standard from its
mandatory adoption date of 1 January 2019. The
Group intends to apply the simplified transition
approach and will not restate comparative amounts
for the year prior to first adoption. Right-of-use
assets for property leases will be measured on
transition as if the new rules had always been
applied. All other right-of-use assets will be measured
at the amount of the lease liability on adoption
(adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease expenses).

There are no other standards that are not yet
effective and that would be expected to have a
material impact on the entity in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future
transactions.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS R &R MY AT

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EAEFTBEHSE(E)
policies (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies 22 BIFBE#EE

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9 A RERME B EREER

“Financial Instruments” and HKFRS 15 “Revenue from FOREMITAIREBMBRESE

Contracts with Customers” on the Group's consolidated AIEISRIZE R AN WA IHAEER

financial statements. HEMBRENTZE -

(a) Impact on the consolidated financial (a) HHEEBHBEHRANEE
statements
As explained in notes below, HKFRS 9 was generally TN XTI - AREEE —
adopted without restating comparative information. AR ER 4025 78 B 75 3R 5 2RI B9
The reclassifications and the adjustments arising from S B EEE S LR E R o
the new impairment rules are therefore not restated IREERIEENER DB R
in the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December RAEAETER=_Z—tF
2017, but are recognised in the opening consolidated +ZA=t+—HNGREEER
balance sheet on 1 January 2018. BERFPES BAER=ZZT—N

F-A—BONFVREEESR
BERFER -

The following tables show the adjustments TREINE RS IEEE KB H#
recognised for each individual line item. Line items REFAE « RKMARZEER
that were not affected by the changes have not been ZHKE - Bt - FTEER /)
included. As a result, the sub-totals and totals BT R ARG & R EEIB B ATIR 4t
disclosed cannot be recalculated from the numbers WEBEHNAE - AEAEN
provided. The adjustments are explained in more FEAR R T XER -

detail by standard below.

31 December 1 January
2017 2018
ZT—tF “E-N\EF
T-ZA=1+-H -A-H
As originally
Consolidated balance sheet (extract) presented HKFRS 9 HKFRS 15 Restated
ERNBRE BANEHRSE

GEEERER(BE) M 23 ERIEH KR E15%, KED
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL THEL THEL TR

Current assets RBEE
Trade and other receivables W E 5853 R E o JE Y3 727,645 (17,528) — 710,117
Available-for-sale financial assets HREESREE 286,002 (286,002) — -

FVPL BRATEFIGRERRRTREL

CREE 19,967 303,530 = 323,497
Total assets EELE 1,033,614 = = 1,033,614

Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables ECES Ve 707,889 — (29,912) 677,977
Contract liabilities BHEE = = 29,912 29,912
Total liabilities BEME 707,889 — — 707,889

EREEEZERARLATE —ZT-N\FFH 83
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces the provisions of HKAS 39 that
relate to the recognition, classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
derecognition of financial
impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting.

liabilities, instruments,

The adoption of HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments from
1 January 2018 resulted in changes in accounting
policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The new
accounting policies are set out in Note 2.13 below.
In accordance with the transitional
HKFRS 9 (7.2.15) and (7.2.26),
have not been restated.

provisions in
comparative figures

(1) Classification and measurement
On 1 January 2018 (the date of
application of HKFRS 9), the Group's
management assessed which business models
apply to the financial assets it held and has
reclassified its investments in Zhejiang Haoran
previously classified as available-for-sale and
loans and receivables into the appropriate
HKFRS 9 categories.

initial
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS R &R MY AT

2 Summary of significant accounting 2 EAEFTBEHSE(E)
policies (Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 22 B BEXZE (&)
(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) (b) TEHBREERFIYE
@I A ()
(i) Classification and measurement () DERIE(E)
(Continued)
The main effects resulting from this BN BEENETEY
reclassification are as follows: Z2mF:
Available-for-
sale financial Other
assets receivables FVPL Total
BATHETIR
THHESR EBRETER
BE HUEKHE BrEeBEE #it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tx TR TR Tx

Closing balance at 31 December ~ WZZE—+&F+=A=+—

2017 — HKAS 39 BNERGER — BhE
SHERIE395 286,002 17,528 — 303,530
Reclassified available-for-sale financial At HELREEEH 5
assets to FVPL BERDTEIRER
RRTREZEREE (286,002) = 286,002 —

Reclassified other receivables to FVPL B EMENFEEHHEZE
BAVEIIGEERE
PREZEREE = (17,528) 17,528 —

Opening balance at 1 January 2018 R=-Z—\E—fF—HAKE

— HKFRS 9 &% — BRUBRSE
EHI 9% - - 303,530 303,530
The Group elected to present in the profit or REBBEEREBERZS
loss changes in the fair value of its 29% LR B RAHEERN
equity interest in Zhejiang Haoran that was 29% AT A& RIRBER A
previously classified as available-for-sale TEZE ARAEEE
because management plans to dispose such EIRAREREER
investment in the foreseeable future. As a AiRE -EHit A FE
result, an asset with a fair value of #43,617,0007% 7T #) &
HK$43,617,000 was reclassified from available- EER=Z—N\F—A
for-sale financial assets to FVPL on 1 January —BHRAIHEESE
2018. EENDBEREBEATE
PIBREBRRTREZ
ERMEE -

EREEEZERARLATE —ZT-N\FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAEMBRRWME

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(1)

(i)

Classification and measurement
(Continued)

The shareholder’s loans and advances granted
to Zhejiang Haoran were reclassified from
available-for-sale and other receivables to FVPL
as the contractual cash flows under such
financial assets do not represent solely
payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount.

There was no impact on retained earnings as
at 1 January 2018.

Impairment of financial assets
The Group has only one type of financial
assets, which is financial assets carried at
amortised cost, that is subject to HKFRS 9's
new expected credit loss model.

The Group was required to revise its
impairment methodology under HKFRS 9 for
such class of assets. The impact of the change
in impairment methodology on the Group's

retained earnings and equity is not material.

While cash and cash equivalents are also
subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

(b) HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(c)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables, except for those
individually significant trade receivables or trade
receivables at default which are to be tested
individually. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the invoice dates.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The Group adopted HKFRS 15 using the modified
retrospective approach which means that the
cumulative impact of the adoption (if any) was
recognised in retained earnings as at 1 January 2018
and that comparatives was not restated.

The Group is engaged in the manufacturing and
trading of garments and property investment.

The Group's obligations to provide a refund for
faulty products are under the standard warranty
terms. Accumulated experience is used to estimate
such returns at the time of sale. Because of the large
volume and low value of each individual product, the
amount of products returned were immaterial. It is
highly probable that a significant reversal in the
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.
Therefore, no refund liability for goods return was
recognised. The validity of this assumption and the
estimated amount of returns are reassessed at the

end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

2

policies (Continued)

(c)

Summary of significant accounting 2 ERSTHTEHESE(E)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued) 22 B BX#ZE(HE)
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with (c) BEBHBHEEREFISH
Customers (Continued) EFEANA ()
The Group does not incur costs to fulfil contracts AEBEBTEBE O EIL
which should be capitalised as they relate directly to BEEKN(ETERE) T
the contracts, generate resources used in satisfying HAEEHANEREAR E4E
the contract and are expected to be recovered. ARBITE#HZ AR KR TBE G
e o
The Group does not have any contracts where the AEETEEMEAREREE
period between the transfer of the promised goods TEFEEFPNRZEREBR
to the customer and payment by the customer —FWEMELH Bt - K&
exceeds one year. Thus, the Group does not adjust B 5 B R B E AT
any of the transaction prices for the time value of AR 5 E1E -
money.
As a result, other than certain reclassification of Hit - BREEHEBEETET
contract liabilities, the adoption of HKFRS 15 did not BEHHEN AREERBEE
result in any net impact on the profit for the period, P& ONE ON IS
as the timing of revenue recognition on sales of T BIHAEATBREE
products and rental income is not changed. Il 55 155 3 4 9 B (A /9 % FI) 22
EREMFRE -
The following adjustment was made to the amounts TEREIHFRXEABHR(CZE
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet at the —N\NF-A—B)HRGEEE
date of initial application (1 January 2018): BERERANSEEENOSA
.
Trade and
other Contract
payables liabilities Total
ERE SR
% H e
HRIE aHEE #ct
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FH&T
Closing balance at RZT—+tF+=A
31 December 2017 — =+ HHERER
HKAS 18 — ARG ERE 18
i 707,889 — 707,889
Reclassified other payables to 18 L Ath & 1~ FRIB & 3T
contract liabilities HEEHEE (29,912) 29,912 —
Opening balance at 1 January RZZT—-N\E—H—H
2018 — HKFRS 15 WENESR — BB
B 75 ¥ & 22 B 5155 677,977 29,912 707,889
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3

Subsidiaries

2.3.1 Consolidation
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those

returns through its

power over the entity.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which

control

is transferred to the Group. They are

deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(a)

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to
account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of the entity’s net assets
in the event of liquidation are measured at
either fair value or the present ownership
interests’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net
assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at their
acquisition date fair value,
measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

unless another

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAEMBRRWME

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Business combination (Continued)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If this is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly
in the consolidated profit or loss (Note 2.11).

Inter-company transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between
group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred assets. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the

policies adopted by the Group.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result
accounted for as equity transactions — that is,

in a loss of control are
as transactions with the owners of the
subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair
consideration paid and the
acquired of the carrying amount of net assets

value of any
relevant share

of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.3

Subsidiaries (Continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost,
with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. It means the
amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss or transferred to another category of
equity as specified/permitted by applicable
HKFRSs.

2.3.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect changes in
consideration arising from contingent consideration
amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting and are initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or
loss of the investee after the date of acquisition. The
Group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified
on acquisition, net of any accumulated impairment loss.
Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in an
associate, any difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group's share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for
as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share
of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to the consolidated
profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits
or losses is recognised in the consolidated profit or loss,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in other
comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive
income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there
is any objective evidence that the investments in the
associates are impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associates and its
carrying values and recognises the amount adjacent to
“share of losses of associates” in the consolidated profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.4

2.5

2.6

Associates (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

Accounting policies of associates have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in associates
are recognised in the consolidated profit or loss.

Joint ventures
Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group's share of losses in
a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests in the joint
ventures (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
joint ventures), the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
the joint ventures have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is
responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors who make strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
HK$, which is the Company’s presentation currency.
The functional currency of the Company is United
States dollars (“US$").

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. Translation differences on assets and
liabilities carried at fair value are reported as part of
the fair value gain or loss. For example, translation
differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair
value gain or loss and translation differences on non-
monetary assets such as equities classified as fair
value through other comprehensive
recognised in other comprehensive income.

income are
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.7

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group's
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(i) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations are taken to shareholders’ equity. When a
foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold,
exchange differences that were previously recorded in
equity are recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRA B R R MY RE

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, except for construction in
progress, are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged in the profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

2040 years or shorter of
remaining lease term

Leasehold land and buildings

or useful life

Leasehold improvements 5 years
Plant and machinery 5-10 years
Vehicles 3-10 years

Furniture, fittings and equipment 5-10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting period. An
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.12).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are included in the
consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction or pending installation and is
stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Cost
includes the costs of construction of buildings, costs of
plant and machinery, and borrowing costs arising from
borrowings used to finance these assets during the year of
construction or installation and testing. No provision for
depreciation is made on construction in progress until such
time as the relevant assets are completed and ready for
intended use. When the assets concerned are brought into
use, the costs are transferred to respective property, plant
and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the
policy as stated above.

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the Group’s entities, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating
leases and buildings held under finance leases. Land held
under operating leases are classified and accounted for as
investment property when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is
accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial recognition,
investment property is carried at fair value. Fair value is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for
any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If this information is not available, the Group
uses alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on
less active markets or discounted cash flow projections.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light of
current market conditions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRA B R R MY RE

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.9

2.10

Investment properties (Continued)

The fair value also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash
outflows that could be expected in respect of the property.
Some of those outflows are recognised as a liability,
including finance lease liabilities in respect of land classified
as investment property; others, including contingent rent
payments, are not recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
consolidated profit or loss during the financial period in
which they are incurred.

Changes in fair values are recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss, as part of the “other gains, net”.

Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a
sales transaction rather than through continuing use. For
this to be the case, the asset must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such
assets or disposal groups and its sale must be highly
probable. All assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified
as a disposal group are reclassified as held for sale
regardless of whether the Group retains a non-controlling
interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Non-current assets (other than investment properties and
financial assets) classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values less
costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.11 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary/
associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible
assets. Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is
included in interests in associates and is tested
annually for impairment as part of the overall
balance. Separately recognised goodwill is tested
annually for impairment and carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Impairment losses on
goodwill are not reversed. Gains and losses on the
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units
("CGUs") for the purpose of impairment testing. The
allocation is made to those CGUs or groups of CGUs
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the business combination in which the goodwill arose
identified according to operating segment.

Trademarks

Trademarks are shown at historical cost. Trademarks
have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate the cost of
trademarks over their estimated useful lives of 10
years.

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired
combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The customer relationships have a
finite useful life and are carried at cost less

in a business

accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated
using the straight-line method over the expected life
of the customer relationship of 10 years.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.1

2.12

2.13

Intangible assets (Continued)

(d) Exclusive supply rights

Exclusive supply rights represent the rights to sell
pre-determined amount of garments to customers
over certain periods of time pursuant to the legal
binding agreements entered into between the Group
and the customers. Exclusive supply rights are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses. Exclusive supply rights are
amortised over the unexpired periods of the
agreements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are
tested annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

(a) Classification
From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies its
in the following measurement

financial assets

categories:

— those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income or
through profit or loss); and

= those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income (the “FVOCI”).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in the
consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A M mRME

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

(c) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics

of the

asset. There are three measurement categories

into which an entity classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in the consolidated profit or
loss and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and
losses. Impairment losses are presented as
separate line item in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the
financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and
interest, are measured at FVOCI. Movements in
the carrying amount are taken through other
comprehensive income, except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains
and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in “other gains, net”. Interest
income from these financial assets is included
in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and
losses are presented in other gains/(losses) and
impairment expenses are presented as separate
line item in the consolidated profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

(c)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

— FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in
the consolidated profit or loss and presented
net within other gains/(losses) in the period in
which it arises.

Equity instruments
The Group subsequently measures all
investments at fair value.

equity
Where the Group'’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent

investments in other
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue
to be recognised in profit or loss as other income
when the Group’s right to receive payments is

established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the
consolidated profit or loss as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI| are not reported
separately from other changes in fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Impairment

From 1 January 2018, the Group assesses on a
forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its debt instruments. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see Note 3.1(d) for
further details.

Accounting policies applied until
31 December 2017

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: loans and receivables, at fair
value through profit or loss, and available for sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(1) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The
Group’s loans and receivables comprise “trade
and other receivables”, “loan receivables”, and
cash equivalents” in the
consolidated balance sheet.

“cash and
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

(e) Accounting policies applied until
31 December 2017 (Continued)

(1)

(iif)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the short term. Derivatives are classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
hedges. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

(e)

Accounting policies applied until
31 December 2017 (Continued)

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are
initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs
are expensed in the profit or loss. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently
carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss” category are presented in the consolidated
profit or loss within “other gains, net” in the period
in which they arise. Dividend income from financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss is
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss as part
of other income when the Group's right to receive
payments is established.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.13 Financial assets (Continued)

(e)

Accounting policies applied until
31 December 2017 (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary and non-
monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When
securities classified as available-for-sale are sold or
impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments
recognised in equity are included in the consolidated
profit or loss. Interest on available-for-sale securities
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as part of other income.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income when the Group’s right to
receive payments is established.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
presented within “operating activities” as part of
changes in working capital in the consolidated
statement of cash flows.

2.14 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount

reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is a

legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts

and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally

enforceable right must not be contingent on future events

and must be enforceable in the normal course of business

and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
company or the counterparty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.15

2.16

2.18

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted-
average method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct
costs and related production overheads (based on normal
operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of trade receivables is expected in one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. See Note 3.1(d) for further
information about the Group’s accounting for trade
receivables and a description of the Group’s impairment
policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.19

2.20

2.21

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not,
they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
recognised
comprehensive income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

value is in the consolidated statement of

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.21

2.22

Borrowing costs (Continued)

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated
profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Group operates and generates taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.22 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Inside basis differences (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, except for deferred
income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally the Group is unable to control the reversal
of the temporary difference for associates. Only when
there is an agreement in place that gives the Group
the ability to control the reversal of the temporary
difference in the foreseeable future, deferred tax
liability in relation to taxable temporary differences
arising from the associate’s undistributed profits is
not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and
there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income taxes assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

2 Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Pension obligations

The Group participates in a number of defined
contribution plans in Hong Kong and the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC"), the assets of which are
generally held in separate trustee-administered funds.
The pension plans are generally funded by payments
from employees and the relevant Group's entities.
The Group pays contributions to the pension plans on
a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis which are
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to
make further payments required
contributions have been paid, even if the plans do

once the

not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior years.

The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due and are not reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave
the scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick and
maternity leave are not recognised until the time of

leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.23 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed over the vesting period is
determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted, excluding the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability
and sales growth targets). Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options that are expected to vest. At each
balance sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to vest. It
recognises the impact of the revision of original
estimates, if any, in the consolidated profit or loss,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium when the options
are exercised.

2.24 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements. When a
change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.
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Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods and services in

the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.
shown net of value-added tax,

Revenue is
returns and discounts and

after eliminating sales within the Group.

(a)

Sales of goods — OEM garment sales

Sales are recognised when control of the garment
has transferred, being when the goods are delivered
to the customers, the customers have full discretion
over the goods and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customers’ acceptance of the
goods. Delivery occurs when the products have been
shipped to the specific location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to
customers, and either customers have accepted the
products in accordance with the sales contract, the
acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance
have been satisfied.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the
price specified in the contract, net of the estimated
volume discounts (if any). Accumulated experience is
used to estimate and provide for the discounts, using
the expected value method, and revenue is only
recognised to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal will not occur. A refund
liability (included in trade and other payables) is
recognised for expected volume discounts payable to
customers in relation to sales made until the end of
the reporting period. No element of financing is
deemed present as the sales are made with credit
terms that are consistent with market practice. The
Group's obligation to provide a refund for faulty
products under the standard warranty terms is
recognised as a provision.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Sales of goods — OEM garment sales
(Continued)

If the services rendered or products delivered by the
Group exceed the payments made by the counter
parties, recognised. If the
payments exceed the services rendered or products

a contract asset is
delivered, a contract liability is recognised.

Sales of goods — retailing of branded
fashion apparel

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity
sells a product to the customer. Retail sales are in
cash or by credit cards, through internet payment
service providers or collected by department stores/
online retailers on behalf of the Group. The recorded
revenue includes credit card fees payable for the
transaction. Such credit card fees are included in
selling, marketing and distribution costs. It is the
Group's policy to sell its products to the end
customer with a right of return. Accumulated
experience is used to estimate and provide for such
returns at the time of sale. Because the number of
goods returned has been steady for years, it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative
revenue recognised will not occur. The validity of this
assumption and the estimated amount of returns are
reassessed at each reporting date.

Commission income
Commission income is recognised over the period
when the services are rendered.

Rental income

Rental income on assets leased out under operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts
where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and
As a
consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the

payment by the customer exceeds one year.

transaction prices for the time value of money.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2

Summary of significant accounting
policies (Continued)

2.26

2.27

2.28

2.29

Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently become
credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial assets the
effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss
allowance).

Interest income from FVPL is included in the net fair value
gains or losses on these assets as part of “other gains, net”
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Interest income from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes is presented as “finance income”
where it is earned. Any other interest income is included in
"other income”.

Government grants

Government grants are subsidies on export of textile and
clothing and assistance on certain projects approved by local
government. Government grants are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grants
will be received and the Group will
attached conditions.

comply with all

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Leases (as the lessee for operating leases)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from the
lessor) are charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management

3.1

Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk,

cash flow and fair value interest rate risk),

credit risk,

concentration risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk

management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse

effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Sales are made to overseas customers as well as
the customers in the PRC while purchases are mainly
from suppliers in Hong Kong and the PRC. The
functional currencies of the Group’s entities in Hong
Kong and the PRC are US$ and Renminbi (“RMB"),
respectively.

Foreign exchange risks arise on monetary assets and
liabilities being denominated in a currency that is not
the functional currency. The Group’s entities in the
PRC have monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in US$, which is not their functional currencies. The
Group does not speculate on foreign currencies.

At 31 December 2018, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% (2017: 5%) against the US$
with all other variables held constant, profit for the
year and equity holders’ equity would have been
approximately HK$5,617,000 (2017: HK$7,196,000)
lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
losses/gains on translation of US$ denominated
monetary assets and liabilities held by the Group's
entities in the PRC.
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk
because certain listed equity securities held by the
Group are classified in the consolidated balance sheet
as FVPL. Result for the year would increase/decrease
as a result of gains/losses on listed equity securities
classified as FVPL. At 31 December 2018, if there had
been a 5% (2017: 5%) increase/decrease in the
market value of FVPL with all other variables held
constant, the Group's profit for the year would have
been approximately HK$770,000 (2017: HK$998,000)
higher/lower.

The Group has not entered into derivatives to

manage such exposures.
Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates except for bank deposits, as most of
the interest-bearing assets including promissory notes
and loan receivables are at fixed rate. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its bank deposits and borrowings.
Bank deposits and borrowings at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest-rate risk.
Borrowings at fixed rates expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk. The interest rates of the
Group's bank deposits and the rates and terms of the
Group’s borrowings are disclosed in Notes 17 and 23
to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

The Group has not used any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(Continued)

At 31 December 2018, if interest rates had been
increased/decreased by one percentage point (2017:
one percentage point) with all other variables were
held constant, the Group's profit for the year would
have been HK$2,551,000 (2017: HK$1,744,000)
lower/higher and HK$4,342,000 (2017:
HK$4,156,000) higher/lower, respectively, resulting
from the change in the interest expense on bank
borrowings and interest income on bank deposits.

Credit risk

(i) Risk management
The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its cash and bank balances, promissory
entrusted loans and trade and other
receivables (except for prepayments). The
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk is the

carrying amounts of these financial assets.

notes,
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

Risk management (Continued)

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products are made to customers with
an appropriate credit history. OEM garment
sales to large or long-established customers
with good repayment history comprise a
significant proportion of the total Group’s
OEM garment sales. The Group also has
policies on granting different settlement
methods to different customers to monitor the
credit exposure. Letters of credit are normally
required from new customers and existing
customers with short trading history for
settlement purposes. Sales to retail customers
are made in cash, via credit cards, through
online payment service providers or collected
by department stores/online retailers on behalf
of the Group. The Group’s historical experience
in collection of trade and other receivables
falls within the recorded allowances. At 31
December 2018, trade and bill receivables
amounted to approximately HK$528,710,000
(2017: HK$498,981,000)
companies operating under international and

were due from

domestically well-known brand retailers and
department stores in the PRC. Loss allowances
of HK$66,137,000 has been provided for such
trade and bill receivables as at 31 December
2018.

The Group has policies to place its cash and
cash equivalents only with major financial
institutions with good reputation and does not
expect any losses from non-performance by
these financial institutions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(1)

(iif)

Security

For certain trade receivables the Group may
obtain security in the form of letters of credit
which can be called upon if the counterparty
is in default.

For the Group’s entrusted loans, there are
certain land and properties pledged as
securities. See Note 15(iii) for further details.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets
that are subject to the expected credit loss
model:

= Trade receivables

= Other financial assets at amortised costs

While cash and bank balances are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9,
the identified impairment loss is immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables, except for those
individually significant trade receivables or trade
receivables at default which are tested
individually.
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)
Measurement of expected credit loss on
individual basis

Trade receivables relating to customers with
known financial difficulties or significant doubt
on collection of receivables are assessed
individually for provision for impairment
allowance. As at 31 December 2018, the
balances of such individually assessed trade
receivables and the loss allowance in respect
of these receivables are HK$50,664,000 (2017:
HK$14,241,000) and HK$23,271,000 (2017:
HK$14,241,000), respectively.

Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due. The expected loss rates are based on
the payment profiles of sales over a period of
12 months before 31 December 2018 or 1
January 2018,
corresponding historical
experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are further adjusted to
current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

respectively, and the

credit losses

reflect
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)
Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the balance of loss
allowance in respect of these collectively
assessed trade receivable balances is
HK$42,866,000 based on an average expected
loss rate of approximately 9% applied on
different groupings (2017: 6%, which does not
have a material impact to the Group's

consolidated financial statements).

Trade receivables are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of
receivables is

recovery.
Impairment loss on trade
presented as net impairment loss within
operating profit. Subsequent

amounts previously written off are credited

recoveries of
against the same line item.

Previous accounting policy for impairment
of trade receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade
receivables was assessed based on the incurred
loss model. Individual receivables which were
known to be uncollectible were written off by
reducing the carrying amount directly. The
other receivables were assessed collectively to
determine whether there was objective
evidence that an impairment had been incurred
but not yet identified. For these receivables,
losses were

the estimated impairment

recognised in a separate provision for

impairment. Receivables for which an
impairment provision was recognised were
written off against the provision when there
was no expectation of recovering additional

cash.
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3

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(d) Credit risk (Continued)

(e)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
promissory note, entrusted loans and other
receivables (except for prepayments).
Management assesses the credit quality of the
counterparties, taking into account the
historical risk of default and capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term.

These financial assets at amortised cost, except
for the entrusted loans which an impairment
loss has been provided for (See Note 15), are
considered to be of low credit risk primarily
because historically they had no history of
default and the debtors had a strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in
the near term. For entrusted loans, the fair
value of pledged collaterals are sufficient to
cover their carrying amounts. No impairment
loss has been provided for such financial assets
as at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018.

(iv)  FVPL

The entity is also exposed to credit risk in
relation to investments that are measured at
FVPL. The maximum exposure at the end of
the reporting period is the carrying amounts of
these investments.

Concentration risk

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group’s sales to the top 5 customers who are
international well-known brand retailers accounted
for approximately 33.3% (2017: 30.9%) of the total
revenue. The Group aims to maintain long-term
relationship with reputable customers in the
expansion of its business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(f)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
The Group aims to maintain flexibility in funding by
keeping committed credit lines available.

The Group's primary cash requirements have been for
purchases of materials, machinery and equipment and
payments of employee benefit expenses. The Group
finances its working capital requirements through a
combination of funds generated from operations and
bank loans. The Group generally operates with a
working capital surplus.

According to Hong Kong Interpretation 5,
“Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
contains a Repayment on Demand Clause”, if a term
loan agreement includes an overriding repayment on
demand clause (“callable feature”), which gives the
lender a clear and unambiguous unconditional right
to demand repayment at any time at its sole
discretion, a borrower shall classify the term loan as
a current liability in its balance sheet, as the
borrower does not have an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period. Accordingly, the
long-term portion of the Group’s bank borrowings
was classified as current liabilities in the consolidated

balance sheet as at 31 December 2018.

As at 31
borrowings as shown in the table below, all the

December 2018, except for the bank

Group’s contractual obligations mature within 1 year.
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3

3.1

(f)

Financial risk management (Continued) 3 ®¥EKEIE (&)
Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HMERKBEZE(E)
Liquidity risk (Continued) () "EELEE(E)
The following table summarises the maturity analysis TRBM—IBFEE Rz B
of a term loan with a repayment on demand clause Bofh EREBREEREER
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the &R DIRBERBREATE 2
loan agreement. The amounts include interest MEERFHEERME - £
payments computed using contractual rates. Taking BEEREHFEFE 2 ER
into account the Group’s financial position, the Ho K ERAEEB 2B BN
directors do not consider that it was probable that A BEBRARITHETAEETT
the bank would exercise its discretion to demand {50 LY 15 4 DA SR BB (542 ©
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such EEHEZEHERBERES
term loan will be repaid in accordance with the R A et A =R B
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan FLAEE -
agreements.
Between Between
Within 1 1 and 2 2 and 5 Over 5
year years years years Total
—-Ern -EWE —Enf BBEILF @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTAET FHT FTHET FTAET
At 31 December 2018 R-ZB-N\F
+=ZA=+—-H
Bank borrowings RITER 181,092 41,332 79,232 13,954 315,610
At 31 December 2017 R=Z—tF
t+=A=+-8H
Bank borrowings RITER 43,035 43,035 98,595 30,415 215,080
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
issue new

shareholders, return capital to shareholders,

shares or increase debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt to
equity ratio. This ratio is calculated as bank borrowings of
approximately HK$367,057,000 (2017: HK$247,271,000)
divided by total equity of HK$2,640,009,000 (2017:
HK$2,549,261,000). The ratios as at 31 December 2018
and 2017 are 13.9% and 9.7%, respectively.

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

3 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is,
derived from prices) (level 2).

3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3 B #¥EKREE (&)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEME (F)
The following table presents the Group’s financial assets TREINAEER -_ZE-—NF+=
and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 A=+—HARAFEFEZE®HE
December 2018. ERBE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
& A & B2 & B3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
Assets BE
FVPL BRAFEINERERRRTD
BREZEMEE
— Listed equity securities — ETRAFES 15,393 — —
— FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran — BRI AERMIE A
FEYREEZR
EPREEZS/
BE — — 288,876
15,393 — 288,876
The following table presents the Group's financial assets TREINAEER-_ZT—+F+=
and liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 A=+—HARATEFEZEeHE
December 2017. ERAE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
FUQIIN & 512 A3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FH&T FH&T
Assets BE
FVPL BATFEIKRERRKRT
BREZEMEE
— Listed equity securities — ETRAFES 19,967 — —
Available-for-sale financial assets AHEES/REE
— Equity security — BRAEFH = = 43,617
— Debt security — BBES = = 242,385
19,967 — 286,002
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3

Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss traded in active markets is based on quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as
active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available
from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an
arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price.
These instruments are included in level 1. Instruments
included in level 1 classified as trading securities comprise
primarily equity investments listed on Shanghai Stock
Exchange.

Financial instruments in level 3

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held available-for-sale
financial assets, which represented the equity interests in,
and shareholder’s loans granted to Zhejiang Haoran
amounted to HK$43,617,000 and HK$242,385,000,
respectively. Upon the adoption of HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments” on 1 January 2018, such available-for-sale
financial assets, together with advances due from Zhejiang
Haoran of HK$17,528,000, were reclassified to FVPL (Note
2.2(b)(i)).

The basis of fair value measurement and valuation
technique of such FVPL are set out in Note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

There were no other changes in valuation techniques during
the current year.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued) 3
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the years ended 31 December 2017 and

BHERER R
3.3 AFEMEH ()
HE3Z 2 BT A (M)

TEREINEE-_Z—ttFEREK_F
—NF+_A=+—"BLEEFEZHK

2018. RIBSTE#F) -

2018 2017

—E2-N\F —ET—+tF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET F& T

At 1 January n—A—AH 286,002 276,712
Reclassified upon the adoption of IR BB B 153 & 48
HKFRS 9 (Note 2.2 (b)(i)) FoRB B H A (M=

2.2(b)(i)) 17,528 =

Repayment of debt security BEBBES — (10,052)

Exchange differences HmE xR (14,654) 19,342

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8 288,876 286,002

There were no transfers between level 1, 2 and 3 during
the year.

4 Critical accounting estimates and 4

judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(a)

Fair value of FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran

FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran is comprised of the equity interest
in, shareholders’ loans and advances to Zhejiang Haoran.

Fair value of such FVPL is determined based on the
valuation performed by management using asset based
valuation techniques. Management used their judgement to
select Adjusted NAV approach as the appropriate valuation
approach, supplemented by direct comparison approach
adopted to value the commercial property project held by
Zhejiang Haoran.

Management used their judgement to adopt Zhejiang
Haoran’s financial information as at 31 December 2016,
being its latest financial information made available to the
Group, as key inputs in the valuation. The fair value of
Zhejiang Haoran's property has been adjusted to take into
account the latest market price movements of similar
properties at nearby locations during the current year
assuming the construction of such property was completed
during the current year. Interest expense for the current
year has been accrued for interest-bearing liabilities
outstanding as at 31 December 2016 and assuming the
balance outstanding and the interest rates remained
unchanged from those as at 31 December 2016.
Construction costs incurred subsequent to 31 December
2016 have been accrued up to mid 2018 assuming such
costs have been incurred in accordance with the original
project budget provided to the Group with certain overruns.
Other inputs applied in the valuation model, including but
not limited to the minority interest discount rate, are
assumed to remain unchanged from those as at 31
December 2017. A degree of judgement is required for
management in establishing the fair value of FVPL in
Zhejiang Haoran.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR & BT R P AR
4 Critical accounting estimates and

judgements (Continued)

(b)

Trade and other receivables (including promissory
notes and entrusted loans)

The Group makes provision for expected credit losses of
trade and other receivables based on an estimate of the
recoverability of these receivables. Provisions are applied to
trade and other receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of impairment of trade and
other receivables requires the use of estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying amount of receivables
and the provision for expected credit losses in the period in
which such estimate has been changed.

On each balance sheet date, the fair value of the pledged
collaterals held by the Group for entrusted loans is
determined based on the valuation performed by an
independent professional
valuation techniques. The valuer used its judgement to
select market approach as the appropriate valuation
approach for the pledged properties and a parcel of land
(Note 15). The inputs applied in the valuation models, such
as the

valuer using market based

recent selling prices of comparable market
transactions for the properties and the land, are taken from
observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing
fair values.

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in the tables in Note 3.1(d).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Critical accounting estimates and 4

judgements (Continued)

ARA S R M

EEZ g5t R A E (&)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on
the historical experience of the actual useful lives of
property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation charge where useful lives are less than
previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or write-down
technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

Fair value of investment properties

The fair value of investment properties is determined at
each balance sheet date based on valuation techniques
(Note 7).

The fair value of investment properties would change by
approximately HK$36,371,000 (2017: HK$8,872,000) if the
market values of comparable properties differ by 10% from
the Group’s estimates.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste and competitor actions in response to
severe industry cycles. Management will reassess the
estimations by the balance sheet date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

4 Critical accounting estimates and
judgements (Continued)

(f)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. Deferred income tax
liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the unremitted
earnings of the PRC subsidiaries and deferred income tax
assets of the Group mainly arise from tax losses carry-
forwards. The realisability of the deferred income tax
liabilities and assets mainly depend on its subsidiaries’
dividend pay-out ratio and whether sufficient future profits
or taxable temporary differences will be available in the
future, whichever is applicable. In cases where the actual
dividend payout ratio is more than expected or future
profits generated are less than expected, such difference
will impact the income taxes in the periods in which such
estimates have been changed.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors. The executive directors review the Group's
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate
resources. Management has determined the operating segments
based on these reports.

The executive directors assess the performance of the operating
segments based on profit/(loss) before income tax, which is
consistent with that in the financial statements. Other
information, as noted below, is also provided to the executive
directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group started to
engage in property investment in the PRC and such new business
changed the executive directors’ review on the Group’s segment
performance and resource allocation over that in prior years.
Currently, the executive directors consider the Group has four
reportable segments: (1) manufacturing and sale of garments on
an OEM basis (“OEM"); (2) manufacturing and retailing of
branded fashion apparel (“Retail”); (3) property development in
the PRC (“Property development”); and (4) property investment in
the PRC (“Property investment”).

Total segment assets exclude certain investment properties located
in Hong Kong, corporate assets, listed equity securities at FVPL
and entrusted loans, all of which are managed on a central basis.
These are part of the reconciliation to total balance sheet assets.

Turnover comprises sale of goods and rental income. Sales
between segments are carried out based on terms agreed. The
revenue from external parties reported to the executive directors is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA BT R R M R

Segment information (Continued) 5 ZHMER (&)
Property Property
OEM Retail ~ development investment Total
FRERE ZE MERZ NERE “E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THERT TR THERT THER
Year ended 31 December HZ_-F—\§
2018 +=-A=+-H
LtEE
Total revenue LON -t 1,799,594 479,604 - 14,842 2,294,040
Inter-segment revenue 2 ERRE U A (15,553) — — (3,669) (19,222)
Revenue (from external WA CRENBEF)
customers) 1,784,041 479,604 — 11,173 2,274,818
Timing of revenue W N HE R 0 s
recognition
At a point in time R — (A& 1,784,041 479,604 — — 2,263,645
Over time R — BB A - - - 1,173 11,173
1,784,041 479,604 — 11,173 2,274,818
Segment profit/(loss) before Br BT 15 %A1 263 Fll,/
income tax (&) 105,664 (58,688) — 4,825 51,801
Depreciation of property, W% BERXETE
plant and equipment (71,135) (25,016) — — (96,151)
Amortisation of land use 13t {# F 1 # 54
rights (1,514) (32) - — (1,546)
Amortisation of intangible &/ & 7 # 4
assets (4,256) (2,442) - - (6,698)
Impairment loss on goodwill 7% jsi (& 12 (4,930) — — — (4,930)
Finance income HERA 7,129 213 — — 7.342
Finance costs MERAE (8,637) (1,966) — — (10,603)
Share of losses of joint AEEERAER
ventures — (4,603) — — (4,603)
Income tax (expense)/credit BTG (%) /#H% (22,059) 9,198 - (1,206) (14,067)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS R &R MY AT

Segment information (Continued) 5 2EESRE)
Property
OEM Retail ~ development Total
JRER RS =6 EAES “®E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FH& T F& T F& T F& T
Year ended 31 December BE—-Z—t &
2017 +=—A=+—H
IHEE
Total revenue oL 1,881,921 480,310 = 2,362,231
Inter-segment revenue 2 5B U A (26,614) (188) — (26,802)
Revenue (from external WA (REINEEF)
customers) 1,855,307 480,122 — 2,335,429
Timing of revenue L A HE 7R # By [
recognition
At a point in time P — {0 B 2 1,855,307 480,122 — 2,335,429
Segment profit/(loss) before [ B 15 %1 Al 2 2B 1,/
income tax (B#E) 185,684 (78,534) 45,668 152,818
Depreciation of property, M BWERERETE
plant and equipment (71,027) (26,279) — (97,306)
Amortisation of land use b {55 R AR 8
rights (4,701) (32) — (4,733)
Amortisation of intangible &2 & & # $5
assets (5,193) (2,442) — (7,635)
Finance income A& WA 6,471 342 4,533 11,346
Finance costs BEKA (6,721) (1,947) = (8,668)
Reversal of impairment loss B 3 F — B & Q&K
on loans to an associate VRN SRk A = = 41,135 41,135
Share of loss of a joint AMEEERREE
venture — (632) — (632)
Impairment loss on available- 7] 4 & & g4 & E 2 &
for-sale financial assets BEEE — (2,797) — (2,797)
Income tax expense Fris Bt (8,604) (8,297) = (16,901)
EQEEERERAT T - N\FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

5 Segment information (Continued) 5 oER (&)
Property Property
OEM Retail development  investment Total
FRERE ZE MEMR NERE “E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET FTAET TET THET
As at 31 December 2018 R-E-N\§
+=-RA=t+-H
Total segment assets AHEELTE 1,977,042 992,556 288,876 336,711 3,595,185
Total segment assets include: PREEBERE
Interests in associates N TI-WNCI P £ 1,846 - - - 1,846
Interests in joint ventures REERAEZER — 14,690 — — 14,690
FVPL BRATEIIGERERT
REZSRHAE — — 288,876 — 288,876
Additions to non-current assets  AEF AP EE (S E
(other than financial instruments T B RiEIEFEH
and deferred income tax assets)  BER ) 52,039 18,778 — — 70,817
Tax recoverable A Y 1 7538 8,555 1,384 — — 9,939
Deferred income tax assets EEREHEE 15,676 62,787 — — 78,463
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZB—+%F
+=A=+t-H
Total segment assets PRBEERT 1,987,008 1,039,211 286,002 = 3,312,221
Total segment assets include: AHEERERR
Interests in associates REEE DB 2 5 1,806 = = = 1,806
Interest in a joint venture REERRZER = 3,307 = = 3,307
Available-for-sale financial assets ]t &S F & E — = 286,002 = 286,002
Additions to non-current assets  AREFRHEE (S &b
(other than financial instruments T & REIEFTEH
and deferred income tax assets) ~ BEFRIN) 38,007 20,362 — — 58,369
Tax recoverable BEEE 15,403 — — — 15,403
Deferred income tax assets BEMGHEE 23,639 57,223 = — 80,862
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment information (Continued) 5
A reconciliation of reportable segments’ profit before income tax
to total profit before income tax is provided as follows:

BER (&)

oH
B] R 5 2B 2 B BT 15 B A A A £
Al

A

AR

/|

I 75 ¥R &R Mt 5

B P15 %

A B BRI

2018 2017

—ZT-N\F —T—tF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FET FH&ET

Total segment profit before income tax B FT1S 5 A1 5 26 ;@ F| 42 =8 51,801 152,818
Net fair value (losses)/gains on FVPL BATEIEEEERPRE
ZEMEEAFEGSRE) S

W % 0% 28 (3.822) 10,429

Corporate overhead TrELFTER (7,400) (6,653)

Rental income HE WA 696 754
Profit before income tax per consolidated #r& & m U A K FT 51l Bk T 15 ¢

statement of comprehensive income Al A 41,275 157,348

A reconciliation of reportable segments’ assets to total assets is

provided as follows:

A RS

)

MeEERBEERBZHKRNOT

2018 2017

—®-NF —F-tf

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTET FH&ET

Total segment assets NEEELTE 3,595,185 3,312,221
FVPL BRATEIIRERRRTERE

ZeMEE 15,393 19,967

Corporate assets TEEE 16,142 3,616

Investment properties KREME 27,000 28,300

Entrusted loans ZEER 166,022 174,443
Total assets per consolidated HEEAEABRRMIEERT

balance sheet 3,819,742 3,538,547
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

5 Segment information (Continued) 5
The Company is domiciled in the Cayman Islands. The results of
its revenue from external customers based on the destination of
the customers are as follows:

7 & E # (&)
ARRANHSBBEMK Y - RIEEF it
BESZHBEFRABRNT -

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FER FAT

The PRC s 1,216,129 1,157,691
North America Jbx 820,163 940,988
European Union X B8 196,928 181,152
Hong Kong BB 25,556 33,617
Other countries H b B K 16,042 21,981
2,274,818 2,335,429

The total of non-current assets other than interests in associates,
interests in joint ventures, promissory note and deferred income
tax assets (there are no employment benefit assets and rights
arising under insurance contracts) located in the following
geographical areas are as follows:

MRA TR ZIFRDEELB(TEE
RBERR s RNAERR 2R -
EAHEBRBEERSHREE(REEHR
BELREBMNEEREN)MT :

2018 2017

—E-NF —ET—+tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

The PRC M 774,616 593,898
Hong Kong BB 144,545 151,719
North America ik = 2,613 3,789
921,774 749,406

For the year ended 31 December 2018, revenues of approximately
HK$316,404,000 (2017: HK$386,920,000) are derived from a
single external customer (2017: Same). These revenues are
attributable to the OEM reportable segment and accounted for
greater than 10% of the Group’s revenue. There are no other
customers which individually accounted for more than 10% of the
Group’s total revenue (2017: Same).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Segment information (Continued)

The contract liabilities represent the advance payments received
from counterparties for goods or services that have not yet been
transferred or provided to the counterparties. As at 31 December
2018, the Group has recognised the following liabilities related to
contracts with customers:

ARA S R M

2 EHER (&)
EHEBERNAERIRBRTRSES
WEMRREE RS E 5B TERK -
RZZE—N\F+_A=+—0 AEE=m®
REEPSAEBNATEE:

2018 2017

—B-N\F —E—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Current contract liabilities mEEHNBE 29,534 —

The following table shows the amount of the revenue recognised
in the year ended 31 December 2018 relates to carried-forward
contract liabilities.

TRBYEBEE_FE—NEF+=_A=+—H
EFERAEANAEEMERNKRASE -

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
Revenue recognised that was included in st AFHE LB ELEHT
the contract liabilities balance at B R WA
the beginning of the year 23,718 —

The Group expects their performance obligations under the
contracts with customers to be satisfied over a period of no more
than 2 years.

AEBERABREREFPANBTINENER
ERRDEBE2FNBREA TR -

EREEEZERARLATE —ZT-N\FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RAEMBRRWME

6 Property, plant and equipment

ME- - BERRE

Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold Plant and fittings and  Construction
buildings  improvements machinery Vehicles equipment in progress Total
BELHR B %ER
BT HENEEE  HBERER RE #1 ERIR g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT THL TAT THL THT THEL TAT
At 1 January 2017 R=E-t5-HA-H
Cost KA 703,321 199,664 435,863 42,899 67,502 60,130 1,509,379
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z& & (272,916) (152,713) (359,953) (42,026) (61,923) — (889,531)
Net book amount REFE 430,405 46,951 75910 873 5,579 60,130 619,848
Year ended 31 December BEZ-E-+%
2017 tZA=t-A
LEE
Opening net book amount 18 % (& 430,405 46,951 75910 873 5579 60,130 619,848
Exchange differences EHER 19,534 190 4418 30 374 2,053 26,599
Additions NE - 23,506 14,410 4,081 3212 8,290 53,499
Transfers 25 30,809 = 38,617 = = (69,426) =
Disposals HE (129) — (3,070) (1,053) (26) — (4,278)
Depreciation = (30,236) (27,860) (33,252 (3,.216) (2,742) — (97,306)
Transfer to investment ~~ BEEHEANE
property (Note) (Rit3r) (30,312) = = = = = (30,312)
Closing net book amount ~ FREEFE 420,071 42,787 97,033 715 6,397 1,047 568,050
At 31 December 2017  R=E-t&
TZA=+-H
Cost KA 722,865 223,360 478,206 42,046 70,784 1,047 1,538,308
Accumulated depreciation ~ Z& & (302,794) (180,573) (381,173) (41,331) (64,387) - (970,258)
Net book amount FEFE 420,071 42,787 97,033 715 6,397 1,047 568,050
Year ended 31 December HEEZ-Z- %
2018 t-A=t+-8
LEE
Opening net book amount 18 % (& 420,071 42,787 97,033 15 6,397 1,047 568,050
Exchange differences EHER (10,911) (1,664) (5,236) (66) (314) (465) (18,656)
Additions NE - 29,465 25,049 1,852 2,217 12,234 70,817
Disposals e (35) - (10,631) (566) (61) - (11,293)
Depreciation heE (27,933) (27,411) (37,791) (695) (2,261) - (96,151)
Demolition and relocation ~ 5 R E&
(Note 25) (Bt3¥25) (954) - (9,438) - (1,136) (284) (11,812)
Transfer from investment ~ E 8 R ANE
property (Note 7) (iE)) 37,815 - - - - - 37,815
Transfers to investment ~ EEZHEANE
properties (Note) (Fis) (62,070) - - - (1,900) - (63,970)
Transfers to assets held for EZEHEHERE
sale (Note 18) (Fiz18) (5.154) - - - - - (5,154)
Closing net book amount  EREEZ(E 350,829 LERNY 58,986 1,240 2,942 12,532 469,646
At 31 December 2018  R=Z-N&
+TZA=t-H
Cost KA 679,591 251,161 385,864 38,208 68,337 12,532 1,435,693
Accumulated depreciation ~ 25 7E (328,762) (208,044) (326,878) (36,968) (65,395) - (966,047)
Net book amount FHFE 350,829 83117 58,986 1,240 2,94 12,532 469,646
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Property, plant and equipment 6

(Continued)

Depreciation expenses of approximately HK$51,087,000 (2017:
HK$56,629,000) and HK$45,064,000 (2017: HK$40,677,000) have
been charged in cost of sales and administrative expenses,
respectively.

As at 31 December 2018, leasehold land and buildings with net
book amount of approximately HK$125,674,000 (2017:
HK$127,210,000) were pledged as securities for the Group’s bank
borrowings (Note 23).

Note:  During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group transferred
certain owner-occupied properties located in Hangzhou to investment properties

ARA S R M

ME-BEKRE (&

& B X 4951,087,00008 T (= F —+ 4 ¢
56,629,000/ JT) }45,064,000% 7T (= =
—-+ 4 : 40,677,000/ 70) B 5 B 5 & A
AEITHHEZNE -

R=ZTE—NE+_A=+—8 E@EFE
#9125,674,000% (= T — £ &F:
127,210,000% 7t) 2 H & £ th K 1E FE K
HIERAE B ZHRITERZ R E
23) °

MeE: BEZ-N\FR-_T—+F+-A=-+—1t
FE-AEBERUMNNETERYEERIREY

and rented them out (Note 7): 0 (7)) -
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
On the date of transfer R B
— Fair values of properties transferred — TERMENLTE 300,261 36,399
— Carrying amounts of properties transferred — @AY ENREE 63,970 30,312
Excess of fair values over carrying amounts AFEBBERAENSHE 236,291 6,087
Less: Deferred taxation (Note 21) BB E B IR (B EE21) (59,073) (1,522)
Revaluation surplus recognised in other REMEEBRA RN EE RS
comprehensive income 177,218 4,565

EREEEZERARLATE —ZT-N\FFH
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Investment properties

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

BREY=

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—+tF

HK$’'000 HK$'000

FHET F& T

At 1 January mn—HA—H 88,721 27,500
Transfer to owner-occupied property EEHAYE(ME)

(Note) (58,026) —
Transfers from owner-occupied properties & B B ¥ % (Kt 7£6%8)

(Notes 6 and 8) 345,069 56,042
Exchange differences fEH =58 (16,186) 2,993
Fair value gains (Note 25) A F1E W (T 5E25) 4,133 2,186
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 363,711 88,721
Amounts recognised in the consolidated #R&AZ2HWAXERZ L

statement of comprehensive income:

Rental revenue from property investment R EIHE W ENE S KA

in the PRC 11,173 —
Other rental income HaBEe WA 6,210 9,945
Direct operating expenses arising from EFHEWBRAZEEYE

investment properties that generate FTBSHNEELERX

rental income (316) (273)

17,067 9,672
Note:  The lease on one of the Group's investment properties located in Hangzhou was Mz : AEBMURAMMO-—EREDENHOER=

FN\FNRAER UK ZDERBRENES
BEAREEMNEHEME (KEeR8)

expired in August 2018, upon which the property was transferred from
investment property to owner-occupied property of the Group (Notes 6 and 8).

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value. AERBEREATFEAZEBREYME -
RZZB-NEFR—_F—tF+=—F=+—
H AEBURBEBERTIMNNKENEZ
ARTEDERESER—BBELAERMEE
B ([M&ERD]) 9 RI{EH B R EEE -

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the fair values of the Group'’s
investment properties located in Hong Kong and Hangzhou are
determined on the basis of valuation carried out by the directors
and an independent qualified valuer (the “Valuer”), respectively.
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Investment properties (Continued)
Valuations were determined either with reference to current prices
in an active market of similar properties, or where such
information is not available, information from a variety of sources
were considered including:

i) current prices in an active market for properties of different
nature or recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, adjusted to reflect those differences;

(i) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates
of future cash flows; or

(iii)  capitalised income projections based upon a property’s
estimated net market income, and a capitalisation rate
derived from an analysis of market evidence.

Fair values of the Group's investment properties located in Hong
Kong are determined by the directors of the Company with
reference to current prices in an active market of similar
properties.

Fair values of the Group’s investment properties located in
Hangzhou are derived by the Valuer using the investment method
of the income approach, by taking into account the current rental
income from the existing tenancy agreements and reversionary
income potential by adopting appropriate term/reversionary yields,
which are derived from analysis of sales transaction and the
Valuer’s interpretation of prevailing investor requirements or
expectations. For the reversionary potential of the properties, the
Valuer refers market price of similar comparable properties.

Term and reversionary yields are estimated by the Valuer based on
the risk profile of the investment properties being valued. The
higher the yields, the lower the fair value. As at 31 December
2018, yield ranged from 6.0% to 6.5% (2017: 5.5% to 6.0%)
were adopted in the term yields analysis for the Group's
investment properties in Hangzhou.

Prevailing market price are estimated based on recent sales
transactions within the subject properties and other comparable
properties. The lower the prices, the lower is the fair value. As at
31 December 2018, prevailing market prices ranged from HK$21
to HK$25 (2017: HK$13 to HK$15) per month per square meter
were adopted in the term and reversionary analysis for the
Group's investment properties in Hangzhou.

The valuation gains are included in “Other gains, net” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income (Note 25). The
following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair
value by valuation methods.

ARA S R M

REWE (&)
fEENETESZ AN LR ERTHHY
R MREESREESE A8
& FRE 8

i)y TRAMEEZHEREETSZEH
BRIBUNDERBRTERM IS Z
B (AR RIR bl 22 R 4F H

)

(iy MREBEBARRSREZA EMHETMAE
HZBRBERERM 3K

(iy MBWERZEAHHEAFEAR
REMSEIOMATZER L
KmfEh 2 B AL ATRR -

AEBEREBPNRENVEZAFERAR
RAEESERUYMERERT S EAE
REE °

AEERMMHBRENR 2 A FEAGBE
RERKREEZ Nm%E RERRAHEE
Bz BERES W AREAS L&D (R
RABEHS Me EAXEBOMEER
SHREEMEERKREENZRRAHN
RESL))SL -WEEREHTE &
EME2REUTLRYEZTHER -

HEMEARGEEZREMENRBRAK L
HETHREEAS EAR EARBE A
FTEBR R_ZE—N\F+_A=+—
B A£EEMNAMMNOREDENRS L
FARZDWMARMBENH EA RN T6.0%E
6.5% (=T —+% :55%%6.0%) °

WITMIGERDIERBEMERNRE M
B BEYWEMNABERZBERME - BIEW
B AFEHE-R_ZZ—N\E+=-A
=+—B AEEURAMMOBREDEN
HR KR EARDMETRANRIRITT IS ER
NFEABFHKVETELET(ZE
—tE 3B TEISHETT) °

HEKEDFAGEEZEBRARZIHEA
Yoz 3 B8 (B FE25) TR AT B EER
RFEIRZREYE -

EREEEZERARLATE —ZT-N\FFH
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iR A B RS R & BT T

7 Investment properties (Continued) 7 BREYE(E)
Fair value hierarchy A FE & 5

Fair value measurements using

RANTZBEZAFERE

Quoted prices in Significant
active markets for  Significant other unobservable
identical assets observable inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HEEEREZRT HMEATEBEEZ EATATEEZSH
52 WA (F A1) B (4 512) (&% 513)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET
Recurring fair value KEHEAFHEFZE
measurements
Investment properties as at RZZE—NEF
31 December 2018 +=ZA=+—H
2B
— The PRC — — — 336,711
— Hong Kong — B — — 27,000
— — 363,711
Investment properties as at RZZT—+F
31 December 2017 +=—A=+—H
ZIREME
— The PRC — — — 60,421
— Hong Kong — &% = = 28,300
— — 88,721
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out REBZBER/NSIMES 2 EHHER
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or EE2EHRRBARBH Z AFERG -
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.
There were no transfers among levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year. RERELR - 2837 MW mEEITERE -
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Investment properties (Continued)

Fair value measurements using significant

AR BRARME

7 REWEGE)

ERAEARATEES B (REI3) 2AF

unobservable inputs (Level 3) Bt E
Investment properties
Hong Kong The PRC Total
B H @i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THR TR TR
At 1 January 2018 R=ZZE-N&—HF—H 28,300 60,421 88,721
Transfer to an owner-occupied BZEEANE
property — (58,026) (58,026)
Transfers from owner-occupied HEEANE
properties — 345,069 345,069
(Losses)/gains from fair value adjustment A {EFHZEE
(B8 s (1,300) 5,433 4,133
Exchange differences fERZE% - (16,186) (16,186)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+=-A=+—"8 27,000 336,711 363,711
Total valuation (losses)/gains for the TETE o Yo e 5 %8 | T 3t
year included in profit or loss for ERMFEEAETA
assets held at the end of the year, Bah 2 EAhE
under “Other gains, net” (B18) Mimes (1,300) 5,433 4,133
Change in unrealised (loss)/gain for RERMBEESABRER
the year included in profit or loss for ~ Z&ERKEE
assets held at the end of the year (B#R) k=25 (1,300) 5,433 4,133

EREEEZERARLATE —ZT-N\FFH
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7 Investment properties (Continued)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)

7 REWHEGE)

EAERTTBRSH(RA3Z) 22F
Bt & (&)

Investment properties

REME
Hong Kong The PRC Total
Bk i Foh)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT TET FTHET
At 1 January 2017 R-ZZE—+tF—H—H 27,500 — 27,500
Transfer from an owner-occupied EEaRAME
property — 56,042 56,042
Gains from fair value adjustment NEEREHMES kR 800 1,386 2,186
Exchange differences fE 5 =5 — 2,993 2,993
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—+F
+-A=+—H 28,300 60,421 88,721
Total valuation gains for the TEME o ez %58 T 3t
year included in profit or loss for ERABEETA
assets held at the end of the year, Bah 2 EREAE
under “Other gains, net” Woas 5 800 1,386 2,186
Change in unrealised gain for RERFFEES ABER
the year included in profit or loss for 2 FERAERNEEF
assets held at the end of the year 800 1,386 2,186

Level 3 fair values of investment properties have been derived

using the comparable sales transactions as available in the

relevant market or using the valuation result based on income
approach to derive the fair value of the properties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARA S R M

Land use rights 8 tTiERARE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
THEx F& T
At 1 January ®n—H—H 70,334 72,568

Transfer from investment property HaREME

(Note 7) (Hft5£7) 20,211 =
Transfers to investment properties (Note) % = # & #) % ([} &%) (4,248) (3,127)
Transfers to assets held for sale (Note 18) # = #3% (& & & & (M 7£18) (3.520) —
Demolition and relocation (Note 25) bk R E & (M 7E25) (1,466) —
Exchange differences ME W Z 5 (3,381) 5,626
Amortisation i (1,546) (4,733)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 76,384 70,334

Note:  During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group transferred

certain portion of the owner-occupied land used rights located in Hangzhou to

Me: BE-Z-N\FR-_T—+HF+-_A=+—8
IHFE - REEBRMEOE T BB EREE

investment properties and rented them out (Note 7): RIEEYEW B HE (7))
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
On the date of transfer PR
— Fair values of land use rights transferred — @Rt ERENRFE 44,808 19,643
— Carrying amounts of land use rights transferred — F & # + 3 {5 B M IR E(E 4,248 3,127
Excess of fair values over carrying amounts ATERAEHENSE 40,560 16,516
Less: Deferred taxation (Note 21) B+ T B TR (B RE21) (10,140) (4,129)
Revaluation surplus recognised in other REMEEMBRABROEGERH
comprehensive income 30,420 12,387

As at 31 December 2018, land use rights with net book amount
approximately HK$6,456,000 (2017: HK$4,633,000) were pledged
as securities for the Group’s bank borrowings (Note 23).

RZB-NF+ZA=+—R0 KEFE
#76,456,000/% 7T (= & — + 4F © 4,633,000
BIL)Z THMERBEEFESRAEES
TRIRAT A8 A2 FE R (M E23) »

EREEEZERARLATE —ZT-N\FFH
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A M mRME

9 Subsidiaries

The particulars of the Group’s principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2018 are set out as follows:

Country/place of

9 MEAQF

Particulars of

R_E-—NF+-_A=+—H rEEE
EME AR ZFHBEHINT

incorporation/establishment  Principal activities and issued/ Equity interest
Name and type of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital  attributable to the Group
EMARL/RIER HER ER1T/BK
28 EEERERR TEXBRREE Y RARE AEBEGRE
2018 2017
ZE-NE |ZE—+F
Directly held:
BEERE:
Joyocean Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding 4,000 shares of 100% 100%
liability company in the British Virgin Islands US$1 each
MEREERRA RBRAEE BRAHA REBRZES 4,000 & [ 1 100% 100%
ETRERR [Ed 3l
Skyyear Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding 4,000 shares of 100% 100%
liability company in the British Virgin Islands US$1 each
REERERRA RBRAEE BRAHA REBRZES 4,000 & [ 1 100% 100%
ETRERR [EVd 3l
Concept Creator Investments British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding 1,000 shares of 100% 100%
Limited liability company in the British Virgin Islands US$1 each
BBREERRA RBRAEE BRAHA REBRZES 1,0000% & iR A A 100% 100%
ETRERR [EVd 3l
China Ting Property Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding 1,000 shares of 100% 100%
liability company in the British Virgin Islands US$1 each
China Ting Property Limited EBRUAKE ARDA REBRAHEE 1,000k &R EE 100% 100%
ETRERR [EVd 3l
Indirectly held:
MERR:
Manfame Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding 1,000 shares of 100% 100%
liability company in the British Virgin Islands US$1 each
BEREERRA RBRAEE BRAHF REBRZES 1,0000% & iR A A 100% 100%
ETRERR [EVd 3l
Oceanroc Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding 1,000 shares of 100% 100%
liability company in the British Virgin Islands US$1 each
BEREERAF RBRAEE BRAHF REBRZES 1,0000% & iR A A 100% 100%
ETRERR [Ed 3l
Bolinding Hangzhou Textile The PRC, wholly foreign owned Garment manufacturing and ~ US$30,000,000 100% 100%
Technology Limited enterprise retailing, trademark
holding and property
investment in PRC
EHERMSAMBRERAR HE HIEBELE RRBERTE 30,000,000% 7 100% 100%
REBRRDERE
(hE)
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Subsidiaries (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARA S R M

9 KEARGE)

Country/place of

Particulars of

incorporation/establishment  Principal activities and issued/ Equity interest
Name and type of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital  attributable to the Group
EMARL/ RIER HER BERT/ER
=L EEERER TEXRREE MY RAFE AEBEGRE
2018 2017
ZE-N\E |ZT—+F
China Ting Fashion Trading Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding US$500,000 100% 100%
Limited company in Hong Kong
ZERREEHERAA B ARAH REEKR(BR) 500,000% 7 100% 100%
Witpower Investments Limited  British Virgin Islands, limited Investment holding in the 2,000 shares of 100% 100%
liability company British Virgin Islands US$1 each
BHREERAA RBRAHE BRAA REBRZEE 2,000/ & B A 100% 100%
ETREZR () <)
China Ting Garment Mfg Hong Kong, limited liability Garment trading HK$5,000,000 100% 100%
(Group) Limited company in Hong Kong
ERAR(EE)BERAA B ABRAH KRE 5 (EE) 5,000,0007 7T 100% 100%
Concept Creator Fashion Hong Kong, limited liability Garment trading HK$200,000 100% 100%
Limited company in Hong Kong
BBERERA R BiE ABRAT KREH(EE) 200,000 70 100% 100%
Concept Creator Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Garment trading HK$10,000 100% 100%
company in Hong Kong
) NG BiE ABRAT KRE 5 (EE) 10,0007% 7 100% 100%
Concept Creator Investments Hong Kong, limited liability Investment holding HK$100,000 100% 100%
(Hong Kong) Limited company in Hong Kong
EBRE(FRE)BERARA B ABRAT REEKR(BR) 100,003 7T 100% 100%
Diny (Hangzhou) Fashion The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing and US$3,130,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise retailing and trademark
holding in the PRC
BEGMBERERAR RECSAEBELE RRBERTER 3,130,000% 7¢ 100% 100%
FAEBR(RE)
Finity Fashion (Shenzhen) The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing and ~ HK$10,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise retailing and trademark
holding in the PRC
FEgesa (RIN BB A A HECAEBELR RRBERTER 10,000,000% 7T 100% 100%
FEBR(RE)
Finity International Fashion The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing and ~ US$10,900,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise retailing and trademark
holding in the PRC
FREEREEERAA HECAEBELR RRBERTER 10,900,000% 7T 100% 100%
FAERR(RE)
ZREEERERAT T - N\FER
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Subsidiaries (Continued)

Name

L]

Country/place of
incorporation/establishment
and type of legal entity
EMARL/RIER HER
EEERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iRA B R R MY RE

9 MEAFGE)

Principal activities and
place of operations

TEXBREEBE

Particulars of
issued/
paid-in capital
BRT/ER
BRAFE

Equity interest
attributable to the Group

Hangzhou China Ting Fashion
Company Limited
MMERBEEERAF
Hangzhou China Ting Tailored
Fashion Company Limited
MMESBERERERAA
China Ting Woollen Textile
Company Limited
ZRHIMN)EHEE
BRAA
Hangzhou Fuding Fashion
Company Limited
MMNEREEERAF
Hangzhou Fuxi Fashion
Company Limited
MMEBEREBERAR

Hangzhou Huaxing Silk Printing

Company Limited

MMERGBNEERAR

China Ting (Hangzhou) Textile

Technology Company Limited

Z8MMHERRBRAA
He Shan Tri-Star Silk Dyeing
and Printing Work Limited

BLU=E2#ANELE
BRRA

Zhongshan Tri-Star Textile
Printing Technology
Company Limited

RIL=Z 2GRN
BRRA

Hong Kong Fuhowe Fashion
Company Limited

EEEEREARAA

The PRC, wholly foreign
owned enterprise
B HEBELE
The PRC, wholly foreign
owned enterprise
B IEBELE
The PRC, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

HECSEBELR

The PRC, wholly foreign
owned enterprise
B AEEELE
The PRC, wholly foreign
owned enterprise
mEEEELE
The PRC, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

HECSAEBELR

The PRC, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

mEAEEELE

The PRC, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

HECSAEBELR

The PRC, wholly foreign
owned enterprise

mEHEBELE
Hong Kong, Limited liability

company

BB AERAT

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

Garment manufacturing
in the PRC
REE (R )
Garment manufacturing
in the PRC
AREE (R )
Wool textile and garment
manufacturing in the PRC

EHERRKREE(FH)

Garment manufacturing

in the PRC
PR EE (P )
Garment retailing in the PRC

AREE (PE)

Printing and dyeing of silk
and other high quality
fabrics in the PRC

HEREMBEERH
N ()

Garment manufacturing
in the PRC

PR EE (P )

Printing and dyeing of silk
and other high quality
fabrics in the PRC

AR T E A B R
N ()

Printing and dyeing of silk
and other high quality
fabrics in the PRC

AR T E A B T R
N ()

Investment holding in
Hong Kong

REZR(FE)

US$4,180,000

4,180,000 7T
US$8,000,000

8,000,000% 7t
US$59,500,000

59,500,000 7t

US$2,000,000

2,000,000% 7t
US$200,000

200,000% 7t
US$8,000,000
8,000,000% 7T
US$16,000,000
16,000,000 7T
US$3,321,000
3,321,000 7T
RMB6,250,000
ARE
6,250,0007C
HK$100,000

100,0007% 7T

AEBERRE
2018 2017
ZE-NE |ZE—+F
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%
100% 100%




Subsidiaries (Continued)

Country/place of

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARA S R M

9 MEAFGE)

Particulars of

incorporation/establishment  Principal activities and issued/ Equity interest
Name and type of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital  attributable to the Group
EMARL/ RIER HER BERT/ER
=L EEERER TEXRREE MY RAFE AEBEGRE
2018 2017
ZE-N\E |ZT—+F
Interfield Industrial Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Fabric printing and dyeing HK$23,410,000 100% 100%
company
RHEXERAA B ABRAT T £ E 23,410,000/ 7T 100% 100%
Shenzhen Fuhowe Fashion The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing Us$1,610,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise in the PRC
R ERBREAR AT HECSAEBELR PR B (R B 1,610,000% 7T 100% 100%
Zhejiang China Ting Brand The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing and US$8,200,000 100% 100%
Management Company owned enterprise retailing and trademark
Limited holding in the PRC
HIERRBERERAR FE IBEELE RRBERTER 8,200,000% 7¢ 100% 100%
RAEBR(RE)
Zhejiang China Ting Jincheng ~ The PRC, wholly foreign Silk fabric weaving US$3,820,000 100% 100%
Silk Company Limited owned enterprise in the PRC
HIEREHARAERAR  HE HIFBELE R E RS (P ) 3,820,000% 7¢ 100% 100%
Zhejiang China Ting Knitwear ~ The PRC, wholly foreign Knitwear manufacturing US$3,820,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise in the PRC
HTESHBRERRDA HECAEBELR St B B (R ) 3,820,000% 7 100% 100%
Zhejiang China Ting Textile The PRC, wholly foreign Home textile weaving US$11,200,000 100% 100%
Technology Company Limited ~ owned enterprise in the PRC
HIESHBHBERRR  HE HIFBELE RHEmbiE (P E) 11,200,000% 7T 100% 100%
Zhejiang Concept Creator The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing US$5,000,000 100% 100%
Fashion Company Limited owned enterprise in the PRC
TR EREAR AT HECNEBELR PR B (R ) 5,000,000% 7T 100% 100%
Zhejiang Fucheng Fashion The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing US$4,000,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise in the PRC
HTERBEEAR AT HECSNEBELR PR B (R ) 4,000,000% 70 100% 100%
Zhejiang Fuhowe Fashion The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing US$4,200,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise in the PRC
HIERBREARAT HECSAEBELR AR B (R ) 4,200,000% 7 100% 100%
Zhejiang China Ting Group The PRC, wholly foreign Properties holding and RMB50,000,000 92% 92%
Company Limited owned enterprise garment trading in
the PRC
MIZSEEEREAAR HE IBBELE BENERKKRES (RE) AR¥% 92% 92%
50,000,0007C
Zhejiang Huali Fashion The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing US$2,150,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise in the PRC
HTERBEAR AT HECAEBELR PR B (R B 2,150,000% 7¢ 100% 100%
Zhejiang Huayue Silk Products ~ The PRC, sino-foreign joint Spun silk fabric weaving Us$2,500,000 55% 55%
Company Limited venture in the PRC
HIEBHARRERAR  TE PHEELE R ERRE (P E) 2,500,000% 7¢ 55% 55%
ZREEERERAT T - N\FER
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9 Subsidiaries (Continued)

Country/place of

<)

B B 2 B (48)

Particulars of

incorporation/establishment  Principal activities and issued/ Equity interest
Name and type of legal entity place of operations paid-in capital  attributable to the Group
EMARL/RIER HER ER1T/BK
28 EEERER TEXBRREE LY RARE AEBEGRE
2018 2017
ZE-N\E |ZZ—+F
Hangzhou China Ting Industries The PRC, wholly foreign Investment holding RMB35,000,000 100% 100%
Investment Company Limited owned enterprise in the PRC
MMNERBEXREFRAR  HE HIEBELE REZR(RE) AR 100% 100%
35,000,0007T
Zhejiang Xinan Fashion The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing US$3,580,000 100% 100%
Company Limited owned enterprise in the PRC
i MREESSE Lol NG hECSAEBELR AR B (R E) 3,580,000% 7 100% 100%
China Ting Finity International ~ The PRC, wholly foreign Garment manufacturing and Us$8,500,000 100% 100%
Fashion Retail owned enterprise retailing and trademark
Company Limited holding in the PRC
ERFREEARBRETEAR TE HIEBELE KRBERTER 8,500,000% 7 100% 100%
NG| AR (PE)
The English names of certain subsidiaries referred herein represent HRAX iR 2 & TH B AR EER

management’s best effort in translating the Chinese names of

these subsidiaries as no English names have been registered.

The above table includes the subsidiaries of the Group which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. Giving details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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fe= A

WIN

I 75 ¥R &R Mt 5

Interests in associates 10 REEZENT 2R
2018 2017
—E-N\F S
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Interests in associates (Note (a)) A B N B 2 iz (M aE(a)) 1,846 1,806
Loans to an associate EXT—HBE QA — 70,929
Less: Provision for impairment R E B — (70,929)
Loans to an associate, net (Note (b)) EXT—HBERR -
% 58 (Bt aEb) ) — —
Notes: B 5
(a) Movements of interests in associates are as follows: (a) REE AR ZEREHNT -
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$"000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
At 1 January »—HA—H 1,806 1,673
Additions RE — 658
Share of profits/(losses) DEEF (B51E) 146 (632)
Exchange differences EHEE (106) 107
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 1,846 1,806

An associate, Hangzhou China Ting Property Development Company Limited
(“China Ting Property”), was granted certain loans by the Group in previous
years. It has repaid such loans and interests within its financial capacity during
the year ended 31 December 2017 and has been deregistered as at 31

December 2017.

(b) BERRAMMERFEHERBEERAR ((EH
FHEDNBEFEEASERTETER X
ERBE_Z—tFT-_A=+—HLEEFEAE
HUBEATHEZZEREMNE IR =-F

—tF A=+ —HEHEEL-

2017

—E—+F

HK$'000

FHAT

At 1 January w—A—H 197,685

Accrued interest income FET A B A 4,533

Repayment of loans from China Ting Property ELEMEEBER (250,489)

Reversal of impairment on loans to China Ting Property BERTFESEMEZ RAERED 41,135

Exchange differences &5 =8 7,136

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8 —
EQEEERERAT T - N\FFR
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10 Interests in associates (Continued) 10

Notes: (Continued)

REE QT e ()

B RE - (%)

() The summary of the financial information of the Group’s associates in aggregate () AEEBERNAZHBERNEGHBRENT ¢
is as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—t+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHx FHT
Total assets BERE 94,569 76,858
Total liabilities BELE 89,922 72,358
Revenue WA 202,361 605,972
Profit for the year F WG F 372 226,045
(d) The particulars of the Group's associates as at 31 December 2018 are set out (d) AEEBR-_FT-NF+_A=+—BZBEA
as follows: AZFHBEINOT

Particular of
Country of incorporation  issued/paid-in

Equity interest

Name and type of legal entity capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
B3 E95 BRI/
BB EEBEBRER EWRAGEE AR AL IR EX-E03
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+F
Hangzhou Ranyue Clothing Company The PRC, limited liability RMB1,400,000 28.57% 28.57% Wholesale and retail of
Limited (“Hangzhou Ranyue”) company garments
UM 1R AR 3 A R X B (M40 845 1) FE - BRAR AR 28.57% 2857% MRLBHERTE
1,400,0007T
Hangzhou Huasheng Accessories Company The PRC, wholly foreign US$250,000 25% 25%  Accessories and plastic
Limited (“Huasheng Accessories”) owned enterprise bags manufacturing
MMERHHARQA (EEEHH] hEAEBERE 250,000 7T 25% 25% BUEEM REH K
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RE B TS R R MR

. . . aose - =
10 Interests in associates (Continued) 10 REtERNRl 2= ()
Notes: (Continued) ft & ¢ (48)
(e) Set out below is the summarised financial information of China Ting Property, (e) NTRINBEE-FT—tF+-_A=+—HIF
which was material to the Group during the year ended 31 December 2017: EELFEHEUAEEREATEZMBEN
BE
2017
=t
HK$'000
FHT
Summarised balance sheet EEEBEREE
Net assets BEFE Not applicable “~ i
Summarised statement of comprehensive income ZEBRARBE
Revenue L'UN 465,608
Interest income, net M BN R 108
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year FRHENRE2EBRA LR 229,375
China Ting Property has been deregistered as at 31 December 2017. ESEMER-_T—tF+_A=+—HHH
Hide
(f) Set out below is the summarised financial information of the Group's shared (f) INTEHIIAEBSGBERRHH (TRIEER
portion of the associates excluding China Ting Property: BHE) ZMBEEREE -
2018 2017
—2-N\F ——tf
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Profit/(loss) and other comprehensive income/(loss) 4 A 1,/ (&18) &
for the year Hih2EKRA (F518) 146 (632)
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11 Interests in joint ventures 11 REERTIZHER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET F& T
Share of net assets DB EFE 14,690 3,307

(@)  Movements of interests in joint ventures are as follows: (@) REERAZEREHUT :
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
At 1 January R—HA—H 3,307 5,797
Additions NE 17,781 =
Share of losses AL EE (4,603) (2,791)

Elimination of profits from downstream ¥t 4 T i 22 5 % 7l

transactions (1,183) —
Exchange differences M W = (612) 301
At 31 December ®R+=ZRA=+—H 14,690 3,307

During the current year, the Group invested in a joint
venture, Hangzhou Weiding Technology Limited
("Hangzhou Weiding”), a company incorporated in the PRC
at a consideration of RMB15,000,000 (approximately
HK$17,781,000).

The Group's interests in joint ventures, which are unlisted,

RAFEFE - AEBNUNARIE
15,000,0007T (#17,781,000/% JT) &)
KREREGEARAMMESRIEE
RAR(MER]D  ZRAFRF
B & A 3L o

AEERAGERRGELET AR Z

are as follows: BT
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —T—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue N 5,332 10,712
Expenses 53 (18,060) (16,184)

Loss and total comprehensive loss FAEBEBREEEGESE

for the year (12,728) (5,472)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Interests in joint ventures (Continued)

(a)

=)
AR

R e

11 REEDQNT2REZ(E)

(Continued) (@ (&)
2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Current assets mENEE 33,950 12,634
Non-current assets EMBNE E 330 40
Total assets BEERE 34,280 12,674
Current liabilities mEAE (6,074) (6,190)
Total liabilities Sfe® | ©074) | (6,190)
Net assets BEFE 28,206 6,484
The particulars of the Group’s joint ventures as at 31 by AEBR=_Z-—NF+—_A=+-—
December 2018 are set out as follows: AzAE QA ZFHBEHINET

Country/place of
incorporation/
establishment and

Particular of
issued/paid-in

Equity interest

Name type of legal entity capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
ERAL/ RIER/ B#17/
=L wHRETEEER BERREFHE AEBEEERE TEXK
2018 2017
“E-N\FE | ZF—<F
Ting Camuto Enterprises Limited Hong Kong, limited US$5,100,000 51% 51% Garment retailing
(“Ting Camuto”) liability company
Ting Camuto Enterprises Limited %75+ R A & 5,100,000% 7t 51% 51% KRZTE
([ Ting Camuto |)
Hangzhou Weiding The PRC, limited liability  RMB15,000,000 50% — Garment retailing
company
TS e BRAA AR¥% 50% — KKZE
15,000,0007T
ZEREEERERAT —ZT-N\FER
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12
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Intangible assets

12 BLEE

Customer Exclusive
Goodwill ~ Trademark relationship supply right Total
BeE BE EFBE BRUERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTAET FTAET FTAET FTAET FTAET
Note (a) Note (b) Note (c) Note (d)
fii 5 (a) 1 5 (b) Hi 5 () B 5 (d)
At 1 January 2017 R-Z-t%-A-H
Cost A 92,786 55,740 14,691 31,015 194,232
Accumulated amortisation Rt EH — (45,090) (13,230) (22,999) (81,319)
Accumulated impairment Z:RE (87,856) — — — (87,856)
Net book amount REFE 4,930 10,650 1,461 8,016 25,057
Year ended 31 December 2017 HE=-ZT—+t &
+=—HA=+—H
IEFE
Opening net book amount FHERE FE 4,930 10,650 1,461 8,016 25,057
Additions NE — — — 4,870 4,870
Amortisation 58 — (2,442) (1,461) (3,732) (7,635)
Exchange differences N ER = = = 9 9
Closing net book amount FRIEEFE 4,930 8,208 = 9,163 22,301
At 31 December 2017 R=ZEB—+tF
+=A=+—H
Cost B AR 92,786 55,740 14,691 35,894 199,111
Accumulated amortisation REr = (47,532) (14,691) (26,731) (88,954)
Accumulated impairment 2EHRAE (87,856) = = = (87,856)
Net book amount B O F A 4,930 8,208 — 9,163 22,301
Year ended 31 December 2018 &‘EZE_—ZT— )\ &
+=A=+—H
LHEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 4,930 8,208 - 9,163 22,301
Amortisation B 5H — (2,442) — (4,256) (6,698)
Impairment BE (4,930) - - — (4,930)
Exchange differences N ER — — — (50) (50)
Closing net book amount FARE@FE — 5,766 - 4,857 10,623
At 31 December 2018 R=ZZE-—NF
+=HA=+—H
Cost 34N 92,786 55,740 14,691 35,844 199,061
Accumulated amortisation ESE 37 - (49,974) (14,691) (30,987) (95,652)
Accumulated impairment ZiHRE (92,786) — — — (92,786)
Net book amount BR 5 8 — 5,766 - 4,857 10,623
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Intangible assets (Continued)

During the year, amortisation expenses of approximately
HK$2,442,000 (2017: HK$2,442,000), and HK$4,256,000 (2017:
HK$3,732,000) have been charged in selling, marketing and
distribution costs and against revenue, respectively.

Amortisation expenses of approximately HK$1,461,000 have been
charged in administrative expenses during the year ended 31
December 2017.

Notes:

(a) Impairment tests for goodwill

Goodwill is allocated to the CGU identified for OEM garment business and
fabric printing and dyeing business, the identified groups of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combinations. The goodwill being
allocated to the OEM garment business resulted from the acquisition of
Zhejiang China Ting Group Company Limited is included in the OEM segment.
The goodwill being allocated to the fabric printing and dyeing business resulted
from the acquisition of Interfield Industrial Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively, “Interfield”) is also included in the OEM segment.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on higher of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use calculations. The value-in-use
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the
five-year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
growth rate of 3% (2017: 3%). The growth rate does not exceed the long-
term average growth rate for the business in which the CGU operates.

Goodwill of OEM garment business has been fully impaired in previous years.
As at 31 December 2017, goodwill of the Group solely represented the
goodwill of the fabric printing and dyeing business.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations are as follows:

ARA S R M

12 BILEE (&)
FR BT 42,442,0008 T (ZF—+
& : 2,442,0007% T.) &4,256,000%8 T (=&
—- 4 :3,732,0008 ) EDRIBHE - &
SR D A AR A R IR A AR o

BE-_ZT—+tE+-_A=+—BItEE "
#EE 5 X 491,461,000 TE BITHAX A
Mk o

Fit e

(a) AR ER A
BEOIETRIMERERKRELR REHEDRE
BRZERRZREELEM - RBHARA HE
R A < AT &R R E A BRI R o B UM
TEREEEREEARAIMESRERRFHER
ERREBZBEIIARRBEED B - BN
BT HEEGR DA REMBEAR (BB $
BOMELEZEMEDREB ZHEBTINAR
HERED B

WEEELEM 2 A ME SRR E D FERH
ERAREREERAEN ZUABRSERE)E
EoFRABEAEFENRBREEREMHETS
AFEHMzMEEE  ERRBEARSREE
B - AFHIRZ B ZBE&RE IR T XAt 2
fEFt I REHY - AFHRZ B 2R ERENE
3% (ZT—t%F : 3%) 2R EHE - HREK
TARBURCEFBENRBECEB 2 RPFY
BRE -

REBRERREB 2 HEERANFERR
ME-R_Z—+tF+_A=+—8 £&EH
BEZFIEHERELNEE -

RERBEEFEERAZEER/EIMT ¢

2018 2017
—2-n% —F—tF
Fabric printing and dyeing business ERENRER
Budgeted gross margin BHEEF X 18% 20%
Pre-tax discount rate R ¢ Al 47 3 K 14% 14%
Weighted average growth rate used to AL BESREZREREZ
extrapolate cash flows beyond the hnREF R X
budgeted periods 4% 8%

EREEEZERARLATE —ZT-N\FFH
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RAEMBRRWME

12 Intangible assets (Continued)
Notes:  (Continued)

(a) (Continued)

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past performance
and its expectations for the market development. The discount rate used is pre-
tax and reflects specific risks relating to the CGU. The weighted average
growth rate beyond the budget period is estimated based on current capacity

of the CGU.

During the current year, fabric printing and dyeing business under Interfield has
been undergoing business transformation. Certain property,
equipment and land use rights of Interfield have been demolished or relocated
as requested by local government during the current year (Notes 6 and 8). In
addition, Interfield’s property, plant and equipment and land use rights with
carrying amounts of HK$8,674,000 have been presented as held for sale
following the decision of the Group’s management to sell such assets in the
near term (Note 18). Thus, management is of the view that the recoverable
amount of the fabric printing and dyeing business as at 31 December 2018
became lower than the carrying amount of this CGU and such shortfall leads to
an impairment of goodwill of HK$4,930,000 during the year ended 31
December 2018. No other class of assets other than goodwill was impaired.

(b) The trademark represents the right to use the FINITY brand and TRENTA brand.

(c) The customer relationship was acquired in a business combination with Interfield

Industrial Limited.

(d) On 24 July 2009, the Group entered into an exclusive supply agreement with
Bernard Chaus, Inc. (“Bernard Chaus”) pursuant to which the Group was
appointed as the sole supplier of all its career and casual sportswear in the PRC
for a term of 10 years from the date of the agreement. In return the Group
agreed to pay Bernard Chaus an exclusive supply premium of US$4,000,000

(approximately HK$31,015,000).

On 31 May 2017, the Group entered into an agreement with Xcel Design
Group, LLC (“Xcel”) pursuant to which the Group was appointed as the sole
supplier in the PRC/Asia of certain women'’s apparel to certain Xcel's retail
licensees for a term of 44 months from the date of such agreement. In return
the Group agreed to pay Xcel an exclusive supply premium of US$500,000

(approximately HK$3,867,000).

On 1 November 2017, the Group entered into an exclusive supply agreement
with Hangzhou Ranyue pursuant to which the Group was appointed as the sole
supplier of Hangzhou Ranyue for a term of 10 years from the date of the
agreement. In return the Group agreed to pay Hangzhou Ranyue an exclusive

supply premium of RMB845,000 (approximately HK$1,003,000).

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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CEE
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(b)
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(d)

€
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ERERBAERREARH LT SRRETHE
HEMNE - FRERMBRRIRBLA - WRIRB R
ReEFENZFERR - RIEAFHBE 2 MEF
I RETVIRBER S EL B 2 AR fhat -

RAFERE - PEE T IR R EREST T EH
R o F - M BTHESK - R ETY
% BB R AR DA R+ b 5 A (BT sE6 % 8) BAE
FRAERE - o RAKEEEE (R
ANEEZSEENARTER THOEEEAR
8,674,000/ T 2 M3 - BB KR A K L fE
AREINARKELE (HF18) - At - ERER
AOEHHAEBHAKRESER-Z—/\F
+Z A=+ -—BERZREELEMNEREE -
ARERS P EBEBE T \ET_A=1—
A 1 4 [Z 75 86 {E4,930,0005%5 7T © B B 2N
ZIEEEYERE -

PR RAEAFINITY (GEE i) FITRENTAR KR 2 12
H e

EFPBAEDETBEXERARETERA G
B ES -

RZTZENF+AZ+WB  K%EEHBernard
Chaus, Inc.([Bernard Chaus |) 3% Ak 78 5 i & %
Bl ARERZEREETAAE LIERK
FEHEREFEAMZ BRUER  RERGE
B ## 5T+ F - A& E R 2 X {14,000,000% 7T
(#931,015,000 7T) B R # & # B FBernard
Chaus °

RZZ—+tFRAA=+—HB A% H #HXcel
Design Group, LLC ([ Xcel])iE B 5% ° AR 1K #
o AEERERAETAREPE /M ZE
RUEER - DB TE TXlWBEHAE - AH
MipHE BRSO +NER AEERE X
500,000 7T (493,867,0007% 7T ) B K £ /E 37 B 7
Xcel ©

RZT—tF+—A—B  AEBERMNBEHE
BBREERZ - REBZ  AEBRETAN
M E B REER - A bR B SHesT+
FoARAKMBRA B X AR #845,0007T (4
1,003,0007% 7T ) #8 K {4 F& 3R B T 470 M #5156 o
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iR A BTG R R MR

Inventories 13 BE
2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Raw materials R AR 131,504 150,779
Work in progress EE @ 148,623 163,994
Finished goods BIK 779,829 837,186
1,059,956 1,151,959
Less: Provision for inventories B FERE (64,295) (207,553)
995,661 944,406

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
of sales amounted to approximately HK$987,416,000 (2017:

HK$1,002,314,000).

Movements on the provision for impairment of inventories are as

BRABAXALFABERAZEFEE

X AN 4 /987,416,000 ST (—F — £ & ¢

1,002,314,000% 7T) °

FERERBORBNT :

follows:

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
At 1 January Rn—A—H 207,553 136,516

Charged to the consolidated FFAGREEa
profit or loss 30,441 59,215
Write off & (168,651) =
Exchange differences E N =R (5,048) 11,822
At 31 December R+—A=+—8” 64,295 207,553

As at 31 December 2018, inventories aged over four years
amounted to HK$168,651,000 (2017: Nil) were written-off as

unrealisable.

R-E—N\FE+-_A=+—H8 HK&KHBEB

W4 B4 #73168,651,0008 T (ZF—+
FENTEREXZERMME -

EREEZRERQTA

—E-N\FEER
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14 Financial instruments by category 14 REFE 2T HE
2018 2017
—E2-N\F Tt F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost BEEKATNEZEMEE
Trade and bill receivables EIRE 5 R & EKEE 462,573 450,331
Other financial assets at amortised cost 1% ## 4 Ak K 51| BR 2 E b
THMEE 303,994 —
Other loans and receivables H b B & E W R IE — 332,032
Pledged bank deposits BB IRITER 50,957 28,939
Fixed deposits EHEFER 20,553 —
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFMEHER 448,547 469,447
Available-for-sale financial assets AHfHESREE - 286,002
FVPL EBERATEINEERRRTEE
CERMEE 304,269 19,967
1,590,893 1,586,718
Financial liabilities EWMAE
Liabilities at amortised cost BREHAARIERZBE
Trade and other payables FET B 5B & H At
J& 1~ FRIE 620,234 594,485
Borrowings & 367,057 247,271
987,291 841,756
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15 Trade and other receivables 15 EWE SRR H B WK
b |
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —ET—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Trade and bill receivables (Note (i) BIRE 5 R & ENEE
(B EG)) 528,710 498,981
Less: Loss allowance (Note 3.1(d)) B B R (M RE3.1(d)) (66,137) (48,650)
Trade and bill receivables, net EE 5 BRAKRERZEFHE 462,573 450,331
Amounts due from related parties JE W 8 52 5 3kIE (Bt 5E34(c) )

(Note 34(c)) 45,649 15,226
Promissory note (Note (ii)) A =R (M EEG)) 38,124 36,914
Entrusted loans (Note (iii)) Z 7B & (B 7)) 166,022 174,443
Advances to Zhejiang Haoran (Note 16) 4 T /T & AB B3 (M zE16) — 17,528
Prepayments TE T RIE 143,075 126,689
Deposits and other receivables & & & H A fE R IE 110,336 117,871

965,779 939,002
Non-current portion JEBNERED &
— Promissory note (Note (ii)) — AL Z 5 (K REG)) — 34,978
— Prepayments for property, plant and  — ¥ % - BB k& E R B
equipment KA 15,526 —
Current portion BV ER &8 5> 950,253 904,024
965,779 939,002
The amounts due from related parties are unsecured, interest-free EREEFFRBRAEERR 22 RIZEXK
and repayable on demand. EE -
Notes: B 5
(i) Trade and bill receivables (i) EUEZRRARERES
The ageing analysis of gross trade and bill receivables based on invoice date is BHESERRENERABHEREZAHIE
as follows: oM
2018 2017
—B-NF —E—t4
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Up to 30 days 0%30H 239,711 284,150
31 to 60 days 31E260K 71,560 73,796
61 to 90 days 61290K 58,526 50,326
91 to 120 days 91Z120% 94,501 38,152
Over 120 days HBiE120K 64,412 52,557
528,710 498,981

EREEEZERARLATE —ZT-N\FFH 165



166

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

15 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

15

W E 5 kR H W
5 (&)

MieE: (4
Trade and bill receivables (Continued) (i) FE W B SRR % FE U R R (D)
For OEM garment sales, the Group’s trade receivables from its customers are RERERERKHEENS AREREETS
generally settled by way of letters of credit or telegraphic transfer with credit ZEWE SRR —MRUAERMRIEREFXEE
periods of not more than 90 days. The grant of open account terms without EEHTHIA0A - BARBEMNRE ZRER
security coverage is generally restricted to large or long-established customers SHBR—RESRTFERLHERFZARSER
with good repayment history. Sales to these customers comprise a significant HEP ASEEUERFHETZHE  HRR
proportion of the Group’s OEM garment sales. On the other hand, for new and BRERKEEEZB/ATD - o AEE—
existing customers with short trading history, letters of credit issued by these MEXEBARFERECHELPRRBEER
customers are normally demanded for settlement purposes. REEARAEERAR -
For sales of branded fashion apparel to franchisees, the Group normally RUBEEREFETZRERREENS - A5
requests payments in advance or deposits from such customers, with the B—-RERZEFFEMKEN RS - HEAUR
remaining balances settled immediately upon delivery of goods. The Group also ERNTEENFEE NEENGRERLCHER
grants open account terms of 30 credit days to long-established customers with HZRETFRIB0EGERZRZERSHR -
good repayment history.
Retail sales are settled in cash, by credit cards, through internet payment TEDNURE AR BEP LI HRBHE
service providers or collected by department stores/online retailers on behalf of BAEESHEEAR/ B LETEARAEER
the Group. The agreed credit terms with credit card companies are usually B-BEARARBEZEEHRBE R14B
within 14 days. Department stores and online retailers are normally required to Ao REEB-—REKBERFNE L TEFRE
settle the proceeds to the Group within 2 months from the date of sale. ERRERMEANMAEESEEMBEKE -
Bill receivables are with average maturity dates of within 2 months. BRERZ FHIBHAANEAAN -
The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables approximate their fair FERE SRR R AMERFE EEERELD
values. FEBE -
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected N e A B B S RS ME RS0 (L 5 R R
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade BRPEEEE  ZAENMERKE SRR E
receivables, except for those individually significant trade receivables or trade PR ERENEEEE HEBESEEANER
receivables at default which are to be tested individually. BHREAREENHEKE P ERABRIN - REH
BEETAR -
The loss allowance increased approximately by a further HK$19,025,000 for RAFEE  BREZERNEEREE—SEM
trade receivables during the current year. Information about the impairment of #719,025,000%8 7T - H BB E 5 R FURE R A
trade receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk, foreign currency risk 5 W P E R /O 12 BB - SNEE R BR % R R LB B9
and interest rate risk can be found in Note 3.1(d). B KA 2B 5E3.1(d) ©
Movements on the allowance for impairment of trade receivables are as EWEFERREREESOT -
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
At 1 January R—A—H 48,650 50,655
Charged to the consolidated profit or loss FFARAE BT 19,025 14,894
Write off i 88 — (17,316)
Reversal of provision BERE — (979)
Exchange differences X =5 (1,538) 1,396
At 31 December R+—A=+—~ 66,137 48,650
Promissory note (i) EAERE

The promissory note represents a senior unsecured promissory note with
original principal amounted to US$10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$77,350,000) converted from trade receivables due from a major customer
which will be payable in various installments until July 2019. The promissory
note is interest-bearing at 5.25% per annum.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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15 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

Entrusted loans

On 24 December 2012, the Group entered into three secured entrusted loans
(“Entrusted Loan A") with total principals amounting to RMB30,000,000
(approximately HK$35,562,000) due from a company established in the PRC
("Borrower A”) through a lending agent, a commercial bank in the PRC.
Entrusted Loan A is interest-bearing at 18% per annum payable on a quarterly
basis and the principal would be payable on or before 25 December 2014. An
affiliate of Borrower A pledged to the lending agent certain number of
properties located at Yuhang District in Hangzhou as collaterals.

Further on 5 February 2013, the Group entered into another eight secured
entrusted loans (“Entrusted Loan B”) with total principals amounting to
RMB130,000,000 (approximately HK$154,101,000) due from a company
established in the PRC, an affiliate of Borrower A (“Borrower B”), through a
lending agent, a commercial bank in the PRC. Entrusted Loan B is interest-
bearing at 18% per annum payable on a monthly basis and the principal would
be payable on or before 5 February 2014. An affiliate of Borrower B pledged to
the lending agent a parcel of land located at Lin‘an City in Hangzhou as
collateral.

On 27 January 2014, the Group renewed Entrusted Loan B with the borrower
for twelve months from the original expiry date of 5 February 2014 to 5
February 2015. The terms and conditions of Entrusted Loan B, other than the
repayment period, remained unchanged.

Corporate and personal guarantees were provided by affiliates of Borrower A
and B in favour of the lending agents to secure the obligations of Borrower A
and B under the entrusted loan agreements.

In June 2014, there was a failure for Borrower A and B to settle the interest
within the agreed payment schedules set forth in the agreements for both
Entrusted Loan A and B.

On 5 August 2014, the lending agent of Entrusted Loan B had reached eight
civil claim mediation agreements with Borrower B, in which Borrower B had
agreed to pay the principal of Entrusted Loan B amounting to RMB130,000,000
and the interest due up to 20 June 2014 before 31 October 2014. In addition,
according to the civil claim mediation agreements, Borrower B was required to
settle the interest incurred during the period from 21 June 2014 to the date of
settlement at 22.5% per annum.

On 17 November 2014, the lending agent of Entrusted Loan A had reached
three civil claim mediation agreements with Borrower A, in which Borrower A
had agreed to pay the principal of Entrusted Loan A amounting to
RMB30,000,000 and the interest due at the rate of 18% per annum before 30
November 2014.

Borrower A and B failed to settle the principal and the related interest in
accordance with the civil claim mediation agreements by 30 November 2014.

On 18 November 2014, Borrower A and B filed voluntary bankruptcy at the
People’s Court of Yuhang District which then approved the appointment of the
administrator and accepted the petition for bankruptcy proceedings. In
February 2015, the Group lodged proof of debts through its lending agents to
the administrator in respect of the claims. The first creditors’ meetings were
held on 19, 20 March and 2 April 2015.

ARA S R M

15 BWEZ KRR R HMEKRR
75 (%)

GEE

(iii)

()

EXER
RZT——F+-_A=+WB XEEBEBENR
RE(BR—HHPEFERTIZL=HEK—MH
RPBERZZ AR (ERAAD 2EEREZRE
RIMEFXERAD A BBERARS
30,000,0007T (48 & 7 #935,562,0007% 7T) ° & 5t
ERARFELI8%:TE  AEEEXM A&
ER-ZZE—NE+-_A=-+RARZAI Xt
ERAAZBB AR BURMMNTRNE 2 E T
MERRFERREERIBRR -

N R=ZB—=F—FHA  NEEBBER
RE(A—EPEEERT) REKR —BRBEH
IR A (B R AAKIEE B A B (TE R AB D))
WREIT LS DEERETER(ERE
MB) - A& A AR %130,000,0007T (4%
R #9154,101,000% 7o) ° & 7t B KBIR F 818%
e CABAXNM MASER_-_ZT—NE_A
AARZATEN o B RABKEE A R — AL
AN B 22 T ) £ 3 3R R T (B SRR MR R K

5o
oo

R-ZB—mFE—A=++tH AEBEBERAS
BEXEFB AP+ _EA EREMA-Z
—NF-_ARBRREEEE_T—AF_AAAB-
BR A RRERSN - RREE KB R R IR ST o

ERAARBR BB AR B ABHAIESZEA
ROt DFREAER - AREERAARBRT
REFEE ARG A T HRME

RZE-—WFRA  ERAARBRAEERET
B RA K BEY 175 35 FiT 8 #9045 15 18 A< 3R R OB (8
8o

RZZ—NENARR  ZEEFBHERKRIE
BERABERNBERERRAR G E  EHE
RABRER-_Z—HFE+A=+—HIXHZ
SEEHBHAE AR 130,000,000t REE ZF
—MEXNAZTHOFE o REZERS
HERARGE  ERABEBFER-_Z—IEX
B=+—BEFEBBHMIRENR25%E
B &R R o

RZZE—WE+—A++H ZRERAZER
REBEERAAZER=ZEREARFARAGE B
FEAAARNEBERZZ—mOE+—A=+HAX
HEFEERAZ R E A R¥30,000,0007T & & F
F R18% =t 8 2 B H 14 A 2 -

R-F-—NFE+—A=+H " fERAAEBKREE
ERRERRABHAINAS REBAE

R-ZZ-—WHE+—A+N\B - EBERAAEBRE
MEARERIRE BRRE - AR & RERE
BWEEBARBAREZRZEFE2HE KR=-F
—RF R ASEEBHERRERNREER
ANEREBARNBEBER - ERERASHR
ZE-RF=A+NAA Z+tHARKWAZH#E
T °

EREEEZERARLATE —ZT-N\FFH

167



168

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

2 =]

15 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(iii)

Entrusted loans (Continued)

Two rounds of open tenders were held by the trustee of bankruptcy in
November 2017 and March 2018, respectively, to identify potential
restructuring investors, which were both terminated with no qualified investor
identified. The third round of open tender commenced in March 2019 and is
still in progress as at the date of this report.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the fair values of the pledged collaterals
held by the Group for entrusted loans are determined based on the valuation
performed by the Valuer using market based valuation techniques with
reference to current prices in an active market of similar properties.

As at 31 December 2018, Entrusted Loan A of approximately HK$16,169,000
(2017: HK$16,990,000) was impaired. Based on the valuation performed by the
Valuer, fair values of the pledged collaterals for Entrusted Loan A and B is
higher than such entrusted loans’ carrying amounts. The directors are of the
opinion that there is no further impairment for Entrusted Loan A and B as at
31 December 2018.

15

W E 5 kR H W
5 (&)

B B

(iii)

(%)

EZRER ()
WEEBBABERZZ—tF+—ARZZT—N
FZARPIETREBRMABIE  AWEELESE
BEE HERDEEEERREEMSLIE -
FE-HARBER=_T—NE= ARK  RAR
EHEMEETH -

R-F-NER-F—+tF+t-A=+-8"
ARG E R AR EAEREOATE
Ty EE i A ER BB E AT S %
DL 32 5 B 05 60 AT (B A 8 (AL
-

RZE—NFE+=A=+—08 ZFXERAD
16,169,000/ 7t (= Z — + 4 : 16,990,000/ 7T)
WRATAE - RIBEEMAEGRE  RETE
AARBFEAEARNATEERZEERE
FOEAE EFRA ZXEHRARBR =T
—\E+ZA=+—BAEE—HREME-

Movements of the entrusted loans are as follows: ERERZEHMOT ¢
2018 2017
—g-n% —E—t#
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
At 1 January A—H—H 174,443 160,974
Exchange differences MEH =5 (8.421) 13,469
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H 166,022 174,443

The carrying amounts of the Group’s net trade and other

receivables (excluding prepayments, promissory note and entrusted

A6 B B W B B AR R R E A e U R IR (R
BEBENFIE AXRBERETER) FE

loans) are denominated in the following currencies: ZEREENA T B EEHE -
2018 2017
—F-N\F —F—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
HKS$ T 5,148 21,631
RMB AR 345,577 348,613
us$ e 264,798 227,043
Euro BT 3,035 3,669
618,558 600,956

The carrying amounts of other receivables are aged current and do

not contain any impaired assets.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018

H A e WA 2 BREE R BVEIRRIE - B3
RBIEEFRREEE



16

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

IVAN
S

I 75 ¥R &R Mt 5

FVPL 16 BAFEIREBEZRTE
BremEE
2018 2017
—EBE-N\EF —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET F& T
Listed equity securities (Note () EPBRAZEFMED) | ] 15393 | . 19967
FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran (Note (ii)) OIS R R R FERE
BartREZEMEE
(B =iy )
— Equity interests — RARES 41,511 —
— Shareholder’s loans — BRER 230,683 —
— Advances — B 16,682 —
D 285,876 .
304,269 19,967

Movements of the Group's FVPL for the year ended 31 December

2018 are as follows:

AEEBE—_T-N\F+-_A=1t—HL
FEMNBAFEINEERGERTREZS

BREEZBAT
FVPL in
Listed equity Zhejiang
securities Haoran Total
TSI & R
RATFEIERE
BRiRPREE
FHRARES ZERMEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FE T FHET
At 1 January 2018 R=ZF—NF—HF—H 19,967 — 19,967
Additions NE 136 — 136
Disposals BE (12) — (12)
Reclassified from available-for-sale 7 5% 4% % 7% B1 75 3R &= £ 8|
financial assets on adoption of FoORK AR HEES
HKFRS 9 (Note 2.2) MEEENHER
(Fff5£2.2) — 286,002 286,002
Reclassified from other receivables 7% & 4 B 75 3R &5 2 Al
on adoption of HKFRS 9 Fo5% B B H b B YLK
(Note 2.2) HEH D8 (H7F2.2) — 17,528 17,528
Fair value loss — unrealised AFEEE — KER
(Note 25) (Fff 5£25) (3.869) — (3,869)
Exchange differences BN =5 (829) (14,654) (15,483)
At 31 December 2018 RZTE—N\F
+=-—A=+—8H 15,393 288,876 304,269
ZEREEERERLIT T - N\FFH
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16 FVPL (Continued)

Movements of the Group’s FVPL for the year ended 31 December
2017 are as follows:

16

BAVEIRERSRPE
BzemEE (&)

AEBRE-Z—tF+-A=+—B1t
FEHRATEIRCESRTRE S

MEEZFHOT
Listed equity
securities
ERRAES
HK$'000
FH& T
At 1 January Rn—H—H 19,498
Additions NE 413
Disposals RE (6,360)
Fair value gain — unrealised (Note 25) NTEEE — K5 (KM F25) 5,059
Exchange differences X =5 1,357
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+tF+-H=+—~H 19,967

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

The fair values of all equity securities are based on their current bid prices in an
active market.

FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran

Zhejiang Haoran is a company engaged in commercial property development in
Hangzhou. The principal asset of Zhejiang Haoran is a commercial property
project located in Hangzhou (the “Property”), which is valued using direct
comparison approach.

Repayment of the shareholder’s loans of RMB211,285,000 (approximately
HK$240,996,000) has been in default since 2014. In June 2016, the Group
initiated a legal action against Zhejiang Haoran for the repayment of a portion
of the loans amounted to RMBS8,700,000 (approximately HK$10,313,000). In
March 2017, the People’s Court of Yuhang District decided in favour of the
Group and the Group subsequently collected the relevant loan together with a
compensation of interest of RMB8,895,000 (approximately HK$10,277,000)
(Note 24).

The Group further issued two demand letters to Zhejiang Haoran to demand
for the repayment of a portion of the shareholder’s loans of RMB172,700,000
(approximately HK$196,652,000) and part of the advances of RMB7,250,000
(approximately HK$8,256,000) in March 2017 and August 2017, respectively.
Legal actions had been initiated subsequent to the issue of the demand letters.

In June and August 2018, the aforesaid legal actions for repayment of
shareholder’s loans and advances against Zhejiang Haoran were rejected by the
Hangzhou Intermediate People’s Court and the People’s Court of Yuhang
District (collectively the “Courts”), respectively. Whilst the judgements from the
Courts stated that the Group has the legal right to recover such amounts, it
was of the view of the Courts that the Group would not be able to request for
immediate repayment for repayment until Zhejiang Haoran has settled all third-
party debts.
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MARAEFNRFEDRAREEMGHR
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BRI RNEAFEIRERSRPEEZ
TREE
BOTERR—ERMMEEEEDEREOR
Al MDA EBERERMRMMAEEYE
HE (ZWE]D ZMENERLBRESTHE
B~

A% 32 B 3% A R #211,285,0007T (#7240,996,000
BT)WBERE T NFREEN - R
—RERA  RNEE AL RIBRERFA -
ZSROMT T 98 18 38 56 5 B XA R #8,700,0007T
(#910,313,000 ) e R=ZE—+F = - ;41
[EWNEA S akiNS B+ 7N SR [ B 18 MR AR
B E R ERF S EE AR 88950007 (4
10,277,000 7t) (P ##24) °

AEEBR-_T—+tF=AR=-Z—tFN\AD
B — HAAIEA B RS TBAE - 3k
& 38 3 o IR R E % A R #172,700,0007T (4
196,652,000/ 7T ) K & 55 258 A R #7,250,0007C
(#98,256,000/7T) ° AN M B R B H 2B A E
BIREER TR -
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BE A RER (B8 AR £ Bl 8K @ Lt
HDERRERRERRBROEEFAD - EE
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16 FVPL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(ii)

FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran (Continued)

Management has disagreed with the Courts’ judgments on the basis that there
is no legal evidence indicating such shareholder’s loans and advances are
subordinated to other creditors or otherwise such loans could only be repaid at
the time of winding up of Zhejiang Haoran. In July and August 2018, the
Group lodged appeals to the relevant courts in the PRC for the repayment
claims regarding the shareholder’s loans and advances, respectively, and sought
to overturn the judgements rendered for each of the claims. In February 2019,
the appeals were dismissed by the relevant court and the original judgements
made by the Courts were remained unchanged.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group took further legal actions
against Zhejiang Haoran including a petition to wind up Zhejiang Haoran as a
shareholder and to enforce its right as a shareholder of Zhejiang Haoran to
access books and records. The petition to wind up was overruled by the
Hangzhou Intermediate People’s Court in November 2018, but the Courts ruled
that the Group has the right to access to certain documents and records of
Zhejiang Haoran as a shareholder, including the sales contracts of the Property,
in February 2019.

Having considered the litigation results, the Group decided that it will continue
to pursue recovery of its FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran through petition to the Trial
Supervision Division of the Higher People’s Court of Zhejiang Province and/or
the Supreme People’s Court of the People’s Republic of China to seek for
retrial of the Group’s petitions to demand for immediate repayment from
Zhejiang Haoran. Moreover, the Group will inspect certain documents and
records of Zhejiang Haoran in order to collect more information about its
business and financial performance upon the expiration of appeal period for
such judgement.

As advised by the Group's legal counsel as to the PRC law and after
considering the merits and basis of the legal proceedings between Zhejiang
Haoran and the Group, despite of the aforesaid appeals lodged by the Group
being dismissed by the relevant court, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that the Group will be successful in the forthcoming legal proceedings.
Thus, the directors of the Company considers the assumptions and basis
applied in the fair value assessment of the FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran, continued
to represent their best estimates and such financial assets will be realised in the
coming twelve months from 31 December 2018.

The Group was unable to obtain any financial information of Zhejiang Haoran
as at and for the year ended 31 December 2018. As such, the fair value of
FVPL in Zhejiang Haoran as at 31 December 2018 was estimated by
management using the Adjusted NAV approach based on Zhejiang Haoran's
financial information as at 31 December 2016, which was its latest financial
information made available to the Group. The fair value of the Property has
been adjusted to take into account the latest market price movements of
similar properties at nearby locations during the current year assuming the
construction of the Property has been completed during the year. Interest
expense for the current year has been accrued for interest-bearing liabilities
outstanding as at 31 December 2016 and assuming the balance outstanding
and the interest rates remained unchanged from those as at 31 December
2016. Construction costs incurred subsequent to 31 December 2016 have been
accrued up to mid-2018 which is the assumed completion date of the
construction of the Property, assuming such costs have been incurred in
accordance with the original project budget provided to the Group with certain
overruns. Other assumptions adopted in the valuation, including but not limited
to the minority interest discount rate, were assumed to remain unchanged from
those as at 31 December 2017.
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Cash and bank balances

17 B RBITEER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FER FAT

Cash at bank and in hand RITHERRFERS 402,833 400,048

Short-term bank deposits (Note (a)) REHRITER (@) 45,714 69,399

Cash and cash equivalents RekReFMBEHEE 448,547 469,447

Fixed deposits (Note (b)) TE 77 3K (M 5% (b)) 20,553 —

Pledged bank deposits (Note (c)) B RITE R (M E() 50,957 28,939

520,057 498,386

Denominated in: A3 EHEETE

HK$ BT 9,318 13,721

RMB (Note (d)) AR (HfzEd) 314,924 281,818

us$ 7T 193,773 196,526

Other currencies Hh g% 2,042 6,321

520,057 498,386

Notes: Bt 3

(a) The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits is 2.62% (2017: 2.32%) (a) BHBRTERZERFNER2.62% (ZF—+
per annum; short-term bank deposits have a maturity ranging from 7 days to F:232%) BHBROGERZEBENTIEE
less than 3 months. 3EALT »

(b) As at 31 December 2018, the effective interest rate on the Group's fixed deposits (b) RZTE—N\F+_A=+—8 XEETEHEX
is 3.68% per annum; fixed deposits have a maturity ranging from 3 months to HEBRERNRE368%  THERZINHENF
less than 1 year. 3EAEIEF -

(c) Bank deposits of approximately HK$50,957,000 (2017: HK$28,939,000) have ((a) #750,957,000% 7T (= T — + £ : 28,939,000/

been pledged for trade finance facilities made available to the Group by
relevant banks.

The effective interest rate on pledged bank deposits is 1.45% (2017: 1.29%)
per annum.

The Group’s cash and bank balances denominated in RMB are deposited with
banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB denominated balances into
foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the
rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government.
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18 Assets held for sale

As at 31 December 2018, certain property, plant and equipment
and land use rights located in Heshan, PRC of approximately
HK$5,154,000 and HK$3,520,000, respectively, have been
presented as held for sale following the decision of the Group’s
management to sell such assets in the near term to cooperate
with Heshan local government’s “three old” transformation for old
towns, old factories and old villages. As at the date of this report,
such assets held for sale are open to tender through public
auction platforms. The Group has been working with local
government and currently in the process of identifying appropriate
potential buyers.

ARA S R M

18 BFEHEEE
R-ZE-—NF+_A=+—H8 AfRRL%HB
IWEMRFHERE - EFE ENEI=
Elhg AEEEEEEERNOHALE
ZEBERRTE © 2% 5 5HE 495,154,000
7 7T 53,520,000/ 7T #9 & T A2 5 B &S 1L
MY BEELBNLHEREZ A
BELE RARSAH ZERHELE
BEABARABEFAETARBE K
SE-—EHEHBNRSG BREVEE
HE)BEER °

19 Share capital 19 B
Number of shares Total
lgvig 4= F
(in '000) HK$'000
(F &) FTAT
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each FRRO10B Tz BB
Authorised: JETE
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 HRZ=-T—+F—H—H "
and 2018 “E—AFRE-NF
+=-—A=+—8H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 R—_FE—+F—H—H"
and 2018 —E—AFRE-NF
+=—A=+—H 2,099,818 209,982
EQEEERERAT T - N\FFR
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20 Reserves 20 f#fE
Share-hased Capital
Share Capital  Contributed Statutory compensation  redemption  Revaluation Exchange Retained
premium reserve surplus reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total
YUk
RiEE ERGE LN EERE fHEE EXROGE EfGE NERE REEF &3t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TER TER TER TR TER TER TER TER TER TEL
(Note (i)) (Note (ii)) (Note (iii)) (Note (iv) (Note (v))
(HEEG) (&G (&G (&) (HE)
At 1 January 2018 RZF-\5-A-A 978,251 1,746 (4,624) 136,849 1m 241 21,54 308,734 852,162 2,315,954
Profit for the year EREH - - - - - - - - 21,065 21,085
Profit appropriation "HAR - - - 5,300 - - - - (5,300) -
Currency translation differences ERpEEE - - - - - - - (143,334) - (143,334)
Revaluation surplus upon transfers of & T HENEEAREN
owner-occupied properties to $7EMHERH (N
investment properties (Note 7) 7) - - - - - - 207,638 - - 207,638
At 31 December 2018 RIE-N\E
tZA=t-R 978,251 1,746 (4,624) 142,149 701 2,41 235,162 165,400 867,907 2,401,303
Share-based Capital
Share Capital ~ Contributed Statutory  compensation redemption  Revaluation Exchange Retained
premium reserve surplus Teserves reserve reserve reserve reserve eamings Total
HRAZH
fihEE BRGE HARS ERGBE AMEE EARORRE Bt NERE 2E @zt
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn Thn ThEn TEn Thn ThEn TEn Thn ThEn TEn
(Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (i) (Note (iv) (Note (v))
(K&6) (GE) (i) (H&Em) (Kizt)
At 1 January 2017 RZF-t5-A-A 978,251 1,746 (4,624) 134,387 701 241 10,572 159,004 764,149 2,058,797
Profit for the year ERET - = = = = = = 149,689 149,689
2016 final dividend paid “3-FEHAERE = = = = = = = = (17,848) (17,888)
2017 interim and special dividend =t ERFHER
paid (Note) RIS (k) - = = = = = = = (41,366) (41,366)
Profit appropriation #HAR = - - 2462 - - - - (2462) -
Currency translation differences EhagzE = = = = = = = 170,008 = 170,008
Revaluation surplus upon transfer of % T EANEEAREN
certan porton of an £ ERHEH ()
owner-occupied property to
investment property (Note 7) = = = = = = 16,952 = = 16,952
Release of exchange reserve to profit R~ BB A 7K
or loss upon deregistration of an ~~ EHE B EEZ R
assoclate = = = = = = = (20,278) = (20,278)
At 31 December 2017 RIF-£
+2h=t-8 9851 176 e 13689 7071 W s BB B 23155
Note i3
Representing: R%:
2017 interim dividend paid ZE-tERRTHRE = = = = = = = = (29607) (29,607)
2017 interim special dividend paid ~ —E-+£EfRHER
RE = = = = = = = = (11,759) (11,759)
_ _ _ _ _ - - = (41,366) (21,366)
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20 Reserves (Continued)

21

Notes:

(i) Capital reserve represents capital contributions other than the paid up share
capital of the subsidiaries comprising the Group.

(ii) Contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation of
the Group took place in 2005 over the nominal value of the share capital of
the Company issued in exchange.

(iii) Statutory reserves include statutory reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund.
In accordance with relevant rules and regulations on foreign investment
enterprises established in the PRC, the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are required
to transfer an amount of their profit for the year to the statutory reserve fund,
until the accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of their registered capital.
The statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by the relevant
authority, to make good of previous years’ losses or to increase the capital of
these subsidiaries.

The appropriation to the enterprise expansion fund is solely determined by the
board of directors of the subsidiaries in the PRC. The enterprise expansion fund
can only be used to increase capital of group companies or to expand their
production operations upon approval by the relevant authority.

(iv) Share-based compensation reserve represents value of employee services under
the Group’s Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and Share Option Scheme.

(v) Capital redemption reserve represents the nominal amount of the shares
repurchased.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes relate to
the same fiscal authority. The offset amounts are as follows:

ARA S R M

20 f#fE ()
GEE

(i) EXFERBRREE AT REREEET &M
BARZBBBA -

(i) AREZHARBERBE_TTAFAKE R
7 2548 BT MR B B U8 2 ) 2 BB 1) T M B S X ) A
BITMMERBZ RAEE 2 M2 Z8 -

(iif) EERBRBLAEAREREERRES - BRE
RABERIIIERECEZBBRARR
FREZHBERBAREAS —EFEENSE
HEZEAEARE EERFAHSRTERLT
M&EA50% - LAAMBEAER  EAELESE
ARAARBREAEFEE 2 BRI ML EHEA
BZEAR-

CEFRESZHOEMABEBTESMBARZ
EREETE  CHBAREBIER CEXRRES
ERREEMEEBTARZER  KAERS
HAEER-

(iv) VAR ST SR R A SR B B R R B S A
AR B RS BIA T 2 R A RBEE -

(v) AXREFEREBLORON ZEE-

21 EEFREH
R A GORNIT 2RI BN B E A
BERED R BUE B E I 9 LR IE TS B R
— 815 W BB RRES - AR I 8B E AT 19 B
BERAME - EHBEDT :

2018 2017

—®-NE —E &

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FABT

Deferred income tax assets BEIEFTIS TR & E 78,463 80,862
Deferred income tax liabilities FEEFSHRARE (83,136) (21,752)
(4,673) 59,110

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are
expected to be settled after more than 12 months.

BREMSHREERELERAEBSHEERAR
BE+—EAREMHE-

EREEEZERARLATE —ZT-N\FFH
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21 Deferred income tax (Continued) 21 EZERBH (E)
The movements in net deferred income tax (liabilities)/assets are as BEMBHR (AR  BEFEZ2EHMN
follows: ™
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
At 1 January R—H—AH 59,110 45,411
Credited to the consolidated profit or loss &t A 47 & 18 25 & (f 5£27)

(Note 27) 6,668 14,481
Debited to equity (Note 27) & Az (B 5E27) (69,213) (5,651)
Exchange differences fEH =58 (1,238) 4,869
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 (4,673) 59,110
The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during BEMEMEERABRFRNZEEH (T
the year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of FTRRFE - RAE R 2 &%) W
balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: T 8

Decelerated Provisions Net fair
tax for value losses Government
depreciation inventories of FVPL grants Total
BRATESIRE
BRERTEEZ
SREEZLAY
RERENE FERE EFERE BR#E @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAL TAT TEL TAL
Deferred income tax assets ELREHEE
At 1 January 2017 R-Z—tF—-f—-H 22,890 34,131 2,251 = 59,272
Exchange differences EXER 1,737 2,956 122 = 4,815
Credited/(charged) to the REEBRRZIA/ (NB)

consolidated profit or loss 3,036 14,804 (1,065) = 16,775
At 31 December 2017 and RIZ—tE+ZA=+-HEK

1 January 2018 “E-\%-8-H 27,663 51,891 1,308 — 80,862
Exchange differences ERZE (1,440) 2,779) (87) (14) (4,320)
Credited to the consolidated SAGEBRE

profit or loss 2,903 7,610 674 381 11,568
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+-A=+-H 29,126 56,722 1,895 367 88,110
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21 Deferred income tax (Continued) 21 BEERMBH (&)
Revaluation

Accelerated of buildings Undistributed

tax and land Customer  profits of PRC
depreciation use rights relationship entities Total

EFRFR hmELE
MRHEERE THhRAE EFBA ADREM @it
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TER TER TERL TER

Deferred income tax liabilities ~ EEFEHERE

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+E—H—H 1,049 10,796 244 1,772 13,861
Exchange differences ERER (10) (44) = — (54)
(Credited)/charged to the REABRERITA/

consolidated profit or loss (k) (495) (359) (244) 3392 2,294

Charged to equity arising from FERNZEZREANER
revaluation of an owner-occupied  Effi i B RAH B
property upon transfer to

investment property = 5,651 = = 5,651
At 31 December 2017 RZE—t&+-A=1-H 544 16,044 - 5,164 21,752
Revaluation
Accelerated of buildings  Undistributed
tax and land use  profits of PRC
depreciation rights entities Total
EffEFR hE S
mRBIETE TERE FRABET st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TER TER TER TER
Deferred income tax liabilities EZFEHER
At 1 January 2018 RZZ—\$—A—H 544 16,044 5,164 21,752
Exchange differences EXER ) (3,080) - (3,082)
Charged to the consolidated FAGEERR
profit or loss 165 652 4,083 4,900
Charged to equity arising from ERMEHEERENER
revaluation of owner-occupied BfMEREANK
properties upon transfer to
investment properties — 69,213 — 69,213
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\F+=ZA=1+—8 707 82,829 9,247 92,783
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21 Deferred income tax (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, deferred income tax liabilities of
approximately HK$58,502,000 (2017: HK$59,482,000) have not
been established for the withholding taxation that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries in the
PRC totaling HK$1,170,042,000 (2017: HK$1,189,646,000) as the
directors considered that the timing of the reversal of the related
temporary differences can be controlled and the related temporary
difference will not be reversed nor taxable in the foreseeable

future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. The Group
did not recognise deferred income tax assets of approximately

HK$66,380,000 (2017: HK$60,166,000) in respect of

amounting to approximately HK$269,403,000 (2017:
HK$240,665,000), that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. The tax losses expire from 2019 to 2022 (2017:

2018 to 2021).

22 Trade and other payables

21

22

EEFTEH (&)
R-ZZE—NF+_A=+—H ELFRE
i & & 458,502,000/ (=T — £ F :
59,482,000/ 7t) I 7 ¥ 1 B & T BT /B 2 &)
im A B 2 ) ££1,170,042,0008 70 (= &
—-£ 4 :1,189,646,0007 70) B 2 FEHHL
EL B E - AEER A AT A R
EEBEDNREBEABBRREEB TSN
B RBEE R A& IR R o

ikt AE 8 5% 765 1| 2 AT 35 38 oK 2R FE AR i v I
B EEMEHEEREEB B BER
R o ZN £ [ 30 £ Tk AT 45 DA S R PR FE AR
B A 2§ 18 49269,403,000 T (= &
— + 4F : 240,665,000/ jT) M # R & T A
15 %t & E #4966,380,000/8 7T (=T —+ 4 :
60,166,000 7T) - HIEEEHR = — &
EZT_—FEmCE—tF: 2T AN
FEZTZ—F)-

BN E SRR E ME N
5

2018 2017

—E-N\E —T—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Trade and bill payables EREZERRENZRE 503,088 475,551

Other payables and accruals H h fE 1~ ;OE K B R B 189,804 231,293
Amounts due to related parties JE A~ B 32 75 I (B 5E34(0) )

(Note 34(c)) 1,269 1,045

694,161 707,889
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22 Trade and other payables (Continued) 22 ENHESZRARRAEMENSK

The ageing analysis of trade and bill payables based on invoice

5 (&)

BNBESEREENERZERAH IR

date is as follows: RAOMTAT :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Up to 30 days 0£30H 304,335 329,734
31 to 60 days 31£60H 65,514 41,063
61 to 90 days 61£290H 32,570 24,604
Over 90 days B0 H 100,669 80,150
503,088 475,551

Bill payables are with average maturity dates of within 2 months.

The carrying amounts of the Group'’s trade and other payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

RENREBEZFHIHARMBEAR -

AEBZENEBEIRAREMENRELZ
REEATIIEBE:

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —T—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHT

HK$ T 30,027 11,278
RMB AR # 575,627 565,570
Other currencies Hfth &5 & 14,580 15,637
620,234 592,485

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables approximate
their fair values.

&S 5 B 30 I B Al Y BOR 2 BR (A 2

HRAFERS -

EREEZRERQTA

—E-NEER
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23 Bank borrowings 23 RITER
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —T—tfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Bank borrowings RITHEK
— secured — A 367,057 247,151
— unsecured — EEA — 120
367,057 247,271
Borrowings are analysed as follows: BRATAT -
2018 2017
—E-NEF —tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FHET
Portion of bank borrowing due for —FANEHAEEZRITEKE
repayment within one year which HEHHAERZREEK
contains a repayment on demand ;— BER )
clauses — secured (Note) 178,495 41,531
Portion of bank borrowing due for *i?éﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ%z%ﬁﬁ{ﬁ%’\%ﬁ
repayment after one year which contains HEF#HEERERERK
a repayment on demand clauses — ;— BEB )
secured (Note) 127,073 167,334
Term loan due for repayment within one —F A2 HEE 2 AHE K
year — secured — BHEA 61,489 38,286
Term loan due for repayment within one —F RE|HEE 2 GHEK
year — unsecured — K — 120
Total bank borrowings RITIE RAERE 367,057 247,271
Note:  According to Hong Kong Interpretation 5, “Presentation of Financial Statements Mk : BESBREBESHKIMBERRZZY — BERA
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that contains a Repayment on HBARERERKRRZEHERZHE] A
Demand Clause”, if a term loan agreement includes an overriding repayment HERGAME 2 AR — 1) 2 B ERKEEER
on demand clause (“callable feature”), which gives the lender a clear and ([fESHE]) - 46 T BEFAE A i 2 IR (FRE R
unambiguous unconditional right to demand repayment at any time at its sole AREREENEERER  BERABREEE
discretion, a borrower shall classify the term loan as a current liability in its BERABERERSBERRDERE  RERE
balance sheet, as the borrower does not have an unconditional right to defer RALEBBIGERMNATHEERBRZ HRE
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. EEREHPHEEL T @A - Bt R=F
Accordingly the long-term portion of the Group’s bank borrowing was classified —N\F+ZA=+—8 AEEZRITERKH
as current liabilities in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2018. BOEREEBBRADBERARDAE -
At 31 December 2018, the secured bank borrowings were secured n NE+—A=+—8  5EAR

by certain leasehold land and buildings (Note 6) and land use
rights (Note 8) with aggregated net book amounts of
approximately HK$132,130,000 (2017: HK$131,843,000).
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Bank borrowings (Continued)
An analysis of the carrying amounts of the Group’s bank

IVAN
S

23 RITREM(A)

I 75 ¥R &R Mt 5

AEERTEFEEHEREEREE 2D

borrowings by type and currency is as follows: T -
2018 2017
—B-N\F —F—
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
HK$ at floating rates BT R EF X 305,568 208,865
RMB at fixed rates AR - EEF X 61,489 38,406
367,057 247,271
The effective interest rates per annum at the balance sheet date REERAZEBRFMNENDT :
are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
HK$ I 3.38% 2.55%
RMB AR 5.27% 5.05%

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings approximate their fair
values.

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

RITEFR 2 REERER

NEERE -

REBRERERBREWT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Floating rate Z B
— expiring within one year — —FANER 320,186 358,089
Fixed rate £ M =
— expiring within one year — —FRNEMm 58,073 81,180
378,259 439,269

The facilities expiring within one year are annual facilities subject
to review at various dates during 2019.

—FRERZBARFERE AR-T

—hEARATRBHTIAER -

EREEZRERQTA

—E-NEER
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24 Other income 24 Hyg A
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FBT FHIT
Compensation received (Note 16(ii)) B W E S (M aE16() — 10,277
Rental income el A 6,210 9,945
Commission income maelA 4,953 3,694
Scrap sales 5 B}EE & 1,301 1,987
Government grants BT #/ Bh & 2,846 783
Investment income wEBA 2,556 168
Others Hity 3,610 1,864
21,476 28,718
25 Other gains, net 25 Hfttl s F 5
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Net exchange gains/(losses) FEH W (&18)F58E 31,637 (4,217)
Fair value gains on investment properties % & )3 /) A F(E Wz (K aE7)
(Note 7) 4,133 2,186
Fair value (loss)/gain on FVPL RRAFEINREEREX T ER
— unrealised LEMBEENATHE
(BB s — RER (3.869) 5,059
Fair value gain on FVPL — realised RRATFEINREEREXTER
ZEMEEMNATFEKE —
B 47 5,370
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE « BE & EZED
and equipment (B#B) = (3,959) 3,902
Reversal of provision for customer claims %[0 & F B & ¥ {5 1,985 549
Gain on requisition and demolition of M B KRR DA K& b
property, plant and equipment and land  FB# & B & #r Bk U =5 (BT )
use rights (Note) 27,071 =
Impairment loss on goodwill (Note 12) AR EER (MHE12) (4,930) —
52,115 12,849

Note:  During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s property, plant and
equipment and land use rights located in Hangzhou, of a net book amount of
HK$13,278,000, were made requisition of by local government to be
demolished and/or relocated. Relevant compensation amounted to
HK$40,349,000 were granted by local government with this regard, resulting in
a net gain of HK$27,071,000. Such compensation has been fully received by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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WIN

AR BRARME

26 ELE WA KRB

2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET F& T
Finance income — interest income on BERKRA — FEWAKRE
— bank deposits — |RITFER 4,265 3,668
— loans to an associate (Note 34(a)) — BEXT—HBEAQR
(Fft 5£34(a) ) — 4,533
— promissory notes — AHERE 3,077 3,145
LN @00
Finance costs & A A
— interest expense on bank borrowings — $R1T{E A E X (10,149) (8,668)
— other interest expense — HMFERALX (454) —
] (10603) | ! (8,668)
Finance (cost)/income, net BE(RA) WA FE (3,261) 2,678
Income tax expense 27 IEBAX
2018 2017
S —T—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHT
Current income tax BN ER AT 15 B¢
— Hong Kong profits tax (Note (a)) — BBH B (HEa@)) 8,663 16,164
— PRC enterprise income tax (Note (b)) — FREIRZEABH (H:Eb)) 16,077 14,202
— Over-provision in prior years — ROEFEBEEE (4,005) (58)
Withholding tax SCEiki — 1,074
Deferred income tax (Note 21) IEEFT SR (MY #E21) (6,668) (14,481)
14,067 16,901
ESEEERERAT T N\FFRH
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=l
A

27

Income tax expense (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 8.25% on the
estimated assessable profit up to HK$2,000,000 and 16.5% on any part of
estimated assessable profit over HK$2,000,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31 December 2017.

The PRC enterprise income tax is calculated based on the statutory profit of
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC in accordance with the PRC tax laws and
regulations. The standard PRC enterprise income tax rate is 25% during the
years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, a subsidiary of the
Group, Hangzhou Fuxi Fashion Co. Ltd., is qualified for a preferential income
tax rate of 15% under the tax breaks to small and micro business. The
remaining PRC subsidiaries of the Group are subject to standard PRC enterprise
income tax rate of 25%.

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the

theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average

27

Fr &% B8 < (i)

B

(a)

BE-Z—)\G+-_A=+—HBILFE sl
FE 5% B i A K #2482,000,00058 7T M1 & ¢ B
1S B ABE 8.25% 1 B 45 - T Bk 1 AT FEER B %
F| 8 382,000,00078 JT LA E YRS D T E - BA
B K 16.5% & 1& -

BE-Z—tF+-A=+—RLLFE FEH
15 B T 12 1k 5 8 AR Bl s ) A % % 16.5% 1 B
% o

B 5 FT 15 B Y B R 1E R B a1 AR 32 e Y B
REIRPEBER AR T EOETEFIMtE -
RBE-Z—\ER-_FB—+t&E+=-A=+—
BILFE  ZENFECEMSH TR H25% °

RBE-F-N\FR-F—tF+-H=+—
N2 -SE T RS VNETIE £ T
BRATRE MG EORBERTAERE
B15% 0 @BABBIBIE - AR08 TR A
B 73 7149 1A 259% i 12 o B 3 7 18 BLBE % 0
Bi o

7N 55 B A BR P 1S 0 A0 A1) 2 75 08 B R AR AR
BEBZEMNERZNEFAREKATZ

tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as ERMAERAT
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T
Profit before income tax R P15 B0 A g A 41,275 157,348
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates RERERREMER 24
applicable to profits in the respective MEFTE BB
jurisdictions 8,376 39,296
Income not subject to tax BARB 2 BA (944) (21,964)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax #) A AF R ERZ HIBEIE
losses (6,472) (13,676)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes “~a] 17 2 B 3% 6,384 5,189
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBBEEE (4,005) (58)
Tax losses not recognised RERHIEEE 10,728 7,040
Withholding tax TEHH — 1,074
Income tax expense FriS®iF 14,067 16,901
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ARA S R M

Income tax expense (Continued) 27 FREBiRAX (&)
The tax charge relation to components of other comprehensive Hip2ERA (BEB) BRI 2 HIEX
income/(loss) is as follows: BT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tfF
Before tax Tax After tax Before tax Tax After tax
BR A BE BB & BR % Al B R 12
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHRx FHx FHx FBT FBT FBT
Currency translation EMBRE =R
differences (144,098) — (144,098) 172,314 — 172,314
Fair value gains on BRYERTH
transfers of owner- EREER
occupied properties REMEZ
and land use rights to A F (A Uk 25
investment properties (Fff 5£6 %8)
(Notes 6 and 8) 276,851 (69,213) 207,638 22,603 (5,651) 16,952
Release of exchange R —E =
reserve to profit or loss /A &) % % W (&
upon deregistration of X RFEfE =B
an associate — — — (20,278) = (20,278)
Other comprehensive H2EEA
income/(loss) (E518) 132,753 (69,213) 63,540 174,639 (5,651) 168,988
Deferred tax (Note 21) i fE % 18
(Hff5E21) (69,213) (5,651)
ZELEEERERAT T N\FFER
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28 Expenses by nature 28 RUESTEZEX
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET F& T
Auditor's remuneration 1% 25 6D B

— Audit services — BZR® 3,300 3,300

— Non-audit services — FEZRB 500 500
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 8) iy {5 7 # #5 4% (P 7£8) 1,546 4,733
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 12) & JiZ & 2= # 8 (Ff 5£12) 2,442 3,903
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BB R EETE (Mide)

equipment (Note 6) 96,151 97,306
Employee benefit expenses (including EERFNAZ(BEESTHS)

directors’ emolument) (Note 29) (P 7E29) 537,969 536,161
Changes in inventories of finished goods &k m&kERBEFEEES

and work in progress 89,853 (238,386)
Raw materials and consumables used B #E A R M B ROE 897,563 1,240,700
Processing and subcontracting charges MIkRS>BEHA 353,021 263,186
Direct operating expenses arising from EAHSWAREMEZEE

investment properties that generate EEMX

rental income 316 273
Operating lease rental in respect of M BEREREHE2KEHEE

property, plant and equipment e 18,449 22,757
Provision for impairment of receivables EWRIBERERE — F58

— net — 13,915
Provision for impairment of inventories TFERE RS (ME13)

(Note 13) 30,441 59,215
Others H A 248,840 252,475
Total cost of sales, selling, marketing and $EEMKA « $HE - E8H KD H

distribution costs and administrative AR A R AT 2 48 58

expenses 2,280,391 2,260,038
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Employee benefit expenses (including
directors’ emoluments)

ARA S R M

BERANEX (BEREEMH
%)

2018 2017

—E-N\F —ET—tF

HK$°000 HK$'000

FTHER F& T

Salaries, wages and bonuses e ITERMEL 457,745 460,762
Pension costs — defined contribution BRIRNESKARN — FEREHNKEE

plans (Note) (B &%) 59,045 56,180

Staff welfare BT&F 21,179 19,219

537,969 536,161

Note:

Employees in the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in defined
contribution retirement scheme administered and operated by the local municipal
government. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute a minimum of 26.6% (2017:
28.4%) of employees’ basic salary to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the
employees.

The Group has also established a mandatory provident fund scheme (“MPF scheme”) in
Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF scheme are held in separate trustee-administered
funds. Both the Group and the employees are required to contribute 5% of the
employee’s relevant income up to a maximum of HK$1,500 per employee per month.

(@) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include four (2017: four) directors of
the Company whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented in Note 36. The emoluments payable to
the remaining one (2017: one) individual during the year
are as follows:

B e

FEETEMNBARZEEAZEAEMTRAEER
itz EEEFORAGB) - AR EFENE AR RER
BEELFHE2266% (ZF—+LF :28.4%) Aaxat &l
R REEZRKBFEE -

AEBERREBRLBHMEARSF S (RRE S
B -BESHEZEEABLGEEAEE - AKER
BEDASGAREEEBBRAZSRELHENR  ERAE
# {8 81,500/8 7T ©

() EEEZEFMAL
FEEFAREHFM I ARALE
BRARAMNEER(—E—tF: 0
&) HME R E36Pm 25 2 247
NRER R BNBT—RAL

—EtEF R ZHEWT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHIT

Basic salaries, housing allowances and EA# 4 - EEEE &
other allowances H b 2 AL 871 1,446
Contributions to pension plans RIS FTEI LR 18 18
Discretionary bonuses (SRR 350 400
1,239 1,864

ZELEEERERAT T N\FFER
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29 Employee benefit expenses (including
directors’ emoluments) (Continued)

(@) Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The emoluments fell within the following band:

BERMNFEX (BEREEMH
%) (&)

(a)

EERSHMA L (8
BTIIMEEE 2 ABIAT

Number of individuals
AE

2018
—E-N\E§

2017
ST+

Emolument band [ e
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000

HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000

1,000,001 7t 21,500,000/ 7t
1,500,001 7t 22,000,000/ 7T

31

30 Earnings per share 30 EREF
(@  The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the (@) BREXRZAF HIEEARRD G RER
Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the BAFELAREERF 421,045,000
Company of approximately HK$21,045,000 (2017: T (=ZF —+ 4 : 149,689,000/ 7T)
HK$149,689,000) and weighted average number of ordinary RERND T REE 2 INEFHH
shares in issue during the year of 2,099,818,000 (2017: 2,099,818,0000% (— & — + £ :
2,099,818,000). 2,099,818,0000%) 5+ & °
(b)  Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the (b) EREBRFNIBEMEEEES
weighted average number of shares outstanding to assume R 1D 5 1% - IBIED TR MG Z M
conversion of all dilutive potential shares. LS e TS
During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there BE T N\ER-_ZT—+&+—
were no dilutive potential ordinary shares deemed to be BE=+—BIEE BESEET
issued under the share option scheme as there are no BRI B T B S
outstanding options as at 31 December 2018 and 2017. EERCBERER_E—N\ER—
T—tH&+-_A=t+—B#EHE
17 B0 BB AR HE -
Dividends 31 KA
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER FET
Interim dividend, Nil (2017: HK1.41 cents #EHHIRE (Z T — L4 :
per ordinary share) TR EER.41580) — 29,607
Interim special dividend, Nil (2017: HK0.56 SR HIE R B (ZF — £ 4F ¢
cent per ordinary share) 5% & A 1R0.567 (1) — 11,759
— 41,366
At a meeting held on 22 March 2019, the directors did not R-E—hNhEF=A-_+-_HETHEZ
propose any special dividend or final dividend for the year ended F EEga i E—_T—N\E+_-A4
31 December 2018. =+ — B 1 FE IR E 45 B A Bk R H
% S e
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32 Notes to consolidated statement of cash 32 ZEHERERKRK

flows
(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash generated from () KERFELLEMERESFEHER
operations is as follows: R
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Operating profit £ Al 48,993 158,093
Adjustments for: R
— Depreciation of property, plant — ME - BERRETE
and equipment 96,151 97,306
— Amortisation of land use rights — (55 AR R 8E 1,546 4,733
— Amortisation of intangible assets — — %2 & & # §5 6,698 7,635
— Reversal of impairment loss on — BERT—HEEQRAZ
loans to an associate VRN SRR — (41,135)
— Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, — HEWE  BE K& HE
plant and equipment ‘e () 3,959 (3,902)
— Gain on requisition and demolition — #1% « BE K& E U K&
of property, plant and T AERA R
equipment and land use rights v bR s (27,071) —
— Net fair value loss/(gain) on FVPL — R AFEFIREBEF R
PREZEMEEZ
NEEEE ()
R 3,822 (10,429)
— Fair value gains on investment — REWMEZ AT ERE
properties (4,133) (2,186)
— Provision for impairment of — FEREREE
inventories 30,441 59,215
— Impairment losses on financial — SMEEREERE
assets 19,025 —
— Provision for impairment of — EWRIE R E R
receivables — net — F8 — 13,915
— Impairment loss on goodwill — BB REEIE 4,930 —
— Elimination of profits from — ¥ 8H TR 5 s Al
downstream transactions 1,183 —
Changes in working capital: EEAg 2 #
— Inventories — FE& (127,292) (221,722)
— Trade and other receivables — BB SRR KR EAm
Ji& W 5k 38 (90,145) (138,343)
— FVPL — BAFEIRERAR
TEREBEZERMEE (77) 8,603
— Trade and other payables — ENE SRR REAMD
J& 15 3R 38 36,663 93,059
Net cash generated from operations #& & FT1538 & /5% 4,693 24,842
ZELEEERERAT T N\FFER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
iR A B RS R & BT T

32 Notes to consolidated statement of cash 32

flows (Continued)

(b)

(c)

RERERE/MRME (A)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from (b) REGZEBHEREMEIAN HEWE -
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: BEREEZASRERRE
2018 2017
ZE-N\F —E—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Net book amounts BREFE 11,293 4,278
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, LEME  WEKKH
plant and equipment (Note 25) (B18) ke (M sE25) (3,959) 3,902
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  HE &&
plant and equipment Fr13 5k 18 7,334 8,180
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, compensation (0 REEREREWMERA - EHEA
from local government’s requisition and demolition of BRARFRYE BFERZENLR
property, plant and equipment and land use rights THERAENBES R
comprise:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Net book amounts BREFE 13,278 —
Gain on requisition and demolition of #1% - &5 K& & & A & T i
property, plant and equipment and  f& B AL B 2
land use rights (Note 25) (B 3%25) 27,071 —
Compensation from requisition and ME BERZHEARLTH
demolition of property, plant and FRAEBRRIFKRAEER
equipment and land use rights 40,349 =
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iR & B T8 oK T
32 Net cash generated from operations 32 REHREREHRKRM T (&)
(Continued)
(d) Net debt reconciliation (d) EEFHYER
This section sets out the reconciliation of liabilities arising AEHINREREFERETHE
from financing activities for each of the years presented. F 7B EHER-
Dividend
payable Borrowings Total
AR E R Fo
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT FHIT
At 1 January 2017 R=ZZE—+tF—HA—H — 283,066 283,066
Non-cash — dividends declared FBRe —BEERRE 59,214 = 59,214
Cash flows ReEnE (59,214) (39,354) (98,568)
Exchange differences ME 5 =5 = 3,559 3,559
At 31 December 2017 RZT—tF
+—A=+—H = 247,271 247,271
At 1 January 2018 RZE-—NF—H—H — 247,271 247,271
Cash flows REenE — 122,571 122,571
Exchange differences bE 3 =58 — (2,785) (2,785)
At 31 December 2018 RZT—\F
+=-A=+—8” — 367,057 367,057
33 Commitments 33 A&IiE
(a) Capital commitment (a) EBEAXEE
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had the following RZFE-—NF+ZA=+—HB K
capital commitments: SEHEAUTEARKIE:
2018 2017
—E-NF T &
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Contracted but not provided for: BRI 4B R
— Property, plant and equipment — W% BEEZE 34,721 —
— Investment in Hangzhou Weiding — — R # /N M2 8% & 11,387 =
46,108 —

EREEEZERARLATE —ZT-N\FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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33 Commitments (Continued)

(b)

Operating lease commitments

As lessee

The Group leases various retail outlets, offices, warehouses
and plant and equipment under non-cancellable operating
lease agreements. The leases have varying terms, escalation
claims and renewal rights.

The actual payments in respect of certain operating leases
are calculated at a certain percentage of sales of the
respective retail outlets or at the higher of the minimum
commitments and the amounts determined based on a
percentage of the sales of the related outlets.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are as follows:

33 A& (&)

(b)

KEHEERE

ERABEA
AEBEREIAHMBEE2MEE HE
HRZETESE MAZE HEUR
BFE R - 2 FHEZFH - A
BRBEHESAETR -

ETREMEZEBRNRDRET
EEHEE AETEDLE &
N EAEERIFAERAEHEER
ZE-—BAAULFEESEME 2R
mEAHE -

RETAHHELEHER R F2
REEEFRABLT :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FE T
Land and buildings T RETF
— No later than 1 year — NEBBIF 14,975 15,230
— Later than 1 year and no later — HBB1F BT iE5F
than 5 years 7,485 8,528
22,460 23,758
Property, plant and equipment M- BERE
— No later than 1 year — NHEBIFE 78 99
— Later than 1 year and no later — HBB1F BT B ESF
than 5 years 254 257
332 356
Total B 22,792 24,114
As lessor fER LA

The Group leases offices, dormitories and plant under non-
cancellable operating lease agreements. The leases have
varying terms between 1 and 5 years, escalation claims and
renewal rights.

China Ting Group Holdings Limited Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

33 Commitments (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued)

As lessor (Continued)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease receipts under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

ARA S R M

33 A& (&)

(b) FEAEXE(F

1 HHEA ()

R=F-N\F+=A=+—H &
S5 AR08 0 A 4 9 2 30 2 R A
HIERBE Y AR EREREY

NI
2018 2017
—B-N\F —E—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
— No later than 1 year — NEBBIF 17,326 13,098
— Later than 1 year and no later — HBBI1F BT B iE5F
than 5 years 45,215 18,422
62,541 31,520

34 Significant related party transactions

The Group is controlled by Longerview Investments Limited
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands), which owns 71% of
the Company’s shares. The remaining 29% of the shares are
widely held. The ultimate parent of the Group is Longerview
Investments Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands).

The directors are of the view that the following companies are
related parties of the Group:

Name Relationship with the Group

An associate
An associate
An associate
A joint venture
A joint venture

Huasheng Accessories
China Ting Property
Hangzhou Ranyue
Ting Camuto
Hangzhou Weiding

The name of Huasheng Accessories, China Ting Property,
Hangzhou Ranyue and Hangzhou Weiding referred to in the
above represents management’s best efforts at translating the
Chinese name of these companies as no English name has been
registered or available.

3 EXBERFRS

7N & B Alongerview Investments Limited
(REBE LS TMA ) ATIESl - Ak
BARRATIN%Z B - 88T 229% % 17 i
REFRBE - AEB 2 HERERAER
Longerview Investments Limited (72 2 & &
ZEEE ML)

EZRRTINRAAAEE ZEET -

=L BHEALEEZBER
EREA X /NE]
R it E iR /NE]
W e 1% X /NE]
Ting Camuto SN
A7 I PE G BERQA

HREREE FELEME MMBHK
UM RE R S RS A e AT
BANEBLDEREZENBEEDXAH
s

EREEEZERARLATE —ZT-N\FFH
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34 Significant related party transactions 3 EXBEAFRS (&)
(Continued)
(a) Transactions with related parties (a) EHBEERETZRE
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the RARAFEERR TXZRHTIN
transactions below were conducted in the ordinary and AEREFTERBEFRET Mk
usual course of business and the pricing of these LR 5 2 E B RIB KR A & [ Y i
transactions was determined based on mutual negotiation HERERRBEMERE -

and agreement between the Group and the related parties.

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Purchases of accessories ) 2 % o R £ B o R
from Huasheng Accessories 7.114 6,710
Sales of garments to Hangzhou Ranyue [&) 75 1 £ 1% $5 & X %% 153,288 7,285
Sales of garments to Hangzhou A7 M ME S 85 K K
Weiding 18,163 =
Interest income from China Ting REESEHEZFSWA
Property — 4,533
(b) Key management compensation (b) FEEEEZHRM
2018 2017
—E-NEF —ET—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Salaries and other short-term employee % & & £ b 52 53 (& 8 & 7|
benefits 12,993 16,715
Post-employment benefits R K18 F 116 99
13,109 16,814
(c) Year-end balances with related parties () EHBEERZFRERR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHEIT
Receivable from a joint venture EW & & R FFHRIA 3,749 4,134
Receivables from associates JIE U5 Bt B RO 41,900 11,092
Payables to associates JE <1 ek & X B FRIA 1,203 1,045
Payable to a joint venture & & RAFHRE 66 —
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34 Significant related party transactions

35

(Continued)

(c) Year-end balances with related parties

(Continued)

The carrying amounts of these balances approximate their

fair values.

The amounts due from/to related parties were denominated

in RMB.

34

Balance sheet and reserve movement of 35

the Company

V=JVAN
2 =]

I 75 ¥R &R Mt 5

EXBRERTXRZ (#)

HEBEN 2 FRE 8 (H)

BEESRZ REEREE N FEES -

FEU, & 1 BB 33 05 IR A A R B &
-

ARAzEERBERRMHE

2018 2017
—E-N\E TE—
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5% FET FHT
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets kARBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RARZEKE 1,218,446 1,218,636
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries & W Fff B A & X IE 535,101 533,366
Other receivables and E fth & Y T8 R TE S 5RIE
prepayments 360 297
Cash and bank balances Re RBITES 326 3,147
535,787 536,810
Total assets EESRE 1,754,233 1,755,446
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to equity A A A REIFE AELER
holders of the Company
Share capital & 7 209,982 209,982
Reserves & (a) 1,541,615 1,542,609
Total equity ESBE 1,751,597 1,752,591
LIABILITIES =Rt
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals At EN#RREs®RA | 2636 | 285
Total equity and liabilities ®EZREEHLEE 1,754,233 1,755,446

EREEZRERQTA
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35 Balance sheet and reserve movement of 35 AARZEEEBREEE

- = —d
the Company (Continued) 25 (&)
Note: B 5
(a) Reserve mo t of the Company (a) KARZRHEED
Other Retained
reserve earnings Total
HAf#E REBF At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2017 RZZE—t%—HA—8H 1,455,617 145,217 1,600,834
Profit for the year F P F — 989 989
2016 final dividend —E-ARERERE — (17,848) (17,848)
2017 interim and special dividend Tt FHEHRERRS — (41,366) (41,366)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZZ—t&+=-A=+—8H 1,455,617 86,992 1,542,609
At 1 January 2018 R-ZE-—N\F—A—8H 1,455,617 86,992 1,542,609
Loss for the year FRNEER — (994) (994)
At 31 December 2018 R=FB-NF+=-BR=+—8 1,455,617 85,998 1,541,615
36 Benefits and interests of directors 36 EE2EAKEER
The remuneration of each director of the Company paid or AEEBENKENEAARSTES 2 H B
payable by the Group is set out below: I
For the year ended 31 December 2018: HE_Z-N\F+_A=T—HILFE:
Estimated
money value Contributions
Discretionary of other Housing to pension
Name Fees  Basic salary bonus benefit allowances plans Total
Hi B R RikE
%A ik EXge WEEA fMAE8ER EEREY BERE st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TERT TET TERT TET TERT TET
Ting Man Yi TS - 3,000 - - - 18 3,018
Ding Jianer TESR - 2,130 - - - 18 2,148
Ting Hung Yi (Chief TR (/T4 %)

Executive Officer) — 3,000 — — — 18 3,018
Cheung Ting Yin, Peter REE — 1,495 — — — 18 1,513
Cheng Chi Pang B 240 - - - - - 240
Wong Chi Keung HZ® 360 - - - - - 360
Leung Man Kit ARG 240 - - - - - 240

840 9,625 — — — 7 10,537
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RA B RS R &R MY AT

36 EEZEAMN R #Em (&)

(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017: HE-T—tHF+-A=+—RHILFE:
Estimated
Discretionary money value of Housing Contributions to
Name Fees Basic salary bonus  other benefit allowances  pension plans Total
HhaF RRE
& e EXFe REEL M eBEE FEEZH BRIk @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET TEL THT TEL THT TET THT
Ting Man Yi THR = 3,000 400 = = 18 3,418
Ding Jianer TER = 2,130 200 = = 18 2,348
Ting Hung Yi (Chief TR (7TH 4 %)

Executive Officer) = 3,000 400 = = 18 3,418
Cheung Ting Yin, Peter 5R7E & = 1,450 700 = = 18 2,168
Cheng Chi Pang B8 240 = = = = — 240
Wong Chi Keung BH 360 = = = = = 360
Leung Man Kit ARG 240 = = = = = 240

840 9,580 1,700 — — 72 12,192
During the year, no emoluments, no retirement benefits, payments FA-BMERKEEERGEMEESBEE
or benefits in respect of termination of directors’ services were MEEINAGETEMNMES  RIKEF -
paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are any SRR TMEEMEMNRE(ZT—+
payable (2017: Nil). No consideration was provided to or F o\ -BIERREEEREMAE=FH
receivable by third parties for making available directors’ services REIENE=FEAREBE(CCZT—LF:
(2017: Nil). There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in ) o MEaES HIZHEE REEEE
favour of the directors, their controlled bodies corporate and MEmMaI L2 BER EERSIEMRZ S (=
connected entities (2017: None). T—t+F |\
No director of the Company had a material interest, directly or MEARNREERERNRAIEE BB ZE
indirectly, in any significant transactions, arrangements and MEARS THEREAPEEZIEER
contracts in relation to the Company’s business to which the EEAER MARRGENIRERITA
Company was or is a party that subsisted at the end of the year FERERSIFAEMREFE( T —
or at any time during the year (2017: None). Fom) e

EREEEZERARLATE —ZT-N\FFH
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Five-year Financial Summary
IF 85 E

As at 31 December 2018 KR=Z—/\F+=-A=+—H

AEBBETEMRFELEHNEEREE
BERFEGEEEHESHOT -

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set

out below.
For the financial years ended 31 December
BEZ+-B=1+—-HLHBEE
(Amounts expressed in HK$’000, unless specified)
(BREBEBNH 2UTBTES)
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—T-mFE ZE-HF ZZ—R"E ZT—tF | ZE2-N\F
Revenue R 2,539,001 2,386,175 2,151,522 2,335,429 | 2,274,818
Cost of sales $HE B AR (1,808,136)  (1,691,292)  (1,500,291)  (1,670,143) | (1,711,636)
Gross profit EH 730,865 694,883 651,231 665,286 563,182
Other income RN 22,977 23,334 12,704 29,267 21,476
Other (losses)/gains, net Hit (B518) a8 (240,115) (109,737) 43,891 53,435 52,115
Selling, marketing and HE HHR
distribution costs 2 KA (334,752) (311,591) (278,655) (277,417) (258,431)
Administrative expenses TBRAX (318,130) (309,935) (304,840) (312,478) (310,324)
Net impairment loss provided for % & Bl & & st IR WO RE
financial assets BEEEFE = = = — (19,025)
Operating profit/(loss) meERF (BR) (139,155) (13,046) 124,331 158,093 48,993
Finance income/(costs), net BEWA (BRA)FHE 26,793 18,656 1,314 2,678 (3,261)
Share of profit/(losses) of DI E R EDEF
associates (&#8) (131,619) 11 (141) (632) 146
Share of (losses)/profits SMEEERE(BR) /
of joint ventures gl (2,943) (5,057) (5,088) (2,791) (4,603)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETGRAIRA, (B1R) (246,924) 564 120,416 157,348 41,275
Income tax expense FEHREX (42,367) (41,697) (39,084) (16,901) (14,067)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BRE) 8 (289,291) (41,133) 81,332 140,447 27,208
Non-controlling interests FE T 1 2 8,363 2,035 495 9,242 (6,163)
(Loss)/profit attributable to equity 7A@ BkERHH A
holders of the Company [E1E (BE) & A (280,928) (39,098) 81,827 149,689 21,045
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As at 31 December 2018 R=Z—/\F+=-A=+—H

Five-year Financial Summary
EFEMBHE

As at 31 December
R+=RA=t+—-8H
(Amounts expressed in HK$'000, unless specified)

(REEERN 2UTERTES)

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
—ZT-mWF —ZET—HF =ZZT—RX —T—+F | ZE-N\F
Non-current Assets ERBEE 1,282,065 1,104,284 971,559 870,359 1,030,889
Current Assets B EE 2,333,726 2,307,498 2,222,989 2,668,188 2,788,853
Total Assets EEHE 3,615,791 3,411,782 3,194,548 3,538,547 3,819,742
Non-current Liabilities FERBAEE 12,959 12,738 13,861 21,752 83,136
Current Liabilities mEBAE 1,041,435 996,264 881,647 967,534 1,096,597
Total Liabilities BEHE 1,054,394 1,009,002 895,508 989,286 1,179,733
Total Equity BaniE 2,561,397 2,402,780 2,299,040 2,549,261 2,640,009
Net Current Assets TBEEZFME 1,292,291 1,311,234 1,341,342 1,700,654 1,692,256
Total Assets Less Current BEBER
Liabilities mEAE 2,574,356 2,415,518 2,312,901 2,571,013 2,723,145
ESEEERERAT T N\FFRH
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Schedule of Principal Investment Properties

TEREMER

Approximate

Gross Floor Area Group's
Particulars (Square meters) Lease Term Usage interest (%)
A A2 TE E R rEEHER
B (FHK) HE i< (%)
Block 1, No. 18 Wu Zhou Road, 33,172.9 Medium term Industrial 100%
Yun He lJie Dao,
Yuhang District, Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
PRI A ] I
LN T SR (2
FERTIEE )
M B8 18557 1%
Factory complex at No. 195 Xin Tian Road, 52,395.91 Medium term Industrial 100%
Yuhang Economic Development Zone,
Yuhang District, Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
PRI A i I
LN T 8 (2
BRI A B 7R 3 2
FRER1959 R /= 4R & 88
Flat G—J, 4/F. with portion of flat roof, 315.4 Medium term Commercial 100%
Lladro Center,
Nos. 72-80 Hoi Yuen Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 87
BEENEEE H HA [EES

B IR 38 5572-805%

i S
MEGIE(EENETRF D)
(B 9% A9 3 R 875%)
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